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About Us

We are an independent and not-for-profit organisation
providing quality housing for the people of Hong Kong. With
the support of Government, we have implemented various
housing schemes to meet the needs of niche markets. We
are governed by Members with a Supervisory Board and an
Executive Committee made up of professionals coming from
different sectors of the community.

Established in 1948, we have been serving our community
with a social mission. Though this mission has evolved in
tandem with the city over the years, the mandate of the
Housing Society to serve the community remains
unchanged.
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Mission and Vision

Hong Kong Housing Society is a non-government
organisation aiming to serve the needs of the Hong Kong
community in housing and related services. We strive to be
a world-class housing solution provider and innovator with
leadership in quality, value for money and management. We
put customer, quality, talent and prudence as the core
values that support our guiding principles.

mERER

EAEERER—HAFBRARE BENRABTEMR
REFSELERBORE - LA BREREFHEMD
BRIz NERERKY YEER WEREETE
HREMWA - RPNEERE] [BERE] (AL R
EINIERRRAIRES EBRLERA -

TALENT
ATEHE

PRUDENCE
BESH




02
10
14
22
33

Contents

Projects at a Glance
Highlights of the Year
Chairman’s Statement
CEO’s Review of Operations

Corporate Structure

Business Overview

H 8%

HE—®
FERE
FEHE
T & I m R
HSRE

E$:1% ]

lalelelele
46 56 66 78 90 104

Riding Out the Serving Our Building Meeting the Needs Connecting with Developing
Pandemic Residents with Quality Homes of an Ageing Our Stakeholders Capabilities for
k&R Excellence fEEHERR Population BBRH0E the Future
SU0BRBER REERAQRSE SRFEIUE
118 Environmental, Social and Governance BiE - HENES
Environmental RIS
Social He
Corporate Governance TEER
Enterprise Risk Management PERRER
148 Financial Management MEEE
156 Independent Auditor’s Report B L% BT 3R &
162 Audited Financial Statements EERMBHRE

Five-year Financial Summary

LFMBERE



02

Projects at a Glance
IRE—58

Housing Schemes EEZE&t2l

Rental Estate
sems I sor

Rural Public Housing - 3
HELAHRER
Urban Improvement Scheme
hEREE

a8 10
Sandwich Class Housing Scheme _ 10
=B R E

Full Market Value Development - 3
TEBREER

Urban Renewal Project 6
TEEZER

Senior Citizen Residences Scheme 2
[RERE%] B8

Quality Elderly Housing Project . 1
BEREREEEA

Subsidised Sale Flats Project
wnussess N 4 o

RENTAL ESTATE i EH

20 rental estates located on Hong Kong Island and in Kowloon and the New
Territories currently provide homes for about 81,000 people. All are designed
to meet the needs of low-income families with rents at a discount to market
level.

30

The figure includes rental estate projects that have been
developed, demolished and redeveloped.
BFRERTF DRERHERBERZESR -

Rental housing blocks and Flat-For-Sale blocks within the
same estate are counted as separate projects.
URA-ESNEEEEREERERFOMABLEAFEH -

BRIAB - TEEEEBELHAREE  NE
E#RAER BERABONE T - BRBEHR
REBARE BEERTEKF -

RURAL PUBLIC HOUSING RBE A+ =

Three rural housing projects have been built in Sai Kung and Sha Tau Kok.
They are provided for families in rural areas whose homes have been cleared
for redevelopment. The flats are rented or sold at concessionary rate. In
20183, the Government invited the Housing Society to develop more rental
flats in the restricted area of Sha Tau Kok to cope with the increasing demand
of the local population, with completion in 2017.

Commenced in the early 1970s, projects under this Scheme are built to
improve the living environment in dilapidated urban areas. 30 projects have
been redeveloped after pulling down the old buildings to provide a total of 5,620
flats. The flats are sold at full market value to the general public.
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Projects at a Glance JHE —&
Housing Schemes EZ5T &

FLAT-FOR-SALE SCHEME {¥ =& 3% £ 512/ 1

Launched in the late 1980s, ten projects with a total of 10,360 flats are
located throughout Hong Kong under this Scheme. Similar to the Home
Ownership Scheme of the Hong Kong Housing Authority, the flats are sold at
a discount to meet the ownership aspirations of low to middle-income
families. In line with the Government policy, flat production under this Scheme
has ceased since late 2002.

Launched in the early 1990s amid the surge of property prices, ten residential
developments across Hong Kong provide a total of 8,920 flats for the middle-
income families. Flats are sold at concessionary prices to eligible families and
subject to resale conditions. Flat production under this Scheme has been
suspended since 1998.
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FULL MARKET VALUE DEVELOPMENT m{HZ R IE E I

Upon the suspension of the Sandwich Class Housing Scheme, three projects
under development have been converted to private properties for sale to the
public at full market value. These include Cayman Rise in Kennedy Town,
Mountain Shore in Ma On Shan and Serenity Place in Tseung Kwan O.

Under the Memorandum of Understanding signed with the Urban Renewal
Authority in 2002, the Housing Society has undertaken five redevelopment
projects in Sham Shui Po and one in Shau Kei Wan to provide a total of 1,531
private residential flats. All the six projects were completed between 2013
and 2016.

This innovative Scheme for the middle-income elderly provides “one-stop”
homes with housing, recreation, medical and care facilities all under the same
roof. Two pilot projects, Jolly Place in Tseung Kwan O and Cheerful Court in
Jordan Valley, providing a total of 576 flats are leased for life to eligible senior
citizens.
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QUALITY ELDERLY HOUSING PROJECT £ & R & E 212 H I

Launched for lease in 2015, The Tanner Hill is a non-subsidised elderly
housing project providing 588 age-friendly individual residential flats
completed with lifestyle, home-care support, Chinese and Western
healthcare, as well as skilled care services to create a quality retirement living
for the residents.
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SUBSIDISED SALE FLATS PROJECT & B i & EH H I

In 2012, the Government changed the original My Home Purchase Plan
project in Tsing Yi to a Subsidised Sale Flats (SSF) project named Greenview
Villa which provides small-and-medium flats for sale at discounted prices to
eligible people. The Government subsequently entrusted the Housing Society
with similar projects in Sha Tin, Tuen Mun and Tseung Kwan O, namely
Greenhill Villa, Terrace Concerto and Mount Verdant respectively, which were
completed in 2019/20. Currently, the four SSF projects provide altogether
2,628 units.
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Projects at a Glance HE —&

Projects Developed B2 R1EE

Projects Completion No. of Projects Completion No. of
JERE| Year Flats HAE Year Flats
EARED Efve2¢= ERFED BRIEA
RENTAL ESTATE (EXISTING) RURAL PUBLIC HOUSING
HEE(R7F) BEAHERE
Yue Kwong Chuen b B ) 1962/63/65 1,144 Tui Min Hoi Chuen Eagrpiag 1984/85/86 302
Moon Lok Dai Ha ik PN 1964/65 947 1988/89/91/
Sha Tau Kok Chuen YD 88 AR 802
Chun Seen Mei Chuen HEEN 1965 1,027 2017
Healthy Village AT 1965/93 1,189 Lakeside Garden BETE 1997 234
Kwun Tong Garden Estate #53% 7E[E A & 1965/67/87/91 4,922 Total &A% 1,338
Ming Wah Dai Ha HEXE 1965/78/2021 3,482
Kwun Lung Lau HEE 1968/2007 2,343
Lok Man Sun Chuen %8 R 1970/71/73/74 3,674
Lai Tak Tsuen By i up 1975/76 2,675 Mei Sun Lau kil 1976 267
i g B
Cho Yiu Chuen L 1976/78/79/81 2,546 Lai Yan Lau mEE 1980 100
Jat Min Chuen Z 605 1081/82 3,747 O Kwan Court ERH 1980 147
== <7 5 Q Bk
Ka Wai Chuen R4 0 1984/87/90/93 1,676 Sl Bl S HXesk 1981 LY
Clague Garden Estate  #1/@Z 3745 1989 553 Western Garden EE 1982 482
) e
Broadview Garden &2 EE 1991 448 5 Upper Station Street ZfE EA#557 1983 5
L F| 45108
Prosperous Garden EE B ICE 1991/95 661 10 Shelley Street LR AT105% 1983 10
= A,
Bo Shek Mansion B A 1996 067 221 Temple Street R 221 5% 1983 5
M A a
Verbena Heights B4 5 1996 971 39C Battery Street A A39CHT 1984 5
Sub-total /i 32,272 [ERACEREE KB 1S 20
Ko Wang Court ISy 1985 24
RENTAL ESTATE (DEMOLISHED) Yuen Fai Court TR R R 1985 56
HEEHR(EHRHDER) 3 U Lam Terrace @mimE3%E 1986 17
Sheung Li Uk EFE 1952 360 Kin Wo Court A 1986 20
Hung Hom Estate AL W AT 1955/58 1,283 1 Hee Wong Terrace H2E1% 1987 188
Ma Tau Chung BEETHER 1955 184 7 Ping Lan Street FRETH 1987 5
Cottage Area -
Coble Court =B 1987 172
Four Seasons Estate mEXRE 1959 465
10 Tai Pak Terrace ABHZ10% 1988 12
Healthy Village i FR A 1959 598
June Garden MBI 1988 480
Kai Tak Estate i = 4B 1960/61/81 850
Ka Fai Court i e B 1988 46
Kwun Tong Garden Estate #3E EE AE 1960 1,077
Dragon Centre BEEL 1989 392
Tanner Hill Estate 2|11 1961 590
Kui Yan Lane EBLCE 1990 48
Ming Wah Dai Ha HEXE 1962/63 651
Lascar Court B 1991 224
Bo Shek Mansion BEORNE 1964 636
B Prosperous Garden LB 1991/95 896
Kwun Lung Lau B 1968 617 P

Yuk Ming T T H 1991 326
Sub-total /i 7,311 JeTng Tomers g:‘; A
Elegance Court e FE 55, 1993 69
Total % 39,583 9 ¢
B 1994 50

Harmony Court

Prosperity Court B 1994 104

. Jubilant Place RE&EFER 1998 900
Redeveloped

EHREER  Holywood Terrace REEERE 1999 550

04 Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22



Projects at a Glance THE —&
Projects Developed B % RIEHE

Projects Completion No. of Projects Completion No. of

HH Year Flats 1HH Year Flats
&R D BRHA & B 1) EXva 2§

FLAT-FOR-SALE SCHEME URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT

FTEBRETE TEERER

Clague Garden Estate WriEE e 1989 926 Heya Green = 2013 327

Ka Wai Chuen K HE TP 1990/93 892 Harmony Place g4 2 BT 2014 274

Broadview Garden BEIEE 1991 1,328 Heya Delight EA 2015 130

Healthy Village i B A 1993/97 1,048 Heya Star =% 2015 175

Cronin Garden #mETE 1995 728 Heya Aqua =% 2016 275

Bo Shek Mansion EAHAE 1996 400 Heya Crystal EE 2016 350

Lakeside Garden RIEIE 1997 736

Verbena Heights BIREER 1997 1,894

Kai Tak Garden B Te 1998 1,256

Kingston Terrace RHE 2002 1,152

P
Total g 1 0,360 Jolly Place LEEE 2003 243
Cheerful Court KEE 2004 333

SANDWICH CLASS HOUSING SCHEME
xR B2 S8

I‘

Tvoll Garden — 1095 1004 QUALITY ELDERLY HOUSING PROJECT

Cascades fix (& &F 1998 712 BEREEEHRA

Hibiscus Park N 1998 420 The Tanner Hil 5t 2015 588
Highend Park #RE 100 s
Marina Habitat g 1998 992
Park Belvedere 2B 1998 882 EHHEEREER

Radiant Towers el 1998 704 Greenview Villa G 2015 988
Sunshine Grove BRI 1998 508 Mount Verdant B 2019 330

The Pinnacie B2 1998 1424 Greenhill Villa BT 2020 1,020

Bel Air Heights 134 BE % 1999 798 N — BEE — 560

Total #% 8,920

Total #% 2,628
FULL MARKET VALUE DEVELOPMENT

mEZRRER

Cayman Rise mE= 2000 496
Mountain Shore fEE 22 8 Y 2000 1,124
Serenity Place B E 2000 1,526

Total #% 3,146

EBEERE 021/2F5EEHR 05
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Projects at a Glance THE —&

PROPERTIES UNDER MANAGEMENT EI2 Y ¥) 3£

As at 31 March 2022 #Z - - —F=H=+—HIF

Property
LUES

Ming Wah Dai Ha
Yue Kwong Chuen
Moon Lok Dai Ha
Chun Seen Mei Chuen
Healthy Village

Kwun Lung Lau

Lok Man Sun Chuen
Lai Tak Tsuen

Cho Yiu Chuen

Jat Min Chuen

Ka Wai Chuen

Tui Min Hoi Chuen
Sha Tau Kok Chuen
Clague Garden Estate
Broadview Garden
Prosperous Garden
Bo Shek Mansion
Verbena Heights

Lakeside Garden

Prosperous Garden

Jubilant Place

BREIEEAE
RENE
IR
MEENE
BEXEN
2 By
Bz
SERFNTY
By p

1 ZETR

Z AR
EX 2

Flat-For-Sale Scheme {X&i*&st2|

Clague Garden Estate
Ka Wai Chuen
Broadview Garden
Healthy Village

Bo Shek Mansion
Lakeside Garden

Kingston Terrace

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22
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Location
&

Ngau Tau Kok
Shau Kei Wan
Aberdeen
Tsuen Wan
Ma Tau Wai
North Point
Kennedy Town
To Kwa Wan
Tai Hang

Kwai Chung
Sha Tin

Hung Hom

Sai Kung

Sha Tau Kok
Tsuen Wan
Tsing Yi

Yau Ma Tei
Tsuen Wan
Tseung Kwan O

Sai Kung

Yau Ma Tei
To Kwa Wan

Tsuen Wan
Hung Hom
Tsing Yi
North Point
Tsuen Wan
Sai Kung

Tuen Mun

B2 R b 5K
I afIV |
R
E3

i
+08

No. of
Flats

B#A

.:] Rental Estate and Rural Public Housing HEEMPEBEALERE

Kwun Tong Garden Estate

4,922
3,482
1,144
947
1,027
1,189
2,343
3,674
2,675
2,546
3,747
1,676
302
802
553
448
661
267
971
234

896
900

926
892
1,328
1,048
400
736
1,152
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Projects at a Glance 15E —&
Properties Under Management EI2 Y43

No. of
Flats
B2 E

Sandwich Class Housing Scheme 3.\ [E{XE 5 El

Park Belvedere
Sunshine Grove
Cascades
Highland Park
The Pinnacle

Bel Air Heights

RE
IREEE
R B %F
ERE
BR
1 EE%F

Ma On Shan
Sha Tin

Ho Man Tin
Kwai Chung
Tseung Kwan O

Diamond Hill

HEl
W
A >/
Eo]
HER
#a

882
508
712
1,456
1,424
798

.-} Private Development FAAZRIEE

Serenity Place
Harmony Place
Heya Delight
Heya Crystal
Heya Aqua

Jolly Place
Cheerful Court

T80 E
SRS

iy
W B

Tot  oigk

LepR)E
FEE

Tseung Kwan O
Shau Kei Wan
Sham Shui Po
Sham Shui Po
Sham Shui Po

Tseung Kwan O

Jordan Valley

1 R
LHEE
RIKES
HRIKES
RIKEE

HER
EIR

1,526
274
130
350
275

243
333

.-} Quality Elderly Housing Project BEE&EREHR

The Tanner Hill

=0

Subsidised Sale Flats Project EB/HHEEREIER

North Point

bl

588

H
‘

Greenview Villa

Greenhill Villa

RIS Tsing Yi GES 988
NG HESD Sha Tin Y H 1,020

Other Properties under Management H{th & 4%

Housing Society Golden Jubilee

Building
Shing Tak Street Centre
Un Chau Street Centre

Trackside Villas

FiheEE
BERRAH L
TEMEH RO

Wan Chai
Ma Tau Wai

Cheung Sha Wan

Tai Po

BT
woE

RI

252

EBEEWE 2021/22 FEF R
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Projects at a Glance 15H —&

T2 PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION & eh 918 B

Property Location Expected No. of

LIES & Completion Flats®
Year* BAEAE
Wt B

Lee Kung Street FI#H Hung Hom ATHD 2022 312

¥y Rental Estate Development HiEE4p#EIEE

Jat Min Chuen (Additional Flats) Z BB (FEHNE A7) Sha Tin A 2023 64

Shek Pai Wan Road (Rehousing Site) A E (B Aberdeen EBF 2024 600

Ting On Street (Rehousing Site) FTEH(ASHE) Ngau Tau Kok ToEA 2025 371

yed Dedicated Rehousing Estate EAZEE1EHE

Hung Shui Kiu / Ha Tsuen New Development Area #tkig /B #H2EE R (5 —H)) HungShuiKiu  J#/kiE 2024 675
(Phase )

Pak Wo Road ERik: Fanling brik=] 2024 1,467

Kai Tak Area 1E Site 1 BEFIER 1SR A Kai Tak RiE 2025 2,158

Hung Shui Kiu / Ha Tsuen New Development Area 3tk /BT ## R @ (2 = #1) Hung ShuiKiu Kk 2026 962
(Phase II)

ped Subsidised Sale Flats Project ¥BHEREZEEH

Anderson Road Quarry Site R2—-2 ZEEBABEIHR-25 A i Kwun Tong HiE 2025 1,400

Anderson Road Quarry Site R2-3 LZEEBABHR2-35 A i Kwun Tong R 2025 420

Jockey Club Road 5gE Fanling bk 2026 644

Kai Tak Area 2B Site 1 REF2BE 15k At Kai Tak =€ 2027 1,800

| PROJECTS UNDER PLANNING &+ #IEH

Property Location Expected No. of
ES - Completion Flats®
Year BRNHHE
TR AR F (D
LY Subsidised Sale Flats Project &8/ H&ERE1EB
Anderson Road Quarry Site R2-4 ZiEREERAESR-45 A Kwun Tong HE 2026 960
Yuen Lung Street TR Yuen Long 7T 8 2028 510

ke

Dedicated Rehousing Estate ERZ & ZE1p18H

Kwu Tung North e Kwu Tung =R 2027 2,868

Ma Tau Kok Link Site B AEE R To Kwa Wan + & 2027 1,100

Hung Shui Kiu / Ha Tsuen New Development Area /K15 /B ## RE (£ =8)) Hung ShuiKiu %7k 2029 960
(Phase Ill)

Y Urban Squatter Areas mTEREE

Chuk Yuen United Village MEE AR Wong Tai Sin =AM 2028-31 1,520
Ngau Chi Wan Village A5t Ngau ChiWan  4-5tj&  2032-33 2,780
Cha Kwo Ling Village EREN Kwun Tong HE 2032-34 4,500

1 Rental Estate Redevelopment HiEE{EZEIEH

Ming Wah Dai Ha Redevelopment (Phase II) BREANEEREEL (B2H) Shau Kei Wan BEE 2028 1,595
A Kung Ngam Road [ON=F | Shau KeiWan — &E# 2028 646
Ming Wah Dai Ha Redevelopment (Phase Ill) REXKEERZBERE (E=H) Shau Kei Wan LEE 2035 1,358

# The figures are subject to amendments at the detailed design stage.

bt F e R F AR R EEN - EBEEME 2021/22 FE FiR 09
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Highlights of the Year
FREEE

Pledged over 25 projects currently under planning and construction, providing over
R B HERBEERE -+ REEE B RK-+FREBA
HK$ 280 B I 0 000
to offer rent concessions measures and subsidised units in the coming 20 years, with
community care campaigns to stand with R “
] % B AT
Hong Kong people amid the pandemic e FREEL FRRE

LS R E A RS
EER BEEBARERR

foundation and superstructure contracts
under management during the year

EEN FEETRAHEETH

CARING ABOUT THE COMMUNITY
IR E

Rent concessions with a maximum of 75 per cent were 03
offered to eligible commercial tenants throughout the year. 2022

FARNGERBFPRHLERAB ZETANER

A Community Care Campaign was launched during the
fifth wave of the pandemic to provide timely support to
rental estate tenants and people in need of anti-epidemic
resources, financial support and mental health relief.
RERREFEREE L MERITRA L+ =
BITE - ROE KLEKBBREE=7H /RET
EMEREHE FAEFTEALIRHREIE-

“Bounce Back Together” Shopping Promotion Campaign was
launched, distributing nearly 200,000 sets of cash coupons
and specially-designed masks to tenants and people in need.

[Rbe XBEEEBEEIDED AEFRASE
ATREE=+BER LS AR RAHBREOR

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22



Total HK$

Highlights of the Year EE £ %

Commended in

1 1 million 7 award schemes in recognition of
| a8 5 our outstanding performance in

was spent for improvement works at rental estates

REEEWETRE TR

business operations, corporate
governance and sustainable
development

Through the adoption of smart solutions, the year-on-year energy

consumption intensity of our construction projects

FRERASRENER BRI EERERE
¢ 9.2%

CREATING HOMES

RIZE

04 Q== =

2021

FERLTH M O P | R R S ]
FRTI® M

p-.-. i B 1 P
Wl W L uj
B

The superstructure works of the first

Dedicated Rehousing Estates project

of the Housing Society on Pak Wo

Road in Fanling commenced.

EHurmeEamBaa@ER
ZEEWPRARMALEETRE -

E 22 Byt 8l P 52 - K5 A
EEBEFE CERERRAR
BERRERIEMEBRIA

3R

The main contract for superstructure works of the first
modular block for the elderly “Chung Yuet Lau” at Jat
Min Chuen in Sha Tin was signed.

NRABZAENEEAEAK]IEREFSERE
(M IRITEFETIRAGNEEER -

02 27 rescinded units in three
2022 gypsidised Sale Flats
projects (Greenhill Villa, Mount
Verdant and Terrace Concerto)
were put up for re-sale, jointly with
the “Sale of Home Ownership
Scheme Flats 2022” of the Hong

T-Home at Ming Wah Dai Ha Kong Housing Authority.
accepted applications from EEGLIS BREEDRE
eligible families on the waiting E-EALEERER -
list of public rental housing. AR TER BEEER
RAEAENEREEES ZEENILEREA R
aERE 2R KR E S Bl 72022 | A B F A A
" ° At

EBEEME 2021/22 FE F R
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Highlights of the Year £E £ %

FOSTERING SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
EBASERR

Mock-up flats were set up to examine the feasibility

— of adopting accessible and adaptable design in
The inaugural HKHS Gerontech Competition was held, domestic units. An intergenerational living study was
with an aim to support STEM education and promote commissioned to explore new housing prototypes
gerontechnology and intergenerational harmony in the that meet the needs of all ages in Hong Kong.
el \ R B A R A (5 B 4 3 A R R R
BPEEIAIRLIE] PSRRI BRI LT I BB B AT AT o B AN TR E — TE B A
STEMBE Y BZRFEABRECRENER  HE EE ENEETAERA T ESHRT
ROABMOED - EFERE -
01 = VeEwa Nl L T AL AATINTATION CITAENORT = = The 17" Hong Kong Housing Society Award

presentation ceremony was held online to
present scholarships and bursaries to 96 tertiary
students.

N ERXBTE T CER %R E S5t E
BMBERL  FANTREBABELEBEERHES -

MAJOR AWARDS
i A5
x g = IE\ y 07 Received ESG Achievement Awards 2020 by The Institute of
MER] i ARLS 20020 ESG & Benchmark — Diamond under “Special ESG Awards —

S The Outstanding NGO” and Platinum under “Special Awards

(Criteria set by Fund Managers) — Outstanding ESG Company”
BERRHMERCEEREEZS[RE M8 ROEEBNM
2020 R B — [ H LM EEIEBEAE  RIFHIAXEB(HESE
BHRECHELA) -G EESGHE Q& &

i

Four awards in the “Construction Industry Volunteer Award Scheme

b ;: T3 ."J!.'.I.j'.
s 'T'“" b h;lahlj:"l_ | 2?)271 2021" organised by the Construction Industry Council for the Housing
I-I'. o T-. T 'ﬂ :}:-" Society’s outstanding contributions in promoting volunteer services
i [ ]| |
EER RN o maempmREEETEDH 2021 RENERE  RBER
B Y HBE T RE S E B

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
XEAR

*

®

:l. ; - Association
.
i EEEREEHG2021F E
[BEERE— 5 8]
“Outstanding
09
Corporate Strategy
2021 Awards2021" of
East Week Magazine 12 The MIND-Friendly Home Exploration Centre and Joyous Circle of
. oA -
(AT 1 2 4 BE A 58 e The Tanner Hill won two accolades at the 9" Asia Pacific Eldercare
2021 | Innovation Awards 2021 by Ageing Asia in Singapore

The 69" Annual General Meeting was held to
elect the new-term Supervisory Board. Chairman
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Although the Housing
Society’'s normal operations
were inevitably affected by
the pandemic during the
year, mitigating measures
were well in place to contain
risks without causing major
disruption to our businesses.
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2021/22 has been another incredibly challenging year for Hong Kong and
many people across the globe. The COVID-19 pandemic continued to
wreak havoc around the world with millions of people infected with the
virus. The Russia-Ukraine war that unfolded in early 2022 has fueled
insecurity around the world. Rare weather condition has become far
more frequent in many parts of the world due to climate change. Under
such circumstances, it is hard to think of any city which could remain
unscathed. Returning to Hong Kong, a new legislature was formed and
the city will soon welcome a new chapter when the sixth term of the Chief
Executive takes office in July 2022. Every time | read the news, | am
reminded of just how much something happening around impacts us at
home.

Although the Housing Society’s normal operations were inevitably
affected by the pandemic during the year, mitigating measures were well
in place to contain risks without causing major disruption to our
businesses. This was partly due to our time-tested risk management
which plays an integral part in the Housing Society’s strategic planning
process. It is also attributed to the exceptional commitment, flexibility,
creativity and inclusiveness demonstrated by all the staff members.

Thanks to the concerted efforts of Members, the Management and every
single staff member at the Housing Society, we have achieved various
successes on different business fronts during the year. Viable housing
schemes that align with Government’s policy were formulated; housing
projects stayed largely on schedule; wherever possible, sustainable
design principles and new technologies were adopted in the planning of
new developments; new housing options that better suit the needs of
different ages were explored; and enhancement works were carried out
to ensure that existing buildings are all in the best possible conditions.

We care deeply about our business operations, while supporting estate
tenants and helping people in need within the community are also high
on the agenda. Rent concessions, anti-epidemic packs and shopping
coupons were offered to various stakeholders while advance project
payments were provided for business partners to lend them a helping
hand during this challenging period.
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PARTNERING WITH THE GOVERNMENT TO
INCREASE HOUSING SUPPLY

Though a safe and decent home is the most basic need for everyone, we
all recognise that Hong Kong has a housing shortage.

To cater for future population growth and meet housing and economic
development needs, the Chief Executive laid down the blueprint for the
Northern Metropolis in her 2021 Policy Address. The metropolis, with a
total area of around 30,000 hectares, encompasses the mature new
towns of Tin Shui Wai, Yuen Long, Fanling, Sheung Shui and
neighbouring new development areas such as Kwu Tung North and
Hung Shui Kiu. These will be developed into a vibrant metropolitan area
that is ideal for people to live, work and travel.

The Northern Metropolis Development Strategy is an important initiative
for increasing land supply which in turn will allow housing supply to be
substantially increased. The Housing Society’s long-term development
plan perfectly corresponds with the Government’s housing strategy as
the northern part of Hong Kong will also be the home of some of our
major housing projects. These will include our Subsidised Sale Flats (SSF)
projects in Fanling and Yuen Long, as well as the Dedicated Rehousing
Estates (DRE) in Fanling, Hung Shui Kiu and Kwu Tung North. Currently
being planned or under construction, these projects will provide more
than 8,000 housing units in total, meeting the different needs of Hong
Kong people.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22
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To support the sales and management of these New Territories’ housing
projects both now and in the future, an additional regional office in
Fanling is on the horizon with the acquisition of an industrial building.
Moreover, in partnership with Cyberport, we have taken space in the new
regional office to set up a PropTech co-working area. The collaboration
will benefit our business development while offering research
opportunities to local start-ups.

The Housing Society is no stranger to rehousing exercises. In support of
the Government’s development clearance exercises, as well as the Urban
Renewal Authority’s redevelopment projects in the coming years, the
Housing Society was entrusted to develop several DREs to provide non-
means tested rehousing arrangements for eligible affected households.
For example, foundation works were completed on our first DRE project
on Pak Wo Road in Fanling with superstructure works commencing
during the year. Scheduled for completion in 2024, the project will
provide various types of housing including rental units, SSF and senior
citizen residences, plus two residential care homes for the elderly (RCHE),
a shopping centre and a public car park. Various facilities will be added
to the DREs which will usually be built in newly-developed areas,
optimising land use and creating quality homes for people of different
income groups.

To echo the Government’s policy of providing more transitional housing,
we leveraged our own housing resources to make available more T-Home
units during the year. Take Ming Wah Dai Ha redevelopment project as
an example. Some units left empty due to the project’s decanting
process were renovated and converted into T-Home units, offering
immediate accommodation for people in serious need of adequate living
environment. Skipping the need for construction, this strategy of utilising
existing units for transitional housing could expedite the entire allocation
process. As of 31 March 2022, five T-Home projects offering around 700
units had been rolled out. Ultimately, some 1,000 T-Home units are
expected in the next few years.

As a close partner of the Government, the Housing Society resolutely
supports increasing the housing supply and providing decent
accommodation for people of every age. With its inauguration on 1 July
2022, we look forward to working closely with the new administration to
create more affordable homes for the community and a sustainable future
for Hong Kong.
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TURNING CHALLENGES INTO OPPORTUNITIES

Times of crisis provide opportunities for change. Though the evolving
health crisis once felt like running a marathon with no finishing line, it did
offer every one of us a golden chance to emerge stronger and better.

The pandemic fundamentally changed the way we work, stimulating
innovations and accelerating the pace of digital transformation. Currently,
the Housing Society has 25 projects that are being planned or in
development. Over the next 20 years, they will contribute more than
40,000 subsidised housing units of various kinds with some 28,000 units
to be completed in about 10 years. While our housing production will
reach an unprecedented peak, innovative technologies and smart
construction methods are being deployed to closely monitor the quality
of all projects and ensure their timely delivery. Building Information
Modelling (BIM) technology and Modular Integrated Construction (MiC)
are two examples of the new approaches we are adopting in building
construction. Where appropriate, they are being fully utilised in new
housing projects.

Property management has also gone digital with Internet of Things (loT)
technology being applied to achieve higher efficiencies and lower
operational costs. This enables property management teams, even
without patrols, to acquire on-the-go facility data and better control
facilities across the properties.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22
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WALKING HAND IN HAND WITH THE COMMUNITY

As a corporate citizen, the Housing Society plays a key role in supporting
the community. Serving our community and residents through these hard
times was challenging, yet also provided opportunities for us to foster the
spirit of mutual support and build closer ties. At the onset of the fifth
COVID-19 wave, we launched a Community Care Campaign at a budget
of HK$12 million, together with other initiatives such as rent concessions
for commercial tenants that offered timely assistance to those struggling
to stay afloat.

Helping the elderly age at home and addressing the needs of the most
vulnerable are among our major initiatives. Although operations of the
RCHE were disrupted by the fifth wave of COVID-19, our frontline staff
remained steadfast and closely monitored the health of elderly residents.
We also went the extra mile by introducing a range of additional
measures beyond the regulatory requirements to strengthen protection
for our most vulnerable residents.

At rental estates and elderly housing developments, additional manpower
was deployed to support the elderly. The multi-disciplinary CES (Caring,
Engaging and Smart) Team was tasked with meeting the housing, health
and social needs of tenants across 20 rental estates. Together with
colleagues from the Senior Citizen Residences Scheme, they distributed
tailor-made videos and leaflets to elderly tenants, teaching them the
proper procedures for conducting rapid antigen tests and reporting the
test results to the Government. Emergency food packs were also
delivered to needy elderly tenants who were under compulsory home
quarantine.

The Housing Society has mapped out a clear vision to address the
housing needs of the elderly in Hong Kong. The project under the Senior
Citizen Residences Scheme at Lee Kung Street in Hung Hom, our third
project under this scheme, has entered the final stage with completion
targeted for late 2022. A ten-storey rental block at Jat Min Chuen,
scheduled for completion in 2023, is another initiative that optimises
existing resources to create new housing for the elderly.
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CONTRIBUTING TO A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

The ever-changing operating environment led us to reconsider the
capabilities we have at our fingertips and plan for an unpredictable future.

As a “housing laboratory”, the Housing Society must progress with the
times and explore various housing options to address the different needs
of all ages in Hong Kong. In the first half of 2021, we commissioned The
Chinese University of Hong Kong to undertake an 18-month
intergenerational living study. This explored innovative ideas for
subsidised elderly housing models and recommended those that the
Housing Society should pilot in the future.

MAINTAINING BEST CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

As a well-established organisation with a more than 70-year history, the
Housing Society is committed to maintaining the highest corporate
governance standards. This is crucial for our long-term success,
especially in an ever-changing operating environment. To uphold
openness and accountability, a whistleblowing policy was established
during the year. Employees, customers, suppliers and contractors are all
encouraged to report any malpractice or suspected irregularities related
to the Housing Society through an established reporting channel on a
strictly confidential basis.

During the year, our corporate performance evaluation mechanism was

reviewed with enhancements to better measure corporate achievements
in different business lines throughout the year.
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With these major updates, we strive to maintain a healthy corporate
culture that values excellence, transparency, ethics and integrity which
are all core to our continued growth and reputation.

TOGETHER WE ACHIEVE EXCELLENCE

Our outstanding performances have received numerous recognitions
from local and overseas organisations, among these were several “Oscars”
for their respective professional sectors.

Credit must go to everyone at the Housing Society for achieving such
excellent results. | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
Members of the Supervisory Board, Executive Committee and other
Committees for their time and invaluable advices on the Housing
Society’s strategic development throughout the year. | am also thankful
to the Management for formulating the corporate development strategies
and business plans and for leading a wonderful team of more than 1,400
colleagues through such a tough year.

In 2023, the Housing Society will celebrate its 75™ anniversary. We are
looking forward to joining hands with all stakeholders to contribute to the
housing industry and create even more quality homes for those in need.
Through dedication and versatility, | am confident that the Housing
Society, together with all the people of Hong Kong, will continue to thrive
in the new chapter of Hong Kong.

1Sett. Mok

Walter Chan Kar-lok, sss, Jp
Chairman

15 June 2022
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The Housing Society is
committed to offering
suitable and affordable
housing atfuned to

the needs of Hong
Kong people, not to

be distracted by the
disruptions brought by
the unseen challenges
in the past year.
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Vision directs actions. This is particularly important as we are sailing
through the various difficulties with the economic and social environment
in the last couple of years. The Housing Society has a clear vision to
provide quality and innovative housing solutions and management to
serve the needs of the Hong Kong community. As a provider and
manager of more than 54,000 homes under various schemes for over
120,000 residents, the Housing Society is committed to offering suitable
and affordable housing attuned to the needs of Hong Kong people, not
to be distracted by the disruptions brought by the unseen challenges in
the past year.

Working under the shadow of COVID-19, we continued taking forward
our development plans to create quality homes for Hong Kong people.
On-site construction activities and project planning continued in full
swing, despite certain disruption caused by the fifth wave of COVID-19
which broke out in early 2022, the last quarter of the fiscal year. As the
Housing Society will hit peak construction in the coming 10 years, we
conducted several strategic reviews — including a funding plan and
commercial letting strategy — to map out a prudent business plan for our
long-term corporate development. We also revamped the annual
corporate planning framework, by clearly defining the Strategic Objectives
and Performance Goals of divisions, and better aligning them to the
corporate vision, mission and core values, which helps enhance the
effectiveness of our efforts.

During this turbulent time, the Housing Society sought to maintain
business as usual and ensure that essential services were provided to the
highest professional standards, even though a number of our staff tested
positive for COVID-19. This was only possible thanks to the resilience
and perseverance demonstrated by our team who are highly
commendable.

As a socially responsible organisation, the Housing Society never
overlooks those individuals who are struggling within the community
because of the pandemic’s territory-wide impact. Additional resources
and measures were deployed in a timely way to address the financial
needs of residents within our estates, as well as those who were hardest
hit by the pandemic.
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ROBUST DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR HOUSING
PROJECTS

Despite all these challenges, we pressed ahead with various housing
projects in line with Government policy. They are progressing well and
include projects of Rental Estate Redevelopment, Subsidised Sale Flats (SSF),
Dedicated Rehousing Estates (DRE), and housing projects for the elderly,
be they under construction or at the planning stage.

Redeveloping Old Rental Estates

Redeveloping old rental estates is no simple process. It involves
identifying suitable sites to build decanting estates and rehousing
thousands of residents who have often lived in these estates for decades.
During the year, flats were handed over to residents of the Ming Wah Dai
Ha (MWDH) Phase | Redevelopment upon completion. After decanting
the condemned rental blocks, demolition work for the Phase I
Redevelopment commenced in the first half of 2022.

The MWDH Phase | Redevelopment not only provides a better living
environment with comprehensive facilities and green spaces, it also offers
72 accessible units for the elderly that are designed to be age-friendly
with barrier-free features. Another 330 units (around a third of the 966
units in Phase ) feature adaptable designs that meet the special needs of
seniors and wheelchair users, helping to create an intergenerational-living
community. The Phase Il and Phase Il Redevelopments will provide
additional 1,600 and 1,300 units (750 SSF and some 600 Senior Citizen
Residences Scheme units), bringing the total number of units within the
entire MWDH redevelopment to over 3,900.

During the year, we continued working on the redevelopment of Yue
Kwong Chuen and Kwun Tong Garden Estate II. Planning applications for
both projects have been submitted while works have started on the
foundations for their decanting sites at Shek Pai Wan Road and Ting On
Street respectively.

Subsidised Sale Flats

27 rescinded units in our three SSF projects — Greenhill Villa in Sha Tin,
Mount Verdant in Tseung Kwan O and Terrace Concerto in Tuen Mun —
were put up for re-sale through the Hong Kong Housing Authority’s “Sale
of Home Ownership Scheme (HOS) Flats 2022”.
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At the same time, six SSF projects located at Jockey Club Road, Kai Tak
Area 2B Site 1, Anderson Road Quarry and Yuen Long are either at the
planning stage or under construction and will deliver over 6,000
affordable units to home buyers between 2025 and 2028.

Dedicated Rehousing Estates

Construction progressed well at three of our DRE projects — Pak Wo
Road, Kai Tak Area 1E Site 1 and Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen New
Development Area (NDA) Phases | and Il — while two new projects, Kwu
Tung North and Ma Tau Kok Link Site, are being planned. Among these,
the Pak Wo Road, Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen NDA and Kwu Tung North
projects are located in the Northern Metropolis which will serve as an
economic and residential hub for around 2.5 million residents as one of
the Government’s strategic plans unveiled last October. The above-mentioned
DRE projects will provide over 10,000 housing units.

Urban Squatter Areas

We are committed to supporting the Government in responding to the
community’s housing needs by applying our experience in housing
construction and integrated community planning. Upon the Government’s
invitation, we have undertaken to redevelop three urban squatter areas at
Cha Kwo Ling Village, Ngau Chi Wan Village and Chuk Yuen United Village
and planning work has already started with good progress. These three
redevelopment projects will boost housing supply, adding another 8,800
units.
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Housing for the Elderly

The Housing Society has deployed considerable resources to respond to
the city’s rapidly ageing population. We piloted several affordable yet
high-quality elderly housing projects to demonstrate the concepts of
“ageing-in-place” and “intergenerational living”.

Our two new elderly housing projects at Lee Kung Street (312 units) and
Jat Min Chuen (64 units) that cater for different income groups are
expected for completion in 2022 and 2023 respectively. As the Housing
Society’s third project under the Senior Citizen Residences Scheme, the
Lee Kung Street project targets elderly people in the middle-income
bracket. On the other hand, the Jat Min Chuen project will offer seniors in
the estate rent-free lifelong tenancies as an incentive to surrender their
under-occupied flats.

Transitional Housing

To optimise existing housing resources and allow families queuing for
public rental housing an opportunity to improve their living environment
more quickly, we first launched the T-Home transitional housing scheme
in 2018. Currently, the five T-Home projects in operation are at Yue
Kwong Chuen, Kwun Tong Garden Estate, Chun Seen Mei Chuen,
MWDH and Trackside Villas. The latest addition at MWDH, for example,
offers a total of 112 domestic units suitable for 2 to 4-person households.
With other rental estates to be redeveloped, additional vacant units
awaiting redevelopment will be converted into T-Home units.

COMBAT AGAINST THE VIRUS

The Housing Society sees its role beyond a housing provider in a
conventional sense. For over 70 years, the Housing Society has stood
shoulder to shoulder with the people of Hong Kong through good times
and bad. When the city was combating COVID-19, we once again
introduced various relief measures to support people from every walk of
life. During the year, we provided two rounds of rent concessions to
commercial tenants while domestic tenants had enjoyed a one-month
rent waiver in October 2021.
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Helping our tenants has been a worthwhile cause, demonstrating the
Housing Society’s commitment to supporting the community through
these difficult times. We were relieved to learn that there was no
significant increase in void rate of our commercial premises during the
fifth, and most severe wave of COVID-19, due in no small part to the
timely financial support we offered to our commercial tenants.

The “Bounce Back Together” Shopping Promotion Campaign launched
in August 2021 and the Community Care Campaign in March 2022
further testified our commitment to the community. The former helped
boost local consumption by distributing about HK$20 million worth of
shopping coupons to our tenants and families in need within the
community. The latter, worth some HK$12 million, offered immediate
relief to people needing help to get through COVID-19. Over 50,000 anti-
pandemic kits as well as financial aid and mental health support were
given away. We also created hundreds of temporary and short-term jobs
by recruiting people to provide anti-epidemic customer services in our
estates, shopping centres and wet markets.

To safeguard the health of residents, we increased cleaning and
disinfection services across our rental estates and managed properties.
We also provided the frontline staff who offer emergency on-site support
and services to tenants with enhanced PPE gear such as masks, face
shields and protective clothing.

We strengthened preventive measures at all offices and construction
sites. Vaccine Passes are currently compulsory at our offices and sites, at
which all staff and site workers must show they have been fully
vaccinated against COVID-19 before entering the premises.
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WEAVING NETWORK BUILDING TEAM

Social distancing should not mean severing ties with the community. The
pandemic prompted us to find new ways to connect with our
stakeholders. With the help of technology, community engagement has
taken on new forms. We found creative ways to keep stakeholders
engaged, but in safe distances. Several community events went virtual or
hybrid, for example, the annual Hong Kong Housing Society Award
ceremony, which succeeded in offering an experience that was equally
enjoyable for both digital and physical participants.

The Housing Society offers scholarships and bursaries to young talents
who one day will take the helm and steer Hong Kong's housing
development into a new era. Members of the Housing Society Academy
Alumni Club, formed by the awardees, joined an initiative to make phone
calls to over one thousand elderly tenants living in our rental estates —
and offer them love and support at a time when many were socially
isolated by the pandemic.

Online volunteer training and regular neighbourhood gatherings were
organised by the CES (Caring, Engaging and Smart) Team and a website
offering services for the elderly was revamped into an interactive online
education platform.

To encourage intergenerational solidarity and create common goals for
residents old and young, we piloted an innovative estate-based
intergenerational programme in Jat Min Chuen that helped both
generations connect through captivating games and sports.
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Qur triennial full corporate team-building training programme “New
Dimensions, Together We Achieve” helped bring staff closer to the
community through activities such as painting metal gates for elderly
people living alone in our rental estates and preparing meals for those in
need. Small actions can have big impact. By giving back to the
community, people from different backgrounds can better connect and

collectively support the community.

KEEPING COLLECTIVE MEMORIES ALIVE

Apart from building homes that transform lives for the better, we also
maintain the community networks that bind people together. During
redevelopment projects, we treasure the countless precious memories
that every brick and tile is imbued with.

We launched a comprehensive cultural heritage preservation project in
tandem with the redevelopment of old rental estates that includes a wide
range of initiatives. A website dedicated to MWDH is the first of many
such sites. It contains interesting stories about MWDH from over half a
century ago, such as insights into the first residents and the then building
and property management staff. A series of sketches illustrating the
spatial design of MWDH are also available online. We have also reserved
physical spaces, both indoors and outdoors, at the redeveloped estate
for setting up an exhibition corner. After it is fully redeveloped, these will
showcase signature features from the original estate as well as household
items from years gone by.

Our rental estates have witnessed Hong Kong’s evolution and their
communities are therefore valuable assets. Through preserving the
history and culture of these estates, different generations, old and young,
can learn more about our past and also how these environments and the
residents who lived there changed and also evolved.

FORMULATING EFFECTIVE ESG STRATEGIES

Sustainability has taken a centre stage in the development of all
businesses, locally and globally. For an organisation like the Housing
Society, the public increasingly expect us to advance environmental,
social and governance (ESG) goals through our operations.
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To ensure sustainability priorities compatible with the Housing Society’s
strategic objectives and woven into our corporate culture, we have
established a cross-division sustainability working group. This puts
sustainability into practice in such areas as housing development,
property management and related services, community building, new
talent development as well as our corporate functions.

Last October, the Government launched Hong Kong’s Climate Action
Plan 2050, outlining the strategies and targets for combating climate
change and achieving carbon neutrality by 2050. The Housing Society
has supported by joining as a Carbon Neutrality partner and setting
targets in various areas such as energy saving and green buildings, green
transport and waste reduction. Aspiring to be an innovative housing
solution provider with a global vision, the Housing Society is committed
to playing its part in advancing long-term sustainability by minimising the
ecological footprint of its daily operations.

To better measure our sustainability performance, we introduced a new
ESG section into our Annual Report. This complements our Sustainability
Report which is compiled every year to comply with the “Global Reporting
Initiative Standards: Core Option”.

INNOVATING FOR A BETTER FUTURE

As a “housing laboratory”, we continue driving innovation and exploring
new long-term business development opportunities. Formed in 2020, our
Policy Research and Business Innovation Unit plays a pivotal role in
strengthening our research capabilities for long-term development and
jump-starting innovative solutions. To encourage bottom-up innovative
ideas, we launched a Pilot Technology Seed Fund in November 2021.
The Fund incentivises staff-driven innovations and technology solutions
which will enhance business efficiency. Up to HK$500,000 is granted to
each successful application. Three plans have been approved so far and
have all been successfully executed.

Smart construction solutions are critical to the industry’s sustainable
development and digitalisation is enabling more efficient project
management and control. Modular Integrated Construction (MiC) was
being adopted for two projects at construction stage — Hung Shui Kiu/
Ha Tsuen NDA Phase IA (MiC in concrete) and Jat Min Chuen elderly
housing project (MiC in steel). Another project down the pipeline, a rental
block at Kwu Tung North, will use MiIC. This technique reduces
construction time and waste on site, contributing to a more sustainable
environment.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22
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Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen NDA Phase A is also one of our four projects
currently adopting Building Information Modeling (BIM), a smart
construction solution. The other three are the Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen
NDA Phase IB, Kai Tak Area 1E Site 1, and Ting On Street rental estate
development.

We are also developing our own Digital Works Supervision System (DWSS)
that includes a Request for Inspection and Survey Check (RISC) function.
This technology is being applied in eight projects including the Senior
Citizen Residences Scheme in Lee Kung Street and we will deploy it for
all new projects in the next few years.

FINDING SOLUTIONS TO FUTURE LIVING NEEDS

To keep pace with the times, the Housing Society constantly explores
new housing options to meet the needs of different age groups. In
response to Hong Kong’s rapidly ageing population, a feasibility study
was conducted to explore designs for different types of domestic units
that offer greater accessibility and adaptability. As part of the study,
several flat prototypes were constructed to better evaluate different
design concepts. By championing the dual concepts of “ageing-in-place”
and “intergenerational harmony”, we like to see industry practitioners in
Hong Kong to apply similar provisions in their developments, and thereby
create more sustainable homes for the community.

Last year, we initiated another pilot study to study intergenerational living
models for Hong Kong. A working group was established across divisions
to facilitate inter-disciplinary inputs. To be completed in 2022, the study
will recommend creative housing ideas that better meet the needs of the
elderly and guide the future housing development of the Housing Society.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Amid a very challenging operating environment, yet we have kept
spending within budget and our financial performance has achieved an
operating surplus of HK$80 million during the fiscal year. But due to the
highly volatile global economy and financial market, the net deficit of
HK$1,260 milion was recorded which was attributed to investment
losses and the dearth of property sales. Despite this, our financial position
remains healthy. As at 31 March 2022, our net assets were valued at
HK$48.7 billion.
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With a commitment to complete around 28,000 flats in about ten years,
the Management devised a detailed funding plan and strategy to ensure
that sufficient funds are in place to support the planning and construction
of various housing schemes over the medium to long term.

WORKING TOWARD A COMMON VISION

| would like to express my heartfelt thanks to the Members of the
Supervisory Board and Executive Committee for their guidance and
support over the past year. And we could not have risen to the
unprecedented challenges again without the tireless input of the
management team, and our frontline and back-of-house colleagues who
had pursued excellence and performed ordinary tasks extraordinarily well
during a time of great adversity.

To build a future-ready organisation, developing and retaining a pool of
talent is critical. We will continue to review our talent acquisition strategy
and develop bespoke learning programmes for high-potential employees.
| am delighted to see the completion of our new Operations Headquarter
at 1063 King’s Road and the renovation of our Corporate Office on the
28/F of the World Trade Centre. The new working environments have
created space for our staff to encourage greater synergy.

Dozens of approved housing projects now rest on our shoulders,
together with the commitment to be a responsible corporate citizen and
continuous development. While there may always be something not
entirely under our control like the pandemic, by holding onto our faith and
vision, the Housing Society’s future success lies in our hands. With the
unwavering support of our whole team, | look forward to forging ahead
— and

with our mission of “Create Homes - Revive Communities”

developing a more inclusive and sustainable future for Hong Kong.

C

—
—

James Chan Yum-min
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

15 June 2022
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(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 A #2)

Mr James Chan Yum-min

BRES K&

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director,
Hong Kong Housing Society
EEEEBSTRAHFNTERSE
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Mr Yu Tak-cheung J,
REHLE,
Director of Buildings, HKSAR Government

BEAFINTHREBENEFEER
(up to 28 November 2021) (20214 11 A28 H)

Mr Au Choi-kai sss
B B fE S A ses
Former Director of Buildings, HKSAR Government

ERFRTHRENEFEMNER
(up to 2 September 2021) (2202149 A 2H)

Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man v+, up
B X v, e

Professor, Department of Building and Real Estate,
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
EEBIRBEERBHEZSRAHAR

(up to 2 September 2021) (22021 F9 A2 H)

Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi ags, sas
B i 55 & ess, sBs

Former Director of Buildings, HKSAR Government
ERFAITHRENEFENE R
(up to 2 September 2021) (£2021 49 A2 )
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Corporate Structure #8 &% 4%

Photo taken at new Corporate Office of the Housing Society

BREGHCERERE
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Corporate Structure #8428 4%

CHAIRMAN VICE-CHAIRMAN EX OFFICIO MEMBER

hY E AY ,lé&' [ = =
E Bl EE EREER
Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok sas, Jp 2 Prof Ling Kar-kan sas 3 Miss Agnes Wong Tin-yu sp
B 2% 4% 5% 4 sps,up & = BB ss EFXFLtor
Consultant, China Appointed Attesting Officer, Director, Jockey Club Design Institute for Permanent Secretary for Housing cum
So, Lung & Associates Solicitors Social Innovation, Director of Housing, HKSAR Government
BREERMEKMEREM FEZEATA The Hong Kong Polytechnic University BEEFITHERREEREENER

ERRIRBESSHLEAIMRXThas HEEEER
MEMBERS
£8
Mr Au Choi-kai sss 7 Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan jp 10 Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui sss, Jp
B & 1 5% 4 sss BIXELRLw, & 8% T 55 4 BBs,up
Former Director of Buildings, Director, Urbantraces Limited Founder & Managing Director,
HKSAR Government WHETERATES Resolutions HR & Business Consultancy Co Limited
EEBITHRBNFEFENE K ERAS REABERBRRAA
(from 2 September 2021) (2021479 A2 B i¢) i ) BIRAREBESR
8 Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan ass, s,
: - e =+ GBs, P )
Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu WO 2t css 11 Mr Stanley Wong Yuen-fai sas, up
ﬁ 7 ‘F 5'[', 4 Former Permanent Secretary for Labour and Welfare, =y
= HKSAR Government LR R
Former General Manager — Mainland China Property, EEENTHRREBFS IREND Chairman, Advisory Council on the Environment
MTR Corporation Ltd BEEWER REAKAZBEIR
BEEEEBRDFAAKLE-—FEANMYE
Mr D d Chan Kwok-Kit 9 Sr Prof Wong Bay 12 Mr James Chan Yum-min
roesmond than Kwok-Ki EXE-E 0 1F L] Bk 40 %
Past Chairman, Hong Kong Green Building Council Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director,

Head of Finance, Investment Services & IT, EAhGEREZ O TE Hong Kong Housing Society
AlA Investment Management HK Limited EAEEMETRESFZRITASRSE

RARBEERREERAF
B RERBRMRBEE

Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping sss, s»
B8 T2 Al ses op
Chartered Civil Engineer

LS e 7 N 3.
(up to 2 September 2021) (22021 F9 A2 H)
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE
REZEY

Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok SBS, JrP (Chairman)
R 5% 84 5% 4E sBs, JP (£ /&)

Miss Agnes Wong Tin-yu JP (Ex Officio Member)
EFXFLLtP(EARZE)

Mr William Chau Chun-wing VH, JP
B K EmH, P

Dr Lam Ching-choi SBS, JP
MK IE B7 88 4 sBsS, uP
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 A #)

Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen P
REIRELE P

Prof Ling Kar-kan sB8s
BEEYHWBS

Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi GBS, SBS
BB 5% 3§ % 4 GBS, sBS

Mr James Chan Yum-min

PR R 5 5 &

Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man vH, JpP
B LB MH, JP
(up to 2 September 2021) (£2021 49 H2H)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BERZEY

Prof Philip Lo Kai-wah (Chairman)
BRREHE(EF)
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 H #E)

Mr Chan Bing-woon SBS, MBE, JP
5 47 I & “E SBS, MBE, JP

Mr Brian Chau
BAEERE

Mr Pius Cheng Kai-wah
BERE L E

Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man vH, JpP
B LB MH, uP
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 A &)

Mr Dick Kwok Ngok-chung vH
SE R K EMH

Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted
MKEEE

Dr Tony Leung Ka-tung
REREL

Dr Leung Kam-shing
REBHEL

Ms Anita Leung Ping-fun
RARZL

Mr Eliott Hancock Suen

BREBEE

Mr Wilson Wong Chiu-sang
EFHEXE

Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi GBS, SBS
BB 8 5t 4 GBS, SBS
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 B #8)

Mr Robert Young Man-kim
BREBEE
(from 2 September 2021) (2021 F9 A2 H #2)

Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum (Chairman)
BEXREE(ER)
(up to 2 September 2021) (£2021F9 A2 H)

Mr Laurence Ho Hoi-ming
g EE
(up to 2 September 2021) (£ 2021 9 A2 H)

Dr Isaac Ng Ka-chui

RRPF L

(up to 2 September 2021) (£ 2021 9 A2 H)
Mr Nicholas Tan Tsung-yuan

RAETRE
(up to 2 September 2021) (£ 2021 9 A2 H)
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HUMAN RESOURCES
COMMITTEE
ANERZES

Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui 88S, JP (Chairman)
885 % 4 8BS, P (£ %)
(from 2 September 2021) (2021 F9 A2 H #2)

Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-kit
R Bl 4% 5% £
(from 2 September 2021) (2021 459 2 A #£)

Mr Patrick Lau Lai-chiu SBS
2| B8 5% £ sBs

Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah VvH, JP
BRERE MH, P

Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum
BEXRELE

Mr Eddie Ng Hak-kim GBS, Jr
R Rk EGCBS, P
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 H #E)

Sr Kenneth Pang Tsan-wing SBS
EZ-E R b

Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping B85S, JP (Chairman)
BSAF TR MBS P (ETF)
(up to 2 September 2021) (£2021F9 A2 H)

Mr William Chau Chun-wing VH, JP
BB T EMH, 0P
(up to 2 September 2021) (£ 20214F9 A2 H)

Mr James Siu Kai-lau
BROELEAE
(up to 2 September 2021) (£ 20214F9 A2 H)



SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON
ELDERLY HOUSING
REFEFHZES

Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan GBS, JP (Chairman)
EEW L toBs P(ERE)

Ms Ophelia Chan Chiu-ling 88s
BR W # Z 8BS

Mr Lawrence Lam Yin-ming

MEREE

Dr Lau Kwok-yu Jr
2EmELor

Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah vH, JP
BRELEVH P

Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee VH, JP
BHBEE L LT VH P

Ms Sarah Mui Sze-wa

BREZL

Dr Isaac Ng Ka-chui
RER#BEL
(from 2 September 2021) (2021 9 A2 H #8)

Sr Kenneth Pang Tsan-wing S58S
ZE KRR BRI SBS
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 H #8)

Mr Nicholas Tan Tsung-yuan
RETEE
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 H #R)

Ms Theresa Yeung Wing-shan
Bk MLt

Mr Robert Young Man-kim
BRMBEE

Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu
PREE K&
(up to 2 September 2021) (22021 9 A2 H)

Mr Patrick Lau Lai-chiu SBS
2B & %k £sBs
(up to 2 September 2021) (2021 F9 A2 H)

Mrs Miranda Leung Chan Che-ming
RREHLE
(up to 2 September 2021) (2021 F9 A2 1)

Dr Danny Wan Tak-fai
FEEE L
(up to 2 September 2021) (22021 9 A2 H)

Mr Henry Yap Fat-suan

ERELEE
(up to 2 September 2021) (22021 9 A2 H)

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON
INVESTMENT
REBHZEES

Mr Stanley Wong Yuen-fai S5S, JP (Chairman)
HEB L LSS P (EE)

(Chairman — from 2 September 2021;
Member — up to 2 September 2021)

(F/& —2021F9H2H#

Z 8 — E202149A2A)

Ms Linda Kwo Lai-ming

ERHzL

Mr Ambrose Lam Shiu-kong
MIKT EE
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 B i)

Mr Joseph Lee Chin-wai
TREXE

Mr Martin K Matsui
MHBREE

Mr Neville Shroff up
RHFEEE £EoPr

Mr Eliott Hancock Suen
REBEE
(from 2 September 2021) (2021 9 A2 H #8)

Mr Nicholas Tan Tsung-yuan
BRSBTS E
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 H #E)

Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-kit (Chairman)
TR B e (7))
(up to 2 September 2021) (£2021F9 A2 H)

Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted
MKkELEE
(up to 2 September 2021) (£ 2021 9 A2 H)

Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum
BXRREE
(up to 2 September 2021) (20219 A2 H)

Mr lan Grant Robinson
BERSEE
(up to 2 September 2021) (£ 2021 9 A2 H)

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON
PLANNING, DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION
FERARGIREELIR
BRHEEE

Sr Prof Wong Bay (Chairman)
HLHBRUEM(EF)

Mr Au Choi-kai s8S
E#EEXESBS

Mr Conrad Fung Kwok-keung
BEMEE
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Mr Francis Lam Ka-fai
MREBEE
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 H i)

Mr Lam Sze-chuen

MBEELEE

Prof Phyllis Li Chi-miu 885
FEEHRBBS

Prof Philip Lo Kai-wah
BERERR

Mr Felix Lok Man-fai
BRXEEE

Mr Man Wai-ming
XEREE

Mr Kyran Sze viH
e X BR 5 & viH

Ms Theresa Yeung Wing-shan
Bzt
(from 2 September 2021) (202149 A2 H #E)

Mr Chan Ka-kui GBS, JP
FR R B % 4 GBS, P
(up to 2 September 2021) (22021 49 F2 H)

Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan Jr
A XELLP
(up to 2 September 2021) (£2021F9 A2 H)

TASK FORCE ON
FINANCING
MBEE N

Mr Stanley Wong Yuen-fai SBS, JP
(Chairman/Ex Officio Member)
HEREBEESES P(EF/EAREZE)

(Ex Officio Member — from 2 September 2021)
(EAZE —2021F9A2A#)

Mr Peter Shieh Yue-shan (Ex Officio Member)
WFELEE(ERZE)

Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-kit

FoR B 6 55 &

(Member — from 2 September 2021;

Ex Officio Member — up to 2 September 2021)
(8 — 20215 9A2H8#:

EAEZE —E202159H2R)

Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted
MOKEEE

Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen JP

RERELER

Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum
BXRKREE

Mr Martin K Matsui
MHBEE
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Dr Johnnie Casire Chan Chi-kau sBS, JpNo¢!

B A BR 18 + sBs, Up ®!

Mr Kenneth Chan Chi-yuk
REB K&

Mr Stephen Chan Chit-kwai B8S, JP
BR £ & 5% £ 8BS, JP

Mr William Chan Fu-keung B85S
R = 3 5 £68S

Mr Chan Ka-kui GBS, Jp N°te2
BR = B 5% 4 GBS, JPH2

Mr Paul Chan Kam-cheung 8BS, JP
B &8 ¥ 5t 4 8BS, P

Mr Chan Kwong-choi
BRETHE

Mr Chan Pak-joe
BR B £ e

Mr Kenneth Chan Yat-sun
BR— L

Mr Chau Cham-son OBE, JP
& & 8 5% &£ OBE, UP

Dr Cheng Hon-kwan GBS, OBE, JP
¥R 5E 89 18 + GBS, OBE, P

Mr Anthony Cheng Kwok-bo
=

Mr Edward Cheng Wai-sun GBS, JP
B 4 57 % £ GBS, UP

Mr Cheng Yan-kee B85S, JP
R BB 55 4 88S, uP

Mr Albert Cheung Ho-sang JP
REEEFEEP

Mr Simon Cheung
REXEE

Prof Rebecca Chiu Lai-har vH, JP
HEBREVH P

Mr Raymond Chow Ming-joe
BAHEXE

Mrs Peter Choy Pun Siu-fun vBE, JP
88 D % 2+ MBE UP

Dr Chung Shui-ming GBS, JP
& 5% B 18 L GBS, uP

Ms Hilary Cordell
REBELL

Mr Fan Sai-yee JP
Bt EEER

Mr Joseph Fan Wai-kuen Jr
BREEEEP

Mr Bosco Fung Chee-keung S58s
BWEREESBS

Mr Edmund Ho Hin-kwan
T8 k&

Mr Laurence Ho Hoi-ming Nt¢?

g E=

Ms Loretta Ho Pak-ching
ARAEZ L

Ms Katherine Hung Siu-lin
RO ELZL

Mr Jacky Ip Kam-shing Nt¢*
S E P S

Mr Simon Ip Sik-on GBS, CBE, JP
H 85 R % £ GBS, CBE JP

Mr Leo Kung Lin-cheng GBS, JP
SR EEGCBS, P

Mr Josiah Kwok Chin-lai
FREEE

Mr Kwok Kwok-chuen 8BS, JP
BB & % £ BBS, JP

Mr Kevin Kwong Ka-wing

BRXEE

Mr Francis Lam Ka-fai N°te®

PR S 2

Mr Ambrose Lam Shiu-kong N°*¢®

RJEST St =

Mr Daniel Lau King-shing
BEREE

Prof Francis Lau Shiu-kwan B85

2B W™BBS

Mr Edward Lau Tat-chiu
ZEHKE

Mr Winkie Lau Wai-kit
ZEGEE
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Mr Francis Law Hoo-yan

BEICEE

Ms Lilian Law Suk-kwan \viH, JP
BNE L L MH, P

Mr Stuart Hamilton Leckie OBE, Jp Note?
2 {3 5 4 OBE, UPET

Mr Lee Choy-sang "°t®
T E S ER

Mr Lawrence Lee Kam-hung 58S, JP

=& k%8BS P

Mr David C Lee Tsung-hei 8BS, JP
ZEE KL EBBS P

Mr Michael Lee Tze-hau Jp No'¢?
FFE£EPE

Mr Sunny Lee Wai-kwong 8BS, JP
K K EBBS UP

Mrs Cecilia Lee Yip Wai-kay 8BS, MBE
Z 3 E W 17 + 8BS MBE

Mrs Miranda Leung Chan Che-ming “**"°

RREH L L=

Mr Donald Leung Chi-shing N°t¢”
R S AT

Mr Leung Chin-man Jr
REXFEER

Mr Martin Leung Oh-man
REXEE

Mr Robert Leung Wing-tong
RAKERE

Dr Lawrence Li Kwok-chang Jr

TEEEEP

Mr Paul Li Man-hong Nete?
ERELEEY

Mr Philip Liao Yi-kang
BEREE

Prof Bernard V Lim Wan-fung 8BS, JP
MEEHEBBS P

Ms Sharon Liu Chung-gay
EEELZL

Mr Alex Lo Ching-yuen Nete4
BREBELES



Mr Antony Lo Hong-sui
BAWEE

Mr John Loo Wun-loong VBE, Jp Note 1!
I = 8 5t £ vBE, Jp B

Prof David Lung Ping-yee SBS, MBE, JP
BE 1 B #4 #% sBS, MBE, JP

Dr Kim Mak Kin-wah 88s, JP
EREH 8BS P

Mr Bernard Mak Siu-cheung
ERFEE

Mr Peter Mok Kwok-woo

EEMEE

Mr James C Ng Chi-ming
REPEE

Mr Eddie Ng Hak-kim GBS, Jp N2
KRR EEGES PH?

Mr Pang Yuk-ling SBs, JP
= E B EsBS IP

Mr Ronald Poon Cho-yiu Nete™!
BEELEER

Mr Sanford Poon Yuen-fong

BRI KL

Director (Property Management), HKHS
EiHhasE(WEER)

Dr Peter Pun Kwok-shing SBS, OBE
& B 3 18 £ sBs, osE

Mr Brian Renwick
FHITRE

Mr lan Grant Robinson Mo”1

BB LT

Mr Peter Shieh Yue-shan
#ELEE

Director (Corporate Planning and Finance), HKHS

A B (R R EI R B 75)

Mr Charles Sin Cho-chiu 08"
B M 5 & o B

Mr Sin Wai-sang
HEERE

Mr James Siu Kai-lau N°™*

WRELE

Mr Victor So Hing-woh S5s, JP
B B M £ sBs, op

Mr Terence Tai Chun-to

BEREE

Mr Tang Ping-kwong
B K&

Mr Jacob Tsang Chung
BWEE

Dr Wong Chack-kie VH
TEEBLvH

Mr Mike Wong Chik-wing Jr
HEEREEP,

Mr Wong Chun-shiu 58S
iR # Sk E8BS

Ms Wong Fung-yi
IRELZL

Mr Wong Kit-loong
HEHRELE

Miss Wong Lai-chun 58S
FEB® /) EBBS

Mrs Julia Wong Ng Wenh-ky
ERWkHELL

Dr Kennedy Wong Ying-ho 8B5S, JP
HERRE 8BS P

Mr Frankie Wong Yuet-leung
EAREAE

Mr Hugh Wu Sai-him
R EE

Mr Andrew Yao Cho-fai 8BS, JP
1k 48 #& 5%t &£ 8BS, UP

Mr Henry Yap Fat-suan "°t'°
HERHEEERT

Mr Eric Yeung Ka-hong

BEREE

Director (Development and Marketing), HKHS
FEHBsE(MEZRRET SRR

Mr Yeung Ka-sing GBS, MBE, JP
B X B 5t £ GBS, MBE, JP
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Mr Franki Yeung Kai-yu
BRBEE

Director (Projects), HKHS
Eihee (TiR%E)

Dr Nicolas Yeung Shu-yan

BEABEL

Mr Peter Dicky Yip B8S, MBE, JP
IE 31 & 5 £ BBS, MBE, JP

Mr Yue Chi-hang sBs

RIGEB % £ sBS
Note
Note 1 Admitted as Housing Society Member

Note 2

Note 3
Note 4

Note 5

Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

Note 9

Note 10

Note 11
Note 12

Note 13

Note 14

=1
2

x4

10
F11
12
13
E14

BEEEHE

on 23 September 2021

Retired as a Member of the

Special Committee on Planning, Design and
Construction on 2 September 2021
Retired as a Member of the

Audit Committee on 2 September 2021
Admitted as Housing Society Member
on 27 January 2022

Appointed as a Member of the
Special Committee on Planning, Design and
Construction on 2 September 2021
Appointed as a Member of the
Special Committee on Investment

on 2 September 2021

Members residing overseas

Resigned as Housing Society Member
on 20 September 2021

Resigned as Housing Society Member
on 31 October 2021

Retired as a Member of the

Special Committee on Elderly Housing
on 2 September 2021

Late

Appointed as a Member of the
Human Resources Committee

on 2 September 2021

Retired as a Member of the

Special Committee on Investment

on 2 September 2021

Retired as a Member of the

Human Resources Committee

on 2 September 2021

202149 A23 AR AEHZE
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ERBINE
2021&9)%205%?&%%’:%5
2021F10 A1 HEIEEHZEE
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Corporate Structure #8 & 28 4%

1 Mr James Chan Yum-min 4 Mr Eric Yeung Ka-hong 7 Ms Pamela Leung Yi-lin
BR SR % 5 & BEREE REELL
BA(Hons) BSc(Surv)(Hons), MHKIS, MRICS, RPS(GP) BA(Hons), MMgt(MGSM)
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Director (Development and Marketing) Corporate Communications Director
THRAHFENTERSE BEWMEERRRTISER) PEEMBE
2 Mr Sanford Poon Yuen-fong 5 Mr Franki Yeung Kai-yu 8 Mr Franco Cheung Koon-wah
IR & BRI ELE REELE
BSc(Hons), MSocSc(Urban Studlies), MHousMan, BA(AS), B.Bldg, FRICS, FHKIS, MCIArb, BEng SC, M Const. Mgt, M Mgt, MBA, MHKIE,
EMBA(CUHK), PDIpREA(Dist), RPHM, FCIH, MHKIH, AAIQS, RPS(QS) MCIOB, RPE(BLDG)
MHIREA Director (Projects) Assistant Director (Projects)
Director (Property Management) RE(TRKE) By i (T2 &)
BEMEER)
) 6 Ms Kelly Cheung Wing-yee
3 Mr Peter Shieh Yue-shan Eik a4+
o )
#FLEE
BSocSc, MBA
BSc(Econ), ACA, CPA(Practising), EMBA(CUHK)

Human Resources Director
Director (Corporate Planning and Finance) AP B Ruaes
e (P EREIRIB)
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Senior ManagementTeam SR EE A

Mr Chan Wai-ming
REREE

General Manager (Maintenance)

BEE(MERT)

Ms Sarah Chan Yui-yan
[C¥EN g

General Manager (Human Resources)

BIEE(NHER)

Ms Katherine Chu Ka-lin
KEELZT

General Manager (Project Management)
e3P (IHE B1)

Ms Rita Chung Fung-hing
ERMZ L

General Manager (Contract Management)
BERBBHNER)

Mr Gary Fu Siu-lim
HERRE

General Manager (Corporate Communications)
B (hEEH)

Mrs Ada Share lu Yuk-sum
SPELL L

General Manager (Property Management)
IR (M EER)

Mr Charles Kwok Cheong-ping
BEFEE

Head of Treasury

EBEE

Mrs Phoebe Yeung Lai Lai-ling
BEBRLZT

General Manager (Property Management)
IR (MEER)

{0

\

=

Mr Eddie Lam Ka-fai
MEEEE
Head of Corporate Secretarial and

Administrative Services
CEWMERTRERXE

Mr Oliver Law Lin-fat
gEBELE

General Manager (Planning and Development)
BIEE(MERERER)

Mr Kelvin Lee Ka-chun

FEERE

General Manager (Central Technical Team)
IR (BRAT4E S R &)

Mr Bobby Li Hoi-yuen

THRTEE
Head of Quality Audit
mEERIE

Ms Winnie Lok Yuen-ting
BE WIS 2 +

General Manager (Contract Management)
BERBHNER)

Mr Alfred Louie Chung-wai
BREXE

Head of Internal Audit
NEBEZEE

Dr Carmen Ng Ka-man
RREFL

General Manager (Elderly Services)
BB (RERL)

Ms Nettie Ng Kai-ting
EREZL

Head of Policy Research and Business Innovation

BRMEREBRMNEIE
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Mr Peter Or Oi-bon
MEBELE

General Manager (Sales and Marketing)

BEE(HERTHEDR)

Mr Derek Pang Kwok-wah
TEERLE

General Manager (Property Management)
IR (MEER)

Mrs Annie Wong Pun Ching-man
EREN LT

General Manager (Property Management)
IR (Y EER)

Mr Darron Sun Kin-kwok
FRELE

Head of Information Technology

AMMREE

Mr Patrick Tsang Tak-ming
BEEEE

General Manager (Planning and Development)

BRI (MERIRER)

Mr Byron Tse Ka-yiu
i b0 %k A

General Manager (Commercial Leasing)

mgE (mEAE®)

Mr Gordon Tse Tze-yin
HFERE

General Manager (Project Management)
HErR (EE EE)

Mr Vincent Wong Wai-ip
HEXXLE

General Manager (Project Management)
BB (EEER)

Ms Rachel Yeung Ka-bik

BEERL

Head of Corporate Planning and Financial Control
CEREEMBERLE
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Business Overview
EHEE

Riding Out the Pandemic = R&ZEE

Over the last two years, Hong Kong has gradually adapted to the new
normal stemming from the pandemic. The fifth wave of COVID-19 in early
2022, however, brought new and unprecedented challenges at every
level of business and daily life. By going the extra mile, we managed to
maintain business as usual, while ensuring the health and safety of both
our employees and residents, many of whom are highly vulnerable.

THE FIGHT AGAINST THE EPIDEMIC
Staying United and Resilient to Combat COVID-19

By virtue of a collective effort across all divisions, the Housing Society
successfully implemented various anti-pandemic measures to ensure that
essential services were provided in a professional way as usual during the
pandemic. These measures included increasing cleaning and disinfection
efforts across rental estates and managed properties, as well as
providing additional equipment such as masks, face shields and
protective clothing to the frontline staff tasked with delivering urgent
support and repair services to tenants.

Keeping our staff healthy and resilient was key to responding rapidly to
the COVID-19 outbreak and providing the community with quality
services. During the year, the Housing Society activated business
continuity plans to protect staff and minimise the disruption to services.
In addition to splitting teams with some working from home and the other
at the offices to ensure smooth delivery of services, we also introduced
flexible work arrangements and reduced the number of service hours for
customer-facing offices. All our staff and construction site workers had to
strictly observe our Vaccine Pass requirements. We also offered
vaccination leave and other incentives to encourage our staff to get

vaccinated.
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Business Overview ¥ &
Riding Out the Pandemic 7R & E

At construction sites, stringent preventive measures allowed work to
continue. All site workers had to wear their masks at all times and
temperature checks were performed regularly on each worker. Despite
some hiccups brought by the fifth wave of the pandemic, construction at
all the Housing Society’s new projects progressed smoothly.
Nonetheless, the Housing Society fully understands that construction
workers and contractors continue to face hardships due to a shortage of
material and manpower. To ensure that construction work continued
during the pandemic, the Housing Society offered advance discretionary
payments to contractors and consultants, alleviating their short-term
financial difficulties.

Safeguarding the Elderly’s Health

Throughout the pandemic, staff at residential care homes for the elderly
(RCHEs) remained vigilant, working around the clock to closely monitor
the health of elderly residents. Regular temperature checks and daily
rapid antigen tests (RATs) were conducted to ensure timely discovery of
infections and rapid follow-up.

RCHEs established clear and concise protocols for handling RAT-positive
residents. These include promptly reconfiguring accommodation to
separate COVID-19 positive patients from those who are negative cases,
providing free online medical consultations and prescription medicines by
visiting medical officer for patients as well as consultations from
Traditional Chinese Medicine practitioners if requested. At the same time,
in-person visits were suspended according to the Government’s
contingency measure, and live video calls were arranged so RCHE
residents could stay connected with their families.
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In addition to all the regulatory requirements, RCHEs took additional
steps to prevent the virus being transmitted. For example, cleaning and
disinfection measures were enhanced with additional air purifiers being
installed and professional cleaning contractors engaged to conduct
thorough sanitisation inspections throughout the premises. Disinfection
robots were also deployed to patrol critical areas at RCHEs. Furthermore,
all staff at RCHEs were required to perform a daily RAT and test negative
before commencing work.

Stepping Up the Implementation of Innovative
Technologies

Battling the ongoing challenges created by COVID-19 fight is a life or
death struggle. The Housing Society fully understands the importance of
adopting innovative technologies to reduce transmission of the virus and
maintain business operations under the new normal.

The pandemic has accelerated the pace of our digital transformation. As
flexible work arrangements were adopted to reduce infection risks
through social distancing, our information technology infrastructure has
been upgraded to better secure all information. Communications
software was provided to help staff more easily collaborate when working
from home, while staff training on cybersecurity was enhanced. We also
conducted an audit to ensure adequate measures were in place for those
working from home.
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As a long-term strategy to reducing the spread of virus in frontline
operations, the Housing Society installed various “touchless” solutions on
high-contact surfaces within the estates. Laser or infrared elevator
panels, with contactless lift buttons that can detect a finger when close
to the button’s surface, were introduced. This technology was piloted at
Ka Wai Chuen, then extended to two Senior Citizen Residences Scheme
buildings, nine shopping centres and two carparks, covering 28 elevators
within Housing Society premises.

WALKING HAND IN HAND WITH THE COMMUNITY

A spirit of mutual support was key to helping us cope with the extreme
challenges. As a socially responsible organisation, we never forget those
individuals in the community who are struggling to get by. We therefore
implemented a series of proactive, timely and compassionate anti-
pandemic measures for various stakeholders, and provided financial
assistance to tenants to help keep them afloat during an uncertain
economy.

Community Care Campaign

Our Community Care Campaign, a HK$12-million anti-pandemic initiative
introduced in March 2022, offered timely support to the Housing
Society’s rental estate tenants and those most in need of anti-pandemic
resources, financial assistance and mental health support.
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As its first priority, the Housing Society swiftly produced and delivered
50,000 free anti-pandemic packs containing RAT kits, surgical masks,
hand sanitiser, vitamin C supplements and a greeting card. These were
distributed to our residents in rental estates and elderly housing projects,
wet market tenants, frontline cleaning and security workers, construction
site workers and all staff members.

Immediate financial relief was just as important to those in real need. We
therefore donated more than HK$1 milion to some 20 food banks,
community organisations and a social enterprise which served meals all
day to grass roots people experiencing difficulties. Another HK$500,000
was set aside for household tenants in dire straits. In the second quarter
of 2022, the Housing Society also created over 300 short-term and
temporary job opportunities for the unemployed, and recruited helpers to
distribute anti-pandemic packs and provide customer services at
shopping centres, wet markets and other locations.

Of real concern was the toll that the lingering pandemic was taking on
elderly in Hong Kong and their mental health. To address these problems,
a volunteer services team of around 50 Housing Society Academy Alumni
Club members and staff members was formed to make caring calls and
share anti-pandemic information with the elderly and other residents living
in our rental estates. Over three consecutive weeks, they reached more
than a thousand elderly tenants. In early 2022, the Housing Society
partnered with other non-profit organisations to conduct four online
wellness classes for tenants and members of the community.
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“Bounce Back Together” Shopping Promotion Campaign

To help boost local consumption and benefit our residents and
commercial tenants, the Housing Society relaunched its successful
“Bounce Back Together” Shopping Promotion Campaign in August
2021. A total of 200,000 sets of cash coupons each worth HK$100 were
given to residents living in our 20 rental estates and four elderly housing
projects. With the cash coupons, they were encouraged to shop at some
280 outlets operated by our commercial tenants. Moreover, another 3,700
sets of shopping coupons were distributed to needy families and seniors
via several NGOs that are based in our rental estates.

In early September 2021, to encourage vaccination for safer shopping,
the Housing Society offered additional sets of cash coupons as an
incentive to eligible residents living in our rental estates and elderly
housing projects. The same applied to staff members who got vaccinated
against COVID-19 on or before 31 August 2021. Moreover, the Housing
Society specially designed a set of its own masks with the theme of “Having
Fun”. These were distributed together with cash coupons and greeting
cards, thoughtfully written by young members of the Housing Society
Academy Alumni Club and internship programmes, to spread care and
goodwill to the community amid the pandemic.
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Mutual Support Network for Elderly and Estate Residents

The Housing Society is always mindful of the elderly tenants at our rental
estates. The CES (Caring, Engaging and Smart) Team, drawing on the
powerful connections it has built with elderly tenants, worked hand in
hand with community partners to distribute anti-pandemic supplies to
address the immediate needs of tenants.

Despite the social distancing constraints, the CES Team helped tenants
stay connected through innovative strategies such as making concern
calls, pairing young volunteers to educate elderly tenants on using smart
gadgets, hosting online neighbourhood gatherings with cognitive games,
healthy exercises and special interest classes.

During the fifth wave of COVID-19, the CES Team, together with
colleagues from the projects under the Senior Citizen Residences
Scheme, distributed specially-produced videos and leaflets to elderly
tenants, teaching them the proper procedures for conducting RATs and
then reporting test results to the Government. Emergency food packs
were also delivered to needy elderly tenants who were undergoing
compulsory home quarantine.
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Timely Relief for Domestic and Commercial Tenants

The pandemic continued to pose severe challenges for most businesses.
Since October 2019, the Housing Society has rolled out multiple rounds
of rent concession to help commercial tenants, carpark operators and
licensees of monthly carpark spaces for commercial vehicles to overcome
financial hardship.

This year, the Housing Society offered rent concessions to its commercial
tenants based on two thresholds. Around 500 eligible commercial
tenants were granted up to a 75 per cent reduction on their rent
throughout the year. Commercial tenants whose businesses received
closure orders or directions as part of the Government’s anti-pandemic
measures were able to apply for a full rent waiver during the suspension
period. Through providing these rent concessions in 2021/22, HK$200
million of revenue was forfeited. Nonetheless, it proved to be money well
spent as there was no significant increase in void rate of our commercial
premises during the fifth and most severe wave of COVID-19, and the
occupancy rate stood at a high level of over 98 per cent.

For domestic tenants, the Housing Society offered a two-month rent
waiver to all Group A and Group B rental estate tenants in October 2020
and then October 2021. This initiative helped offset the eight per cent
increment brought by rent adjustments for the years 2020 to 2022 under
the established rent review mechanism. The rent forgone due to the two-
month rent waiver was around HK$150 million.
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Estimated Population of Rental Estates and Properties under Housing Society Management
HEERPRHEHEENYEEFAOGEER

as at 31 March 2022
BE-Z_—F=A=+—HI

76,853

Rental Estate

HAE R
17,565

Flat-For-Sale Scheme
FEREHE
11,670

Sandwich Class

Housing Scheme
RUOBEEEERE

4,923

Subsidised Sale Flats
Projects
BHHEREER

4,433

2,800

Urban Improvement
Scheme
mENREE

2,328
Full Market Value
Development

MERRER
1,180

Urban Renewal Projects

mREZER

974

Quality Elderly
Housing Project
BEREFEER

667

Senior Citizen
Residences Scheme
[REREBL TR E

507

Trackside Villas - Transitional
Rental Housing Scheme
et EAREE]
BEMNEE L EE

H @ H Total 22

Rural Public Housing
BEAKEE

As a public service provider, the Housing Society is committed to
providing quality services to all our residents. To achieve this goal, we
maintain a professional team that serves our residents with care, empathy
and professionalism. We have demonstrated exceptional resilience in
these challenging times.

In 2021/22, the Housing Society had a portfolio of 20 rental estates
comprising a total of 33,610 units housing over 81,000 residents under
our management. We also managed 26 privately-owned properties
containing 18,873 units and three elderly housing projects with 1,164
units.

The Housing Society is facing the challenge of “double ageing” in both its
rental estates and tenants. In recent years, we have therefore placed
considerable emphasis on building maintenance and enhancing
accessibility within our estates. We have committed to major
improvement works such as replacing lifts and other infrastructure while
introducing various innovative technologies where necessary to provide
residents with a better and more sustainable living environment.
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RENTAL POLICY
Rent Review of Rental Estates

As a self-financing non-profit organisation, the Housing Society conducts
a rent review every two years to achieve a sustainable financial position
that will allow us to continue providing services to residents and cover
our own operating costs. Rent levels are mainly based on the operating
costs of rental estates including recurring management expenses,
tenancy administration costs, rates and government rents as well as
expenses for repairs and maintenance. We also take into account the
prevailing economic climate and general affordability for our tenants. The
last rent review was conducted in 2020, with a two-month waiver offered
to all Group A and Group B rental estate tenants for October 2020 and
October 2021. The next rent review will be conducted this year.

Enhanced Rent Assistance Scheme

The well-being of residents has always been a priority for the Housing
Society. To provide appropriate assistance to tenants facing short-term
financial hardship, we relaxed the criteria for the Rent Assistance Scheme
(RAS) on 1 April 2020. The RAS extends benefits to tenants with a
household income between 50 per cent to 75 per cent of the income
limit, making them eligible to apply for a 50 per cent to 25 per cent rent
reduction. Tenants receiving rent allowance under the Comprehensive
Social Security Assistance are also allowed to apply for the RAS providing
they fulfilled the eligibility criteria and the total allowances do not exceed
the value of their monthly rent. During the vyear, there were 910
households receiving rent assistance in the amount over HK$1 million a
month.
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MAKING PROPERTY MANAGEMENT MORE
SUSTAINABLE

While creating quality homes, we also put emphasis on the customer
experience. The Housing Society continually implements various
improvement works and introduces innovative technologies to enhance
the efficiency of property management services, and thereby provide
residents with faster, more convenient services.

Modern Technologies Enable More Efficient Daily
Operations

Internet of Things (IoT) is one smart technology that the Housing Society
has been actively introducing. In 2021, we installed loT sensors for
pressure-reducing valves on water pipes at 11 rental estates such as
Cho Yiu Chuen and Kwun Lung Lau. These sensors can identify
abnormal pressures and notify the relevant staff to take prompt and
appropriate action. This year, wet floor sensors will be installed in pump
rooms at all 20 rental estates, two Senior Citizen Residences Scheme

projects and The Tanner Hill to reduce the impact of any water leaks.

With 5G networks proliferating and the surge of PropTech in real estate
management, we will pilot a cloud-based integrated facility management
platform in the coming year. This will signal whether any device in the
system is malfunctioning. It will also enable our property management
teams to better control various facilities within properties through a
mobile app and therefore deliver more responsive services to residents.

In constructing new projects, we are increasingly adopting Building
Information Modelling (BIM), a platform that allows architects, engineers,
surveyors and contractors to exchange data more easily. We are also
exploring BIM’s potential to enable different departments to collaborate
more smoothly throughout the full property development and
management cycle.
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Improvement Works on Rental Estates (Expenditure)

HAEEWA R E TR ()

as at 31 March 2022
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HK$million (Cumulative)
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Upgrading Building Infrastructure

Most of the 20 rental estates managed by the Housing Society were built
more than 40 or 50 years ago. To provide safe, comfortable living
environments that offer a modern standard of living, the Housing Society
devotes significant resources to maintaining and improving these estates.

During the year, we committed HK$119 million to 70 major improvement
programmes, of which HK$101.8 million was expended. This covered
ongoing works such as modernising lifts and regular maintenance for
water pipes, plumbing and drainage. During the year, we also added
additional lift services to Block | of Lok Man Sun Chuen and replaced
seven lifts in three of the blocks at Jat Min Chuen that became fully
operational in early 2022.

At the same time, a significant number of improvement works were
handled through our Voluntary Building Assessment Scheme (VBAS)
which encourages owners to maintain and manage their properties.
During the year, VBAS assessors were appointed to 33 blocks in five
estates and inspections were conducted at six blocks in two estates.
Following these assessments, repair works to 10 blocks in two estates
were successfully completed.

1,538 (47%)
Estate Rehabilitation and Renovation

EIB1EE R BT

632 (20%)
Power Upgrading
BARA

436 (13%)
Barrier-free Access Improvement
EBR RS

333 (10%)
Building Services Improvement
BERENE

332 (10%)

Slope Improvement and Other
Building Works
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CARING FOR OUR TENANTS

Building Strong Support Networks to Connect
Neighbourhoods

To better serve residents, our CES (Caring, Engaging and Smart) Team
was formed in January 2021. This was built on the success of existing
services such as the Ageing-in-Place Scheme, and our Housing Society
Community and Service Coordinators. The more than 80-strong “muilti-
disciplinary” CES Team is composed of social workers, occupational
therapists and service officers. It offers much-needed assistance to
residents at the individual, neighbourhood and community level through
case management, group activities, and mass outreach programmes as
well as by creating mutual support networks.

Guided by the belief of “a neighbour close by is better than a relative far
away”, the CES Team trains groups of positive-minded tenants to
become estate ambassadors and reach out to neighbours in need,
particularly elderly residents or families with no visible support. The aim is
“Health
Management”, “Mental Wellness”, “Carers’ Support”, “Neighbourhood

to build mutual social networks around six key themes —
Mutual Support”, “Intergenerational Harmony” and “Home Living
Support”, and build closer ties within our 20 rental estates. So far, 663

tenants have become volunteers and been trained to provide regular care
and support to their immediate neighbours.

W EnReE

. Caring Engaging Smart
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Based on the unique culture and needs of each estate, the CES Team
collaborates with organisations in different sectors to bring their resources
and expertise to bear in a way that best supports residents. To date, the
CES Team has forged connections with nearly 400 partners including
schools and universities, medical professionals and NGOs. During the
year, for example, nursing students from the University of Hong Kong
performed health screening and consultations, and the Jockey Club
Centre for Positive Ageing arranged full assessments and post-diagnostic
support for elderly tenants as part of its dementia programme. By
enlisting suitable community resources to better support our tenants,
these partnerships can create powerful synergies.

The social capital generated by the CES Team is helping to create more
close-knit and caring neighbourhoods while building harmonious
communities.

Providing Professional Support to Better Help Tenants

Leveraging its well-established network, the CES Team approaches
tenants in need, then offers support through active case management.
During the year, it handled 455 cases and made 1,517 referrals. The
Team also offered regular support to 915 households living in Elderly
Persons’ Flats at our rental estates. It provides health care and social
support to tenants, organising over 2,000 therapeutic groups and
activities across our 20 rental estates including cross-estate programmes
on topics such as preventing falls, cognitive training, and chronic disease
management.
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By providing comprehensive support to elderly tenants in rental estates
including housing, health care and social support, the CES Team
encourages ageing-in-place to maintain their social network. To attain
this objective, our team of occupational therapists regularly conduct
professional assessments for elderly households, including the health
conditions of senior tenants, their functional ability and home
environment. To prevent accidents at home and give elderly tenants
greater independence in their daily life, the Team can recommend
retrofitting or remodelling homes and prescribe assistive devices following
a proper assessment. In 2021/22, it arranged 651 home modification
assessments, then organised 645 modifications and 112 remodelling
exercises.

Smart technology was also adopted to deliver better services that
enhance interactions among tenants. Launched in 2021, the Customer
Relationship Management Solution System automates administrative
processes, enhances services and manages the records of tenants
requiring social support.

Scholarship for Young Tenants of Rental Estates

The CES Team continued helping young tenants to develop academically.
The Housing Society Community Scholarship was launched in 2014 and
this year, nine students from eight rental estates who achieved
outstanding results in the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education
Examination each received a scholarship worth HK$5,000. Students who
scored 30 points or above received an additional “Award of Excellence”
grant worth HK$5,000.
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Serving Our Residents with Excellence B0 REER

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Housing Society manages around 130,000 square metres of rentable
commercial space including shops and offices, and 9,600 car parking
spaces. As an independent, self-financing organisation, it follows prudent
commercial principles in the letting of all commercial premises and helped
tenants ride out the challenges due to the pandemic. Despite the
unfavourable economic climate, commercial premises occupation
remained high at over 98 per cent during the year.

Currently, 80 per cent of our non-domestic spaces is occupied by
neighbourhood shops that cater to the daily needs of residents, with the
remainder being rented by the welfare sector. Given the increasing
e-shopping trend driven by changing consumer patterns, around five per
cent of our premises have been let to online service providers allowing
residents to collect goods from conveniently-located delivery points.

We also introduced virtual viewing that offers 360-degree viewing of our
shopping centres as well as online letting application forms for shop
premises that enable applicants to submit their details easily and quickly
via the Housing Society corporate website.

A wider adoption of electric vehicles (EVs) is advocated by the
Government. To support this, the Housing Society has introduced EV
charging facilities in its car parks to promote the use of EVs and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. Additional medium chargers will be installed
at existing car parks as necessary. We have also pioneered a new
technology to better manage our EV charging facilities.
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Units of Projects Developed

ERREEMNENEE
as at 31 March 2022
BE-Z--F=ZA=+—Hit
o of Unite I 39,583 I 3,146 588
. Rental Estate Full Market Value Quality Elderly
BEV#E ) :
L ETR Development Housing Project
ERIA =1 2]
10,360 TEZERIER BEREFEEA
Flat-For-Sale Scheme 1,531 576
FEEEHE Urban Renewal Senior Citizen
I Projects Residences Scheme
8,920 TEEZER [REREZ TEE
Sandwich Class
Housing Scheme I 1,338
RUEEEEE Rural Public Housing
5 u:a/\/ﬁi
5,620 HRALERE H ﬁ H
Urban Improvement 2,628
Scheme I Subsidised Sale Flats ]| Total &
mEkREE Projects
Few 74,290
4

The Housing Society fully supports the Government in its long-term goal
of increasing the housing supply in Hong Kong.

In the face of limitation of land supply, the Housing Society has explored
out-of-the-box approaches in development and planning, making every
effort to maximise land use.

We adopt the principle of “single site, multiple uses” — also known as a
mixed development model — when planning our housing projects. This
innovative approach means that our housing projects feature a diverse
mix of unit types together with various community facilities to meet the
needs of future residents as well as neighbouring communities, creating
sustainable living environments that encourage intergenerational harmony
and social vitality.

Last year, the Housing Society also took the opportunity to acquire
private land to develop public rental housing — a site neighbouring Ming
Wah Dai Ha in Shau Kei Wan. Combined with the Government land along
A Kung Ngam Road, the overall project will provide around 640 units.

The Housing Society will soon hit peak in housing development, with a
robust pipeline comprising 25 projects currently being planned or in
construction. These should yield over 40,000 units in the next 20 years
with some 28,000 flats to be completed in about 10 years. This is an all-
time high and will bring challenges in terms of manpower and financial
resources, and place a greater onus on quality control.
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REDEVELOPING OLDER RENTAL ESTATES

In recent years, the Housing Society has made redeveloping its rental
estates a priority. Older blocks are being refurbished to create more
comfortable and convenient living environments with modern facilities for
residents and the community.

Ming Wah Dai Ha

Completed early last year, the Ming Wah Dai Ha Redevelopment Phase |
project comprises one 30-storey tower and one 31-storey tower.
Together they provide a total of 966 units with internal floor areas ranging
from 21 to 49 square meters. In late March 2021, we began handing
over the new flats to tenants who had been affected by the
redevelopment and completed the handover in the third quarter of the
review year. About 230 units were also allocated during the year to
eligible families on the public rental housing waiting list.

Designed to facilitate inclusiveness and intergenerational living, the two
towers contain 48 elderly units and 24 accessible units that specially
cater to seniors and wheelchair users. Around 330 units, a third of the
total, feature adaptable designs that allow residents the flexibility to
transform their homes into accessible spaces should the need arise. The
new development also boasts fithess corners and children’s play areas,
as well as landscaped walking trails and sky gardens that facilitate
outdoor activities and encourage a healthy lifestyle.

Business Overview ¥ &
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A Yue Kwong Chuen
BN

Announced in 2011, the redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha is being
conducted in three phases. Following completion of the Phase |
Redevelopment, decanting for the Phase Il redevelopment project was
largely completed during the year. Demolition works are set to begin in
mid-2022 and ground inspection site works have already commenced.
Providing 3,919 flats in total, the entire Ming Wah Dai Ha Redevelopment
should complete in 2035 and offer a mix of housing types with 2,561
rental, 750 Subsidised Sale Flat (SSF) and 608 Senior Citizen Residences
Scheme units.

A Kung Ngam Road, Shau Kei Wan

The open space along A Kung Ngam Road that neighbours Ming Wah
Dai Ha in Shau Kei Wan, together with the adjacent Government site,
have been allocated for a rental housing development that will include a
28-storey tower and welfare facilities. This is done by acquisition of a
private site to be developed for public housing and planning is well
underway. When completed in 2028, it will add around 640 rental units to
the housing supply.

Yue Kwong Chuen

Located in the fishing hamlet of Aberdeen, Yue Kwong Chuen is awaiting
redevelopment following a preliminary feasibility study conducted during
the year. Further planning is required to relax a minor height restriction
and readjust the floor area to satisfy the Government’s policy of providing
welfare facilities equivalent to approximately five per cent of the domestic
gross floor area.
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To facilitate the redevelopment of Yue Kwong Chuen, a rehousing estate
on the nearby Shek Pai Wan Road is being constructed. Foundation
works progressed well during the year and construction of the
superstructure should commence in late 2022 with a target of providing
600 rental units by 2024.

Kwun Tong Garden Estate |l

A two-phase redevelopment scheme for Kwun Tong Garden Estate Il has
been drawn up. The scheme needed fine-tuning to incorporate welfare
facilities equivalent to around five per cent of the domestic gross floor
area. Foundation works for its decanting block at Ting On Street, located
opposite to the existing estate, have commenced and the project is
scheduled to complete in 2025 when it will provide 371 rental units.

SUBSIDISED SALE FLATS

Units within the Housing Society’s SSF projects are positioned as “practical
but not extravagant” — and offer homebuyers functional design at an
affordable price. During the year, the Housing Society continued
constructing SSFs in Fanling, Kwun Tong, Kai Tak and Yuen Long to let

more local people realise their home ownership aspiration.

Jockey Club Road, Fanling

The land grant for the Jockey Club Road site in Fanling was executed in
the first quarter of 2022 and foundation works started immediately.
Actual construction started in March 2022 and upon completion in 2026,
the development will offer 644 SSF units.
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<« Anderson Road
Quarry project
REEBEIER

Anderson Road Quarry

Three sites, namely R2-2, R2-3 and R2-4, at Anderson Road Quarry
were allocated by the Government to develop SSFs. Land grants for two
of the sites were executed during the year and the third was concluded
in April 2022. During the year, foundation works at the R2-2 and R2-3
sites were underway followed by that at R2-4. With construction
scheduled to complete in 2025 to 2026, these three SSF projects will
offer around 2,780 units.

Kai Tak Area 2B Site 1

The land grant for Kai Tak Area 2B Site 1 was executed in the first
quarter of 2022 and foundation works commenced immediately.
Scheduled to complete in 2026/27, the development will supply around
1,800 SSF units.

Yuen Lung Street, Yuen Long

The site at Yuen Lung Street in Yuen Long is at the land resumption and
planning stage. The development will provide another 510 SSF units and
— subject to the site availability — should complete in 2028.

DEDICATED REHOUSING ESTATES

In 2018, the Government introduced the non-means-tested rehousing
arrangements for eligible households affected by Government’s
development clearance. Later on, the non-means-tested rehousing
arrangements were extended to those eligible households affected by the
Urban Renewal Authority’s redevelopment projects. As a close partner of
the Government, the Housing Society was entrusted to develop
Dedicated Rehousing Estates (DRE) projects to provide such non-means-
tested rehousing arrangements. The Housing Society now has five DRE
projects in the pipeline, all located in newly-developed areas.
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Pak Wo Road, Fanling

The Pak Wo Road development in Fanling is the Housing Society’s first
DRE project. After foundation works were completed, works on the
superstructure commenced in August 2021. The project will provide
around 1,460 rental, SSF and Senior Citizen Residences Scheme units
as well as two residential care homes for the elderly, a shopping centre
and public car parking spaces. It is scheduled to complete in 2024.

Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen New Development Area

The DRE at Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen New Development Area (NDA) is
steadily progressing with a three-phase development programme.
Comprising a 25-storey tower with 300 SSF units, Phase 1A will be built
in concrete using the MiC method, whereas Phase IB will be developed
into a 29-storey tower with around 370 rental units. Phase Il will comprise
two 37-storey towers and provide another 960 SSF units.

Superstructure contracts for Phase IA and IB commenced in late 2021
and early 2022 respectively. Meanwhile, works for Phase Il commenced
in March 2022 and Phase Il will begin in 2026. The entire Hung Shui Kiu/
Ha Tsuen NDA DRE project is scheduled to complete in phases between
2024 and 2029 and will provide around 2,600 flats including rental and
SSF units.
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Kai Tak Area 1E Site 1

Kai Tak Area 1E Site 1 partly serves as the decanting facility for our Chun
Seen Mei Chuen redevelopment and also as a DRE for the Government’s
development clearance exercises as well as the Urban Renewal
Authority’s redevelopment projects. It will provide around 2,150 rental
and SSF units. Foundation works are in progress for completion in the
end of 2022. The entire project will complete in 2025 for population
intake in 2026.

Kwu Tung North

In February 2022, the Town Planning Board approved a minor relaxation
of the plot ratio for the Kwu Tung North project. Following this decision,
the project will now provide around 2,800 rental and SSF units together
with a shopping centre, kindergarten and two residential care homes for
the elderly. The land grant application is currently being processed by the
Lands Department. Foundation works will commence in mid-2022 and
the project is scheduled to complete in 2027.

Ma Tau Kok Link Site

The Ma Tau Kok Link Site will provide around 1,100 rental and SSF units
plus a shopping centre and welfare facilities. A rezoning proposal was
approved by the Town Planning Board and the relevant statutory process
is progressing. The project is scheduled to complete in 2027.

A Kai Tak Area 1E Site 1 project
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URBAN SQUATTER AREAS

Among the three urban squatter areas in Kowloon East that the
Government invited the Housing Society to undertake the redevelopment,
the Cha Kwo Ling Village project was undergoing a rezoning process
during the year. The project will be developed in two phases: Phase |,
providing around 970 rental units, is scheduled to complete in 2031/32
offering 3,530 SSF units, is tentatively scheduled to
complete in 2033/34, subject to site availability. It is anticipated that the
other two sites in Ngau Chi Wan Village and Chuk Yuen United Village,
which will offer around 2,700 units and 1,500 units respectively, will

and Phase I,

undergo rezoning process in 2022/23.

HARNESSING SMART CONSTRUCTION
SOLUTIONS TO BUILD QUALITY HOMES

Given that the Housing Society is approaching peak construction, quality
and timely delivery are both equally important. To this end, we are
adopting innovative construction methods and technologies at different
stages of the construction process to enhance productivity and quality,
reduce the environmental impact and create a more sustainable future.

Wider Adoption of New Tech to Enhance Efficiency

The Government is actively encouraging the industry to adopt Modular
Integrated Construction (MiC) methods to help reduce construction time
and waste, thereby minimising the environmental impact of on-site
construction. The Housing Society ventured into the MiC journey three
years ago. So far, we have piloted this innovative construction technology
at three housing projects to gain deeper experience.

A Cha Kwo Ling Village
RREN =L =)
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A Chuk Yuen United Village
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A lllustration of Building Information Technology

[EEEEER ] RiTEG&

The 10-storey block at Jat Min Chuen in Sha Tin, named “Chung Yuet
Lau”, will be Hong Kong’s first housing development for the elderly to be
built using MiC in steel. The ground and first floors will be constructed
from traditional reinforced concrete while the second to ninth floors will
be built with steel MiC. Works on the superstructure should commence
in the latter half of 2022. Scheduled to complete in 2023, the
development will provide 64 age-friendly rental units with supporting
facilities. In parallel, a 25-storey SSF tower (Phase IA) in Hung Shui Kiu/
Ha Tsuen NDA project and a rental block in the Kwu Tung North project
will also be built in concrete using MiC.

We will deploy Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) technology and GPS
tracking to keep track of the fabrication and transportation logistics of the
precast elements. Allowing real-time traceability and visibility, these
technologies enable more efficient project management for off-site
processing as well as transit flow.

Strengthening Project Management through Digitalisation

With a record number of projects in the pipeline, effective project
management is crucial. A full Building Information Modelling (BIM)
approach was first introduced in the Ting On Street rental estate
development at Ngau Tau Kok in 2019. This technology’s full application
has now been earmarked for three additional pilot projects, including
Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen NDA Phases |IA and IB, and Kai Tak Area 1E
Site 1. BIM enables different project team members and stakeholders to
seamlessly communicate throughout the project development cycle on a
single digital platform. By enabling architects, consultants, engineers and
contractors to exchange building information and collaborate in a
common data environment, BIM enables projects to be designed and
constructed more efficiently and effectively.
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Furthermore, the Housing Society has introduced a digitised Request for
Inspection and Survey Check (RISC) system under the Digital Works
Supervision System (DWSS) in eight foundation contracts as well as the
Lee Kung Street Senior Citizen Residences Scheme project in Hung
Hom. With RISC,
submitted and approved online. By automatically recording the entire

request and inspection forms can be completed,

workflow and all relevant information in one system, data tracking and
management become much more convenient. A full-function DWSS will
be gradually deployed in all new projects during the next two years.

SAFETY FIRST

Providing a safe and healthy working environment is paramount for any
construction project. As a caring and responsible developer, the Housing
Society attaches the highest importance to ensuring occupational safety.

During the year, we conducted 24 site-safety workshops, 25 risk-
management workshops and eight integrity workshops. A further 17
independent site safety audits were conducted by the Occupational
Safety and Health Council. We also implemented an incentive scheme to
reward safety practices at construction sites. Under this scheme, site
workers who follow best safety practices receive awards in the form of
incentives and recognition. The average accident rate per thousand
workers at our construction sites was just 9.0. This is all thanks to the
ongoing efforts of our partner contractors, site workers and site
supervisory staff. To further enhance the safety awareness among all
contractors of our ongoing projects, a Safety Charter will be signed
between the Housing Society and the partner contractors in 2022, with
the support of the Construction Industry Council, Occupational Safety
and Health Council and the Labour Department.
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Meeting the Needs of an Ageing Population B8EEL4E: A O FTE

Age Profile of Housing Society Rental Estates Residents

EiHhHEBERFRDH

as at 31 March 2022
BE-Z_—_F=A=+—HL

No. of Residents
BERA#

Age Range F#;

B 0-19 (9%) 7,627
W 20-39 (20%) 16,005
B 40-59 (30%) 24,590

>60 (41%) 32,999

As a “housing laboratory”, the Housing Society takes a leading role in
promoting and developing diversified housing solutions and services that
better address the needs of people in the community in the face of fast
changing demographics. Housing projects and services for the elderly
are among our priorities.

With lower birth rate and longer life expectancy, rapidly ageing
populations is a global issue. This trend is expected to accelerate in Hong
Kong for the foreseeable future. Currently, the population segment aged
60 or above accounts for 28 per cent of Hong Kong'’s total population.
This will increase to 35 per cent in the next ten years, when one out of
every three Hong Kong citizens will be aged 60 or above. In 30 years,
this group will account for more than 40 per cent of Hong Kong'’s total
population.

OFFERING DIVERSE HOUSING OPTIONS FOR THE
ELDERLY

To meet rising demand for housing for the elderly, the Housing Society
has pioneered different schemes that integrate with a range of care
services and support. At the same time, we are striving to boost future
supply of housing for the elderly with the goal of enabling senior citizens
across different income groups to grow old with dignity.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22
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HOUSING SCHEMES FOR AGEING AT HOME
Senior Citizen Residences Scheme

Launched in 1999, the Senior Citizen Residences Scheme provides
middle-income elderly residents with quality flats that are integrated with
comprehensive recreation and medical care services.

Two pilot projects, Jolly Place in Tseung Kwan O completed in 2003 and
Cheerful Court in Ngau Tau Kok completed in 2004, offer a total of 576
residential units which are leased out under a lifetime tenancy
arrangement. These two existing projects maintained full occupancy
throughout the year, with over 500 applicants on the waiting list.

As an all-in-one accommodation solution, Jolly Place and Cheerful Court
both offer elderly-friendly housing “hardware” and skilled care services
“software”, as well as a range of tailor-made activities within the
neighbourhood that help residents enjoy ageing-in-place. During the year,
elderly residents enjoyed a number of tailor-made social activities such as
coffee-making workshops, cooking classes and a sports carnival that
harnessed the Olympic fever in the summer of 2021 to encourage
everyone to stay young and energetic. Our two existing projects under
the Senior Citizen Residences Scheme include on-site Residential Care
Homes for the Elderly (RCHEs) that offer custom nursing and care
services. Together, the two facilities accommodate around 90 residents
who can also enjoy exclusive use of the clubhouse facilities within their
estates.
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The Tanner Hil

Launched in 2015, The Tanner Hill in North Point provides senior citizens
of better affordability with non-subsidised quality residential units together
with a comprehensive range of healthcare amenities to provide a healthy
lifestyle, both physically and psychologically.

The Tanner Hill is a flagship elderly-focused housing project for both the
Housing Society and Hong Kong, and its age-friendly design and elderly-
focused business operations have gained an excellent reputation. Indeed,
it has become a global reference model for housing projects that provide
care for the elderly. During the year, it attracted more than 2,800 visitors
and industry partners, locally and internationally, keen to learn from its
innovative concept and design.

The Tanner Hill offers a mix of layouts including studios, one-bedroom
and two-bedroom units. All of these are age-friendly and equipped with
home-care support systems such as emergency call response, door
contact tracking, no-motion detection, and health data collection and
monitoring to ensure the health and safety of residents. The project also
offers integrated professional healthcare and skilled care services as well
as thoughtfully-designed home and lifestyle amenities.

As of 31 March 2022, all 588 residential units were occupied with
approximately 1,500 applicants on the waiting list for long-term leases
which allow residents to live in the units throughout their lifetime. A total
of 129 tenancies have been transferred from short-term to long-term
leases, with 87 per cent of residents currently on long leases.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22
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To meet the needs of tenants at The Tanner Hill, the Healthy Joyous
Lifestyle Programme (HJLP) was launched in 2017. It offers monthly talks
on health and lifestyle matters in collaboration with external professionals
including psychologists, Chinese Medical Practitioners, dieticians,
pharmacists, veteran media celebrities and photographers. Nutritional
lunches are provided for those seeking a healthy diet. Customer
satisfaction for The Tanner Hill stood at 99 per cent during the year,
according to a management survey of residents conducted in January
2022.

The Tanner Hill Joyous Circle is an elderly facility that comprises a RCHE,
a Day Care and Training Centre, and a Rehabilitation Centre operated by
professionally-trained staff. The RCHE offers 117 beds in 54 rooms that
are available for both short and long stays. It provides high-quality one-
stop services for residents including round-the-clock professional
nursing, rehabilitation care and counselling.

The Day Care and Training Centre offers a range of training programmes
and activities that focus on sensory stimulation, physical exercise, and
cognitive training developed to meet the special needs and conditions of
elderly residents.
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The Rehabilitation Centre provides quality services ranging from cognitive
training to physical rehabilitation, to senior citizens in the community,
especially those suffering from dementia. To allow Joyous Circle users to
benefit from the expertise of professor-led rehabilitation programmes, the
Housing Society signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
the Department of Rehabilitation Sciences of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. A series of rehabilitation programmes — for example, chair
exercises to help frail older people maintain their physical health while
staying at home — were designed and launched in the RCHE.

We aim to provide the elderly and their caregivers with exemplary support
by creating a safe and hygienic environment at all times. In this regard,
the Housing Society signed an MOU with Nano and Advanced Materials
Institute (NAMI), a subsidiary of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, to apply NAMI’s innovative technologies and protective
products within Joyous Circle.

Located within The Tanner Hill, the Residents Club provides various
recreational facilities, and the Joyous Hub offers a Chinese restaurant,
western-style cafe, mini-theatre, multi-function room, arts & craft room,
indoor swimming pool, gym, kids area and Chinese and Western medical
centres. All facilities at Joyous Hub are currently open to both elderly
residents and members of the Hub. As of 31 March 2022, a total of
14,000 members had registered.
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BOOSTING FUTURE HOUSING SUPPLY FOR THE
ELDERLY

As part of our ongoing efforts to optimise land resources for new housing
developments that cater to the elderly, construction of the project under
the Senior Citizen Residences Scheme at Lee Kung Street in Hung Hom,
and the extension to Jat Min Chuen, are both in full swing. Together they
will provide a total of 376 housing units that will allow senior citizens from
different socio-economic groups to age in place and enjoy a quality
environment that promotes well-being.

At the same time, we remain committed to making housing for the elderly
an integral part of our new developments. Age-friendly units, with
adaptable or accessible features, are gradually being incorporated into
our developments, including the newly-completed Ming Wah Dai Ha
Phase | Redevelopment, the Dedicated Rehousing Estate Project at Pak
Wo Road in Fanling and other housing developments in the pipeline.

Ming Wah Dai Ha Phase | Redevelopment

The 60-year-old Ming Wah Dai Ha is currently being redeveloped in
phases. To foster a more inclusive community, the Phase |
Redevelopment, completed in early 2021, provides 48 elderly-friendly
units and 24 universally-designed units which incorporate age-friendly
features such as handrails in common areas adjoining the units, and
spacious corridors that allow wheelchairs to easily manoeuvre. Around
330 units, one-third of the total 966 units, are reserved as adaptable units
where the space can be easily reconfigured to meet the future needs of
residents.
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Senior Citizen Residences Scheme Project at Lee Kung
Street

The third of the Housing Society’s project under the Senior Citizen
Residences Scheme at Lee Kung Street, which offers a total of 312 flats,
is steadily progressing and should be completed in 2022. Drawing on
learnings from the two existing projects under the Scheme, the
development features a host of recreational facilities such as outdoor
garden areas, a club house that includes a reading room and a gym,
enabling residents to pursue an active social lifestyle. To meet the care
and health needs of residents, it offers a medical centre, a rehabilitation
centre and a RCHE. Age-friendly features such as wider doorways for
wheelchair users, curbless shower areas, and an Integrated Care Link
System with emergency call service and indoor tracking, will all be
included.

Chung Yuet Lau at Jat Min Chuen

Adjacent to one of our existing blocks of Jat Min Chuen, Chung Yuet Lau
is a 10-storey building that will offer 64 age-friendly rental units. It will be
our first housing project for the elderly to be assembled from steel using
the Modular Integrated Construction (MiC) method. The project will
include a lounge, pedestrian passageway and passenger lifts serving all
residents of Jat Min Chuen, as well as a refurbished badminton court
within the estate. It is scheduled to be completed in 2023.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22

A Senior Citizen Residences Scheme project at Lee Kung Street
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Flat-for-Flat Pilot Scheme for Elderly Owners

To optimise public housing resources and offer elderly owners the
chance to purchase smaller subsidised flats that better match their
circumstances, the Housing Society launched its “Flat-for-Flat Pilot
Scheme for Elderly Owners” in 2019. This win-win initiative enables
owners aged 60 or above — who have owned a subsidised sale flat of
the Housing Society for at least ten years — to sell their original flat, then
purchase a smaller one in the secondary markets of either the Housing
Society or the Hong Kong Housing Authority without paying a premium.

PROMOTING INTERGENERATIONAL HARMONY

The Housing Society is a leader in bridging the generation gap and
creating a more inclusive society that values seniors. To promote
intergenerational harmony, a series of new initiatives were piloted at Jat
Min Chuen. An innovative intergenerational programme was recently
launched that introduced sports like “Nordic Walking” and Finnish activity
“Molkky”, two activities that have recently surged in popularity, with the
aim of enhancing intergenerational harmony through “Sports and Play”.
To encourage participation, estate-based Molkky teams comprising both
elderly and young participants were set up to connect residents of
different ages.

[REXEZBBRBAEE

REREAVERAAEEER ARE
EREREFTIRHEKEBELRMEEDS
HERNEMEML BFHR_FT—NLFH#
HIREXEITBBRELEE ] -7 EBFF
FEATHRINLEBEESHEDHEEM
ELTENRIEARAMEENBRT RF
“HHEHEHEHRAEMNEK  BREBHRE
BEEZEENE_TSUNEHETAE
ABMNOERL B—EEHFMTER-

REEA LR

FEW—BEslFERARE S BHHRRER
B WMERE REEBRAR BEHBES
AMAT RN EHREE - T HEHE L
BIF I ELRTIBERKBGE - 5l AdL
BMARSPTNSEAEMEAFLES 5
EEBREPREH T AREEALAR - R
BERER2E BHRIBARERFES

HEAKNBESEAEEML BETR
FRENEER-

EHEEERE 2021/22 FEF R

87



88

Business Overview ¥ &
Meeting the Needs of an Ageing Population BEEELS4E: A O FTeE

A Toy Bank, managed by elderly residents, was also introduced at Jat
Min Chuen to create a play space that different generations can share. It
offers a toy recycling service for children while senior volunteers organise
games that different ages can play. Completed in the first quarter of
2022, essential facilities for the programme include a pathway designed
for a Nordic Walking and an area paved with safety mats where team
sports can be played. It now serves as a regular gathering place where
different generations can interact and intergenerational volunteer network
can be developed.

ADVOCATING AGEING-IN-PLACE WITH
GERONTECHNOLOGY

The Housing Society champions gerontechnology at every level and
passionately advocates the concept of “ageing-in-place”. The Elderly
Resources Centre is a major initiative.

Public Education Resources

Established in 2005, then completely refurbished in 2020, the Elderly
Resources Centre (ERC) in Yau Ma Tei was modelled as an “age-friendly
home” offering educational and experiential tours, training programmes,
health screening and professional consultation services from occupational
therapists and social workers. The ERC features two units of 150 and
200 square feet in size that exemplify age-friendly home design with over
a hundred state-of-the-art gerontech products and assistive design
features.
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To reach more people, the ERC offered virtual tours throughout the year,
giving the public a glimpse of the centre’s various facilities and allowing
them to better understand its mission and goals. During the year, the
ERC received more than 31,200 physical and virtual visitors. Over 1,000
people, including social workers and healthcare professionals,
participated in its professional training programmes.

A Brand New Community Education Platform

To meet the growing demand for elderly services and age-in-place
information, we merged our Elderly Services and Age-friendly Home
websites into a new mobile-first community education platform. This is
designed to increase awareness about age-friendly home design and
encourage the use of gerontechnology products.

The new website’s functionality is greatly enhanced by an information
architecture that enables users to easily search for content. Interactive
functions have also been introduced including a number of useful self-
assessment features, for example, enabling users to evaluate the age-
friendliness of their homes, then receive expert feedback and tips on
making it more suitable for seniors with specialist needs. Thanks to the

useful information it is providing to both seniors and caregivers, the
website is receiving high traffic.
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Connecting with Our Stakeholders B2iE 5 &

In these fast-changing times when face-to-face communication is not
always possible, communications with stakeholders, both externally and
internally, have taken a new form — time is of the essence. During the
pandemic, there is an even higher expectation for greater interactivity and
engagement in connecting with our stakeholders online or in hybrid
modes.

The Housing Society has adopted more innovative approaches to reach
out to our stakeholders in our events and activities. Such examples
include the Hong Kong Housing Society Award presentation ceremony
and the Kwun Tong Garden Estate Community Photo Competition award
presentation ceremony, in which we deployed new tools and
technologies to engage participants and the public from different
locations in virtual mode.

EFFECTIVE ENGAGEMENT THROUGH DIVERSE
CHANNELS

To keep up with the trends and maintain better connection with our
stakeholders, the Housing Society has utilised multiple channels to
disseminate information and updates of our businesses in a timely
manner.

Multimedia and Publications

Effective and timely communications have become crucial in today’s
ever-changing environment. To stay in touch and interact with external
and internal stakeholders, the Housing Society regularly reaches out to
them through a number of publications, namely the Annual Report,
Sustainability Report, quarterly newsletter Housing Society Today and the
staff bulletin Pulsar.

)

rimam
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A quarterly e-bulletin for Housing Society Members is regularly published
to keep Housing Society Members abreast of business updates, project
progress as well as upcoming events. The bulletin is available in a digital
version, with the new mobile app “MyHS” launched in April 2021. The
app provides a platform for engagement with Housing Society Members,
allowing Members instant access to the repository of information of the
Housing Society. They can also receive meeting notifications and sign up
for events and activities with just a few clicks.

Social Media

To expand social media usage, a powerful tool that has changed the way
we socialise and conduct businesses, the Housing Society rolled out a
social media campaign in the third quarter of the year to communicate
with a broader audience more effectively. It has successfully attracted
thousands of followers and drove traffic to its social media platforms.

During the year, 875 posts were published on our “Housing Society
Community” Facebook Fan Page while the number of followers on the
page increased by 16.3 per cent to 7,102. The “hkhousingsociety”
Instagram account, which has 568 posts, experienced a significant rise in
followers by 25.8 per cent to 1,142. The followers of the official LinkedIn
account and YouTube channel also surged by 49.1 per cent to 5,547
and 76.7 per cent to 843 respectively during the year.

In addition, the Housing Society’s official WeChat account was launched
in December 2021 with the aim to reach more target stakeholders and
help build our brand image on a leading social network.
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Public Enquiry System

During the year, the Housing Society continued to provide an efficient
enquiry system for members of the public seeking information and
advice. A total of 2,570 enquiries were handled through our email and
hotline systems.

To keep up with the pace of digitalisation and improve customer
experience, the Housing Society introduced new tools on our corporate
website in March 2022 — a Frequently Asked Questions section and an
Online Enquiry Form, which offer bite-sized information and more diverse
channels to answer questions and requests from the public.

Engaging with the Press and Opinion Leaders

The Housing Society is keen to enhance its transparency and
communications with the general public about our business updates and
activities. During the year, we organised 33 press and TV interviews,
issued 21 press releases and eight newspaper supplements, and
successfully generated 2,250 counts of media coverage with an
advertising value worth over HK$83 million.

We also organised 24 briefings or meetings with Legislative Council
members, District Council members and concern groups to gather
feedback and thereby improve our business operations and facilitate
project implementation.
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Professional Exchanges

Members of our senior management team spoke at 15 events, both
professional and academic, where they shared insights and experiences
with industry counterparts on a range of housing matters. These events
included the World Ageing Festival 2021 — International World Ageing
Conference organised by Ageing Asia, Singapore; the HKCSS Executive
Leadership Development Programme organised by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service; and the “Community Planning for an Age-
friendly Community” Social Innovation Symposium organised by the
Jockey Club Design Institute for Social Innovation of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, to name just a few.

The Housing Society champions the concepts of “ageing-in-place” and
“age-friendly homes” among the general public through active
participation in events such as the Gerontech and Innovation Expo cum
Summit (GIES) hosted by the Government of the HKSAR and the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service, as well as the Golden Age Expo and
Summit organised by the Golden Age Foundation. At the InnoCarnival
organised by the Innovation and Technology Commissions, the Housing
Society presented the innovations it is advancing in housing services,
elderly care and gerontech with the general public.

sing a Strategy  Init
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Housing Society Exhibition Centre

Located at Prosperous Garden in Yau Ma Tei, the Housing Society
Exhibition Centre (HSEC) was established in December 2018 to share
with students, residents and the public the past, present and future of
Hong Kong’s housing development, as well as the Housing Society’s
roles and missions. Although the HSEC was closed for 2.5 months from
7 January to 31 March 2022 due to the pandemic, the Housing Society
continues to engage the public about the HSEC’s educational role by
setting up a virtual tour platform to showcase the exhibition areas. This
was complemented by videos that provide experiential learning
opportunities for teachers and students. During the year, a total of 12,079
people visited the HSEC through virtual tours or visits.

FOSTERING TIES WITH THE COMMUNITY

The Housing Society strives to foster partnerships with a wide range of
professional and non-governmental organisations to advance its mission
and fulfil its corporate social responsibility.

Given its stake with the community, the Housing Society is committed to
supporting different community activities by partnering with various
organisations. The participation and collaboration enable the Housing
Society to strengthen its bonding with the community and create a
In 2021/22, the Housing Society
engaged over 64,000 participants through various community activities.

positive environment for society.
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One of them is the “Arts in the aiR” Campaign, another initiative of the
Hong Kong Arts Development Council’s Arts Go Digital Platform Scheme.
Leveraging augmented reality (AR) technology, a mobile app was created
for members of the public to enjoy original art performances by local
young artists at the 20 rental estates of the Housing Society without time
or geographical constraints thereby bringing the “Art Tech” experience to
the community. The app recorded over 2,500 downloads from the public.

During the year, the Housing Society also supported or sponsored a total
of 100 community and industry events and activities, with most of them
focusing on industry developments, environmental protection,
occupational health and safety, helping the needy, and fostering the
development of young people. The total sponsorship amounted to more
than HK$1.3 million.

PRESERVING COMMUNITY SPIRITS IN
REDEVELOPED ESTATES

As redevelopment plans of some of our rental estates that were built
decades ago got underway, the Housing Society has embarked on a
cultural heritage preservation project to conserve collective
neighbourhood memories. This allows residents to relive them in different
ways and engage the community and stakeholders.
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Ming Wah Dai Ha

As the demolition work for the second phase of Ming Wah Dai Ha (MWDH)
Redevelopment is set to commence, the Housing Society has launched
two initiatives to preserve the memorable history of the estate.

In November and December 2021, members of the Housing Society
Academy Alumni Club visited the homes of seven elderly residents to
record their stories, and photograph some of their most memorable
places at MWDH, which were then incorporated into three-dimensional
fotomos (photo plus model) commemorating the past.

Furthering the project, the Housing Society commissioned a non-profit
organisation to start a series of interviews, researches and filming to
record MWDH’s history and stories behind the architecture, environment,
residents and its neighbourhood. In April 2022, the website “Story of
Ming Wah Dai Ha” was officially launched, telling stories that had taken
place at the estate, and showcasing a series of sketches illustrating the
spatial design, special features and old objects of MWDH.

In addition to these audio and visual recordings, some iconic heritage
items such as the Stone Plaque of Bishop Ronald Owen Hall, exterior
lattice wall, granite retaining wall, metal gate and mailboxes and more will
be kept and presented in different corners of the redeveloped estate. In
Phase Il Redevelopment, exhibition space has been reserved to treasure
and honour memories of the original MWDH community. The Housing
Society will also recruit young people and members of the Housing
Society Academy Alumni Club as community docents to introduce the
history and stories of MWDH to the mass public.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22
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Kwun Tong Garden Estate Phase I

Of the many rental estates under the Hong Kong Housing Society, Kwun
Tong Garden Estate (KTGE) is another one with an extensive history.
Soon to be redeveloped, it contains countless valuable memories and
neighbourhood stories from the past 50 years. The KTGE Phase |l
redevelopment project will help increase the housing supply and provide
a better living environment for residents of all ages and abilities.

To celebrate the KTGE'’s rich history, the Housing Society organised a
community photo competition with the theme of “Time e Place ¢ People”
from November 2021 to February 2022. Residents and the general public
were invited to capture KTGE through the lens, encouraging them to
record their precious memories and stories so they can live on for future
generations.

ENGAGING THE YOUNGER GENERATION
Hong Kong Housing Society Academy Alumni Club

Launched in 2019, the Housing Society Academy Alumni Club (Alumni
Club) acts as a platform to further engage past and present scholarship
awardees to enhance their personal and professional development
through professional sharing and community services.
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During the year, the Alumni Club invited the Housing Society Member
Professor Wong Bay to share online his insight with over 50 young
participants on hot topics of the housing industry, including sustainable
development, the trend of green building and the significance of building
design towards public health and safety, enlightening the participants on
their future professional development.

Seven other professional development programmes were organised in
partnership with four NGOs throughout the year including visits to the
accessible and adaptable design mock-up flats set up by the Housing
Society, a latte art workshop hosted together with Fair Trade Hong Kong.
These programmes offer Alumni Club members the opportunity to
expand their social network and horizons.

With the young members’ youthful energy and empathy with the
community, the Alumni Club is dedicated to contributing to the society
through various volunteer activities. Over the year, eight community
service programmes were organised in collaboration with 23 NGOs to
serve the children of under-resourced families and the elderly tenants of
the Housing Society’s rental estates and the neighbourhood. Examples
of such activities include distribution of mooncakes and face masks to
needy people and the homeless during Mid-Autumn Festival, and a book
recycling campaign across our rental estates with 5,000 books being
collected and given out to underprivileged children.
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HKHS Gerontech Competition

To engage fresh minds in future applications of gerontechnology, the
Housing Society successfully concluded its inaugural HKHS Gerontech
Competition in April 2021. Students from secondary schools and tertiary
institutions were invited to invent products that enhance the elderly’s
quality of life through creative applications of technology and
gerontechnology, fostering an intergenerational community. In total 750
students from 149 teams took part in the Competition.

The Competition was held again in this academic year, drawing an
overwhelming response from about 700 students who formed 163
teams. A series of online discussions and visits were organised to
enhance students’ knowledge of gerontechnology and the actual needs
of the elderly.

HKHS League eSports Competition

With an aim to educate the younger generation on our history, values and
housing services, the Housing Society hosted its first-ever tournament on
“HKHS League”.
more than 2,800 students from 80 primary and

the gamified learning platform PaGamO, Since
December 2021,
secondary schools in Hong Kong were engaged to take part in the online
games, through which participants could access a bundle of knowledge
about the Housing Society’s development and fun facts. Top 12 teams
are invited to compete for the championship, which will take place in the

summer of 2022.
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Outreach Education Programme

The Housing Society also launched its Outreach Education Programme
delivering on-site education and activities to primary and secondary
schools to help students learn about local housing and related topics.
During the year, the Programme visited six schools, benefiting 908
students and teachers, while “HS e-Academy”, an online education portal
launched in 2020, received over 32,000 hits.

BRAND BUILDING

We are honoured to have received numerous awards, accolades and
recognitions in 25 award schemes. These are testaments to the Housing
Society’s outstanding performance, especially in governance and
administration, and highlights the important role we play in driving Hong
Kong’s sustainable development.

Our excellence in management and corporate governance has earned us
several prestigious awards, namely the Excellence Award of the 2021
HKMA Quiality Award by the Hong Kong Management Association as well
as the “Outstanding Corporate Strategy Awards 2021” of East Week
Magazine. We have also received “The Outstanding NGO — Diamond”
and “Special Awards (Criteria set by Fund Managers) — Outstanding
ESG Company — Platinum” in the “ESG Achievement Awards 20207,
organised by Institute of ESG and Benchmark (IESGB) for our exemplary
performance in the environmental, social and governance aspects.
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Other recognitions include the “Gold Award for Volunteer Service
(Organisation)” in the Award for Volunteer Service, organised by the
Steering Committee on Promotion of Volunteer Service of the Social
Welfare Department; an “Age-friendly Facilities Award” in the Age-friendly
City Partnership Scheme 2020; as well as the Job Market’s Employer of
Choice Award for the third year in a row, and a “COVID-19 Caring
Employer” in the Employer of Choice Award 2021. These honours fuel
our continuing efforts across community relations, talent cultivation and
development.

Lastly, one of our frontline staff was honoured at the Ombudsman’s
Awards 2021 for Officers of Public Organisations, organised by the Office
of The Ombudsman. The award recognised his professionalism in
handling complaints and commitment to providing quality, proactive
customer service for the public and our residents.
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As Hong Kong’s “housing laboratory”, the Housing Society keeps
progressing with the times as it explores new housing solutions that
address the different needs of the Hong Kong people. Leveraging on its
experience and innovative ideas, the Housing Society strives to stay

creative as it makes its business successful and sustainable.

In April 2021,
commenced an 18-month intergenerational living study with The Chinese

the Policy Research and Business Innovation Unit

University of Hong Kong to explore new housing prototypes for the city
that can better meet the needs of people of all ages, especially in the
face of an ageing population. Drawing on learnings from other places as
well as the views of local residents, the study will propose a desirable
intergenerational living model for Hong Kong and generate innovative
ideas to foster interactions and activities for different generations. This
model is expected to be piloted in the Housing Society’s rental estates or
properties.

In parallel, the Housing Society has always made accessibility in the living
environment a key factor of consideration during the design and
construction phases to facilitate the evolving needs of different residents.
Elements of universal design and barrier free provisions were constantly
adopted to various extent in our housing projects to create liveable
homes for people of different abilities. A recent example is the Ming Wah
Dai Ha Redevelopment Phase |, which is comprised of elderly units,
accessible units and adaptable units to foster an inclusive community
and intergenerational harmony.

In an effort to study and enhance the applications of accessible and
adaptable designs in different types of domestic units, the Housing
Society commissioned a study in 2020 to examine age-friendly design
and amenities in accessible units to enhance the flexibility of adaptable
design while improving efficiency in the use of indoor space.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22

ERBEANIFEERE] BhHh EHEE
VERRFOEENR UneBETR

MARFER - EHEELELBMAED 4
TEAREH  SEBBURD RAFE
TR -

R-ZZE-_—FHA BRWARNREBKEH
MEFBFXARBEAERASH T N\EAR
MBEREEMR RSB ETRFEEA
ITENSHEHEERN CEBITEEA
OMHR Wﬁ%%ﬁ@mﬁﬂm%&$
WERNBER ROBEAEENBERHK
BEER Ié%ﬂﬁmﬁﬁﬁTHE%
BERZEANXRMES BEMHNEH
BEThHEEBREmEAT-

HtARK FH —ESERBETIRESR
ERFMEIRBENEEZEEELE U
ETRAERTEHEENT R - HMITFE
EFEEEEMATRAEENRABRIANE
EmEmETR ATREIHATEER
ERXRBE -BREAXEF —HEZHEEEREA
HOEs T ZBEEREREEMN  BER
BAMARBENL - B EREHLEAHEA
BRI -

RARLRABEER L AR RFTETR
BAEEENFNER BHR_FT-_F
FRARBHE -BERE REEERE
ﬁ%%%ﬁ%&ﬁ& Rt ATR = A B
RAMBEERRAZEAEZENES



Business Overview ¥ &

Developing Capabilities for the Future BRKEMNE H

As part of the study, mock-up flat prototypes of three housing types,
namely Public Rental Housing, Subsidised Sale Flats and Senior Citizen
Residences Scheme were set up in late 2021 to illustrate the design
concepts in physical form. Over 1,100 stakeholders from relevant
Government departments, professional groups and institutions, elderly
service providers and academics were invited to experience the mock-up
units and exchange opinions on design concepts and future applications.
In the next stage, based on the views collected and consolidated,
enhanced version of the mock-up flats will be built with more household
items suitable for elderly and wheelchair users.

NURTURING FUTURE LEADERS

Committed to helping younger people realise their full potential, the
Housing Society offers scholarships, internships, and community service
opportunities. These nurturing initiatives aim to contribute to the long-
term development of the housing industry in Hong Kong and the
provision of related services.
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Hong Kong Housing Society Award

Launched in 2006, the Hong Kong Housing Society Award is designed to
support talent development for the housing and elderly care professions,
through rewarding outstanding students in related disciplines while
providing financial assistance to those in need.

During the year, the 17" HKHS Award enrolled a total of 96 students
from 11 local tertiary institutions, continuing education schools and
community colleges, as well as three member institutions of the
Vocational Training Council. This year, the scholarship/bursary awarded
to each student was raised to HK$10,000. In addition, two outstanding
students of the Master of Housing Management Programme of The
University of Hong Kong received the “Father Cronin Memorial Award”
with each being awarded a HK$10,000 scholarship. During the year, the
Housing Society contributed a total of HK$1,129,000 in scholarships and
bursaries.

Internship and Trainee Programmes

To offer a more immersive experience and learning opportunities for the
next generation, the Housing Society provides a range of short-term
internship opportunities. The annual Housing Society Summer Internship
Programme offered six to eight-week internships to 62 tertiary students
who were all keen to pursue a career in housing and related fields.
Students were assigned to different departments and visited rental
estates and facilities to gain practical working experience. Job seeking
and interview skills workshops were arranged to prepare them for
entering the workplace.
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During the year, the Housing Society also collaborated with tertiary
institutions, secondary schools and various associations to provide nine
job attachment and internship opportunities. These included the Job
Shadowing Programme for Social Welfare Department, the MWYO
Corporate Internship for the independent think tank MWYO, Hong Kong
Baptist University, Po Leung Kuk, The Hang Seng University of Hong
Kong, Vocational Training Council, The University of Hong Kong, The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Work Experience Movement of
Education Bureau, and the YMCA. The participating students also
received short-term on-the-job training to gain hands-on work
experience.

The Housing Society initiated Officer Trainee programmes for its Property
Management Division and Information Technology Section to provide
high-calibre graduates a promising career in the housing industry.
Successful candidates will undergo a one or two-year training programme
designed to fast-track their careers. During the programme, trainees can
develop their potential through a series of classrooms, on-the-job
coachings, site visits and project assignments. The effectiveness of
learning is augmented through mentoring and periodic progress review.

ENHANCING CAPABILITY FOR BUSINESS
CONTINUITY

A significant trait of the Housing Society that makes it a “housing
laboratory” is its capacity to create value and public impact through
innovation. To build a culture of innovation, the Housing Society regularly
brings forward new initiatives which provides a suitable environment for
innovative minds.
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Newly Opened Operations Headquarters

To meet its expansion and development needs, the Housing Society
restructured the allocation of its headquarters. The new Corporate Office
at World Trade Centre and Operations Headquarters at 1063 King's
Road were officially open during the year.

Adopting a hybrid office layout, both new offices feature a range of
workspaces that facilitate communication and collaboration. These
include multipurpose meeting rooms, huddle spaces, individual phone
booths, and shared open spaces offering flexible meeting areas for both
staff and visitors.

The new offices offer staff facilities such as adjustable workstations,
nursing rooms and self-service spacious pantries. To provide a healthy
and comfortable workplace, the new offices were designed to incorporate
a range of environmentally-friendly elements such as green walls, LED
lighting with motion sensors, and fittings and furnishing made from
recycled materials.

Building an Innovative Corporate Culture

At the Housing Society, innovative ideas driven by passionate staff are
common. To further encourage an innovative corporate culture to all staff,
a Pilot Innovative Technology Seed Fund was launched in November
2021. Staff members of the Housing Society can apply for funds up to
HK$500,000 to implement innovative ideas that enhance work practices.
So far, three applications have been approved and the proposals are
expected to be implemented in the coming year.
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On multiple occasions during training and development, the Housing
Society implemented its core value for innovation and creativity in its
businesses. The Management Forum, which is held annually to foster a
more fruitful communication between the staff, was held in August 2021
for around 220 managerial staff. The Forum, themed “New Office, New
Dimension, New Normal”, consisted of a review of key business
achievements during the year and outlined directions and challenges for
the year ahead, calling for staff members’ concerted efforts to provide

quality and satisfactory operation performance for our stakeholders.

In addition, the triennial corporate-wide team building programme held in
the last two quarters of the year had the theme “New Dimensions,
Together We Achieve”. The training programme was organised using a
new approach, offering 12 different activities in 34 sessions for over 1,000
staff members, with four categories: “Serving the Community”, “Art and

» o«

Creativity”, “Exploring the Unknown”, and “Win-win Cooperation”. Some
of these programmes were executed in the form of painting metal gates
for elderly living alone in the Housing Society’s rental estates and
teaching seniors to use social media. Staff members also learned to

extend their care to the residents and the community.

Apart from serving the community and building team spirit, a key element
of the training programme was to promote innovation through introducing
fresh experiences to staff. Programmes such as band ensemble, art
jamming, dragon dance and eSport, helped stimulate creativity in their
daily work.
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TALENT MANAGEMENT

Headcount by Division

EWMHETAH
No. of Staff as at 31 March 2022
ET#AE HE-T-—F=A=t+-—ALt

Division &FF9

B Property Management Division
MEEIEEL
Corporate Planning and Finance Division
=3 Iedup

B Development and Marketing Division
UESEYS GRS
Projects Division
TR &I

B Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director's Office

THRREFRPTRBERRE

The Housing Society prides itself on providing a pleasant and healthy
working environment where employees are able to derive satisfaction and
thrive in their careers. As at the end of March 2022, the Housing
Society’s headcount was 1,423. With “Talent” being the biggest
operational assets in the face of our expanding businesses, the Housing
Society continues to devote vast resources in employees’ engagement
and training.
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Strengthening the Workforce and Capabilities

During the year, the Housing Society strengthened its workforce with the
peak of construction in sight. The Central Technical Team of the Projects
Division was expanded to explore and tailor implementation of new
technologies and industry practices and to harmonise internal standards
across different divisions to accommodate the needs of project
management and development design.

Additionally, to allow existing staff members to grow and thrive alongside
the organisation, the Housing Society engaged our staff through various
learning and development initiatives to equip them with the requisite
knowledge, skills and mindset. A three-month Job Swap programme
was piloted in 2021, under which staff from projects, development and
marketing, and property management expertise could enjoy cross-
division exposure to enhance their long-term career development.

During the year, an average of 21.1 hours of training was provided for
each employee. Simultaneously, under the new normal and staying
abreast with concurrent market trends, an interactive luncheon learning
culture was introduced and additional learning opportunities were offered
online. These were well received by colleagues who wanted to acquire
new knowledge amid their busy work schedule. Additional bite-sized
e-learning wares were engaged in the provision of full array of learning
programmes.
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Staff’s Years of Service

ETRREEH
No. of Staff as at 31 March 2022
ET#AE BE-—T-——F=A=t+-—ALt

Years of Service BRFEEH

M Less than 3 years 627
LR=FE
3-5 years 199
=FhHF

M 5-10 years 218
HE+HE
10-20 years 189
+E=-+%

W 20 years and above 190
ZTERRE

Cultivating a Healthy Workplace

The Housing Society attaches great importance to the employees’
wellbeing. The “HS Wellness” series was created during the year to
support employees’ health and wellness, and to encourage them to live
healthier. The quarterly event features a number of talks, activities or
seminars focused on topics such as personal and family health, as well
as physical and emotional wellbeing.

During recent years, working culture has faced significant changes under
the new normal. While more working communications are conducted
online, and employees are given the flexibility to work from home when
necessary and feasible in operations, the Housing Society offered a range
of programmes to support their psychological health, such as webinars
on stress and anxiety management. In addition, an Employee Assistance
Programme was set up, including a service hotline for staff and their
families seeking professional counselling and advisory services.

Qur care goes well beyond our own staff. Every year, we award
scholarships and bursaries to our employees’ children to encourage their
pursuit of academic excellence. During the year, five students were
awarded scholarships in recognition of their outstanding academic
performance, and another 29 students were granted bursaries, under the
Housing Society Scholarship and Bursary Scheme for Employees’
Children. The Scheme has granted HK$2.22 million in total to more than
735 students since it was launched in 2006.
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Satisfaction among staff helps bring better retention. During the year, 96
staff members were honoured with the “Long Service Award” for their
loyalty and contribution to the organisation. As of 31 March 2022, 401
staff members had a career with the Housing Society of more than ten
years, 46 of whom had passed the 30-year service milestone and
another nine had been with us for more than 35 years.

Staff Integrity and Professional Ethics

To ensure employees adhere to best practices with high standards of
integrity and professional ethics, the Housing Society draws on the
experiences and knowledge of statutory bodies to render them the
necessary support. The Independent Commission Against Corruption,
the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data, the Equal
Opportunities Commission and the Office of the Ombudsman were
invited to hold talks for our staff on a range of topics pertaining to
legislation and code of practice on anti-corruption, personal data, equal
opportunities and access to information.

These training sessions serve to equip our staff with clear guidance on
professional ethics while performing their day-to-day duties. During the

year, five seminars and some refresher courses were arranged. Around
270 staff participated in the courses.
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ENHANCEMENTS IN INFORMATION B EMR#
TECHNOLOGY

Investment in Information Technology
ERRHE T ENRE

as at 31 March 2022

HE-2-_F=-A=t+-—HLt

Year HK$million
Fip BEEET

ey
o1 N 59

2000 N

2ororo I 25

zorne I 18

The Housing Society is keen to utilise information and robotic FEiiEHREMR AN EEM AR B(tR
technologies to streamline internal work processes and enhance the EFT{ERIZ IEFA R - AlE Y HTEE
customer experience. To cope with the accelerating pace of digital FU2E X IR BE - FE#H N ERNE R AR
transformation, the Housing Society invested heavily during the year in @ BRE R EAR R EZ L BAEFRE
information technology infrastructure to provide customers and staff with T2 B Z AWM ARG - £X © E iR
a secure and trustworthy information service. During the year, the B4 F % & 19 49 48 (SD-WAN) £ 1l 52 A%
Housing Society completed the modernisation of its network by adopting  #8IR{S{b T{E - I X BEHEMA S - LUE
SD-WAN technology. This increases the capacity of our corporate #4EfRiGseBE=E NMURTRIME A
network and makes network services available to all of our offices in ¥ A E

different locations.
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To enhance efficiency and effectiveness in our daily operations, the
Housing Society introduced Robotic Process Automation (RPA), with
which some business processes in both Applications Section and Human
Resources Section have been automated. It is a major component of the
Housing Society’s digital journey to transform repetitive, time-intensive,
and error-prone manual tasks such as bank reconciliations. By
automating reconciliation steps with RPA, human resources could be
better allocated to perform missions that require critical judgement
instead of the labour-intensive processes, thereby enhancing productivity
and minimising the risk of manual errors. The Housing Society is
considering extending RPA application to other business areas such as
preparing financial reports. The Housing Society’s success in promoting
RPA was recognised with a “Good Practice of RPA, 2021” at the
Chartered Global Management Accountant (CGMA) Annual Awards in
December 2021.

In addition, the Housing Society launched a new cloud-based Human
Resource Management System (HRMS) with an Employee Self-Service
app. Employees can now read the latest company news, anytime and
anywhere. With cybersecurity as a top priority, the Housing Society
maintains robust cybersecurity measures and actively monitors
cybersecurity threats. To this end, the HRMS was accredited with
ISO 27001 (Information Security Management System) certification to
ensure that the information assets of the system are well managed and
protected to remain safe and secure in the new cloud platform. Financial
controls were migrated to the NetSuite Accounting System and a new
Works Order System is being implemented to improve cost-effectiveness
and operational efficiency.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

RIR - dEMED

Serving as a key provider of quality and affordable housing for numerous
families and people in need, the Housing Society recognises its
commitment to the community and the environment. It applies
environmental, social and governance (ESG) metrics to strategic planning,
delivering quality services to tenants, and maintaining the best
governance practices.

The Housing Society is committed to weaving sustainability into its
businesses and daily operations to reduce its carbon footprint and build
a more inclusive and harmonious community. To achieve its goals, the
Housing Society has allocated over HK$320 million during the year to
support social initiatives including transitional housing projects, talent
development and environmental protection initiatives, as well as various
community care programmes.

For details about our sustainability practices, please refer to the
Sustainability Report 2021/22.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Reducing Carbon Emissions

As a world-class solution provider and innovator of quality affordable
housing, the Housing Society constantly improves the ISO 74001
Environmental Management System and applies holistic green-
construction principles across the entire housing development life cycle
— from design and planning, building and construction, to property
management and daily operations.

The Housing Society is committed to executing decarbonisation
strategies and measures. We have pledged to set carbon reduction
targets under the Business Environment Council’'s Low Carbon Charter.
By 2029/30, with 2012/13 as the baseline year, we aim to have lowered
energy consumption by 15 per cent across our operations. In addition,
we also joined hands with some 60 other partners from the public and
private sectors to participate in the Carbon Neutrality Partnership initiated
by the Environment Bureau in October 2021. As a Carbon Neutrality
Partner, we pledged to support Hong Kong'’s goal of achieving carbon
neutrality before 2050. Additionally, the Housing Society is setting
concrete targets and timetables in various areas to fulfil our pledge
including advancing renewable energy development, energy saving and
green buildings, green transport popularisation, and improving waste
reduction.
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Environmental, Social and Governance &%

Using a green mindset, environmental consideration plays an integral part
in the entire development process, from design to construction. Apart
from adopting innovative construction technologies including
prefabrication and Modular Integrated Construction (MiC) methods to
reduce construction wastes and its impacts to the environment, the
Housing Society has developed a set of holistic guidelines for our
consultants and contractors to follow in an effort to improve
environmental performances in the development process and to build in
the key green building parameters from energy to materials, water, indoor
environmental quality and landscape design. Energy efficient designs and
sustainable features catering to the changing needs of residents are also
incorporated in housing designs.

In our future building contracts, we will require our contractors to procure
prescribed certified green building materials as tender requirements. We
are also incorporating sustainable features in our new buildings, such as
sun canopies to reduce heat, wind-channeling canopies of different
heights to improve ventilation, and natural light tubes to bring in natural
light efficiently. All these initiatives aim to reduce the use of air
conditioning and artificial lighting, therefore saving energy.

All the housing projects of the Housing Society launched after 2004 have
participated in the Hong Kong Green Building Council’s Building
Environment Assessment Method (BEAM or BEAM Plus) for building
assessment and certification as a means to benchmark the overall
environmental performance of our building projects. By the end of the
review period, a total of 19 developments were certified by BEAM or
BEAM Plus.

HEMER
Environmental B35

FAGEED RMARRAUEZRIHE
RRE NEBREAFEEREENER —
IR o f5 15 BR B BIET AY i SR BT - TR B
RIEEEMRIZESEE UWRDBEEREM R
HHRIBAOZE - O 515 SRR fo
EEBET —E2ENES EXRGEMAR
BREERBEPRARRKRE  BHRET
NARERETNIEER  BEER
MR K ERARBERRESERAS - %
ERFATERABRESERAIFEER
X UOEERTEEENHNK -

EREERNBESOT  RAXHEFREK M
AR BREARBAREERBRESD
BERERENZKEEZEMH - RMTKE
FERBFARATHEERNTE  fl0
R MBHERELGERE  JHBRE
MEREXFEABKZBEE A KREEH RS
)\Q%%Eﬁﬁi‘ﬁmﬁiﬁb%mi’ﬂ‘éﬁﬂﬁiﬂ\
ERAEHARATRE HmMELEER -

FHR_—_TZENFRELNAEFSEHRHA
ME2EBERECEEREN/RERSE
AR RRFTIFERRE UWEE

BRERAENERRERRA -BEAFESF
K EHAETNAEZERARES
SRR AR IRFT IR -

[EREIR

EHEEERE 2021/22 FEF R

119



Environmental, Social and Governance BiE - + € &34

Environmental 215

Enforcing Environmental Initiatives in Operations

Currently, all of our rental estates and managed properties are ISO 714001
certified which primarily promotes improved environmental performance.
This is achieved through reducing waste and conserving energy, leading
to major cost savings and enabling our business to develop more
sustainably. The Housing Society continues to promote environmental
initiatives in our rental estates to appeal to individual responsibility in
recycling and waste reduction, through organising various programmes
such as beverage carton recycling, food waste recycling and festival food
donation. A special project was also launched in Lok Man Sun Chuen,
funded by the Lee Hysan Foundation and operated by a non-profit
organisation, to engage tenants in a series of activities on environmental
protection.

During the year, seven out of 20 rental estates including Jat Min Chuen
were named Hong Kong Green Organisation by the Environmental
Campaign Committee for their outstanding performance in waste
reduction, energy saving, carbon reduction and indoor air quality
improvement.

Moreover, the Housing Society is implementing green office management
by focusing on maintaining good air quality, promoting recycling and
reducing energy consumption. Included in our efforts is encouraging
paperless operations with several sections adopting the use of e-forms.
A total of 575 used computer equipment such as desktop and notebook
computers, printers and LCD monitors were donated to charitable
organisations for reuse or recycle. During the year, the head office
located at World Trade Centre maintained its “Excellent” IAQ ranking and
the regional office at Dragon Centre received another “Good” rating
under the Environmental Protection Department’s Indoor Air Quality
Certification Scheme.
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Providing Adequate Homes to Meet the Needs of the
Community

Echoing Government’s policy to increase the supply of transitional
housing, the Housing Society has rolled out different housing schemes,
optimising the use of housing resources to meet the housing needs of
the community.

“T-Home” Transitional Rental Housing Scheme

The Housing Society launched its first “T-Home” project at Yue Kwong
Chuen in 2018, with an aim to allow idle units pending redevelopment in
rental estates to be used by families queuing for public rental housing
thus providing them with an improved living environment.

Riding on its success of its subsequent projects at Kwun Tong Garden
Estate, Trackside Villas and Chun Seen Mei Chuen, the Housing Society
launched the fifth T-Home project at Ming Wah Dai Ha (MWDH) in late
2021. In the course of the redevelopment of MWDH, some units left idle
due to the decanting process were renovated and converted into T-Home
to provide accommodation for eligible families waiting for public rental
units. MWDH T-Home offers a total of 112 domestic units with internal
floor area varying from 16 to 45 square metres, suitable for 2 to 4-person
households. Households began to gradually move into the flats starting in
December 2021.
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As of 31 March 2022, five T-Home projects offering around 700 units had
been launched. The Housing Society plans to release more flats to offer a
total of 1,000 units from its rental estates and Trackside Vilas as
transitional housing.

The Letting Scheme

The “Letting Scheme for Subsidised Sale Developments with Premium
Unpaid”, which was launched in 2018 as a pilot scheme and enhanced in
2019, enables eligible owners who have owned a subsidised sale flat
under the Housing Society or Hong Kong Housing Authority (HA) for ten
years or more with premium unpaid, to let their entire flats or individual
bedrooms to eligible public rental housing applicants.

The enhanced Scheme, which aims to better utilise existing housing
resources, was positively received by the public and achieved another
favourable turn — the regular participation of the HA since mid-2021. Its
ongoing participation continues to provide a steady pool of eligible flats
for letting to eligible tenants.

The outcome paves the way for the Letting Scheme to continue helping
the needy in the community. Since its launch until 31 March 2022, the
enhanced Scheme had received around 1,000 and 1,500 applications
from owners and tenants respectively, and approved around 790 and
500 applications from owners and tenants respectively, with around 120
tenancy agreements signed.
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Making an Impact with Volunteerism

The Housing Society remains active in serving and creating a positive
impact on the community, through participating in numerous charitable
events and volunteer activities. Its volunteer teams, namely the CES (Caring,
Engaging and Smart) Team, the Housing Society Academy Alumni Club
(Alumni Club) and Housing Society Volunteer Team altogether contributed
over 6,000 hours of community services for more than 64,000
beneficiaries during the year. The volunteer teams have paid immense
efforts to extend their care and support to our residents and members of
the community through organising visits, workshops and community
events, both in physical and online modes.

The contributions of the volunteer teams have earned them a handful of
awards this year. These include receiving four awards at the “Construction
Industry Volunteer Award Scheme 2021” organised by the Construction
Industry Council: “Excellence in Construction Industry Volunteering
Project (Merit)”, “Excellence in Construction Industry Volunteering
Collaboration (Merit)”, “Most Supportive Organisation” and “Merit Award
for Participation”. The awards recognise the Housing Society for its
outstanding contributions in promoting volunteer services. In addition, the
Alumni Club received a Certificate of Appreciation by the Agency for
Volunteer Service and a Gold Award for the Social Welfare Department’s
“Volunteer Movement” during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Structure
Incorporation

Hong Kong Housing Society was established in 1948 and incorporated in
1951 under the Hong Kong Housing Society Incorporation Ordinance (Cap
1059). It is an independent, not-for-profit organisation governed by its
members.

The Housing Society is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and recognises that good corporate governance is
crucial for its long-term success and business sustainability in the ever
changing environment. Transparency and the pursuit of best practices
are the cornerstones of this commitment.

Two-tier Board Structure

The Housing Society’s two-tier Board comprises a Supervisory Board
and an Executive Committee. This corporate governance model
separates the role of oversight and management of operations. In
particular, the Supervisory Board determines the mission, vision, core
values and guiding principles of the Housing Society; the Executive
Committee sets the strategies and policies to achieve the mission and
objectives; and the Management is accountable for the implementation of
the strategies in the business operations.

The Nominating Committee and the Audit Committee support the
Supervisory Board in the areas of membership nomination and
admission; and financial reporting and internal control respectively. The
Human Resources Committee supports the Executive Committee in the
areas of overall compensation strategy and the appointment and
remuneration of top management executives. Special committees and
task forces may also be established by the Supervisory Board and the
Executive Committee, respectively, as and when necessary to advise on
specific business areas. Having various committees to support the key
Board functions increases the Board’s efficiency, enhances its focus on
high-impact issues, leverages specific skills contained within the Housing
Society membership, and deepens members’ commitment.
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Efficient Board Process
Strategic Planning

The Housing Society adopts a rigorous and continuous strategic planning
process. Every calendar year, a brainstorming session is held on the
strategic business focuses and long-term development. All members of
the Housing Society are invited to join the session to share their thoughts
on various strategic initiatives as well as the Housing Society’s roles,
priorities and long-term development. Members’ views expressed at the
brainstorming session are taken into consideration at a joint meeting
between the Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee for the
formulation of the corporate business plan.

The brainstorming session for the year was held on 4 November 2021,
and was attended by 90 members and senior management. In addition,
the joint meeting of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee
was held on 16 December 2021 to follow up on members’ views
expressed.

Information and Support

The Management submits an annual corporate business plan to the
Executive Committee for its approval. Progress is monitored and
evaluated through key performance measures. The Supervisory Board
and the Executive Committee also receive quarterly and monthly reports
from the Management, respectively, on financial performance and key
events and management decisions. Major decisions beyond the agreed
Management authority, are submitted to the Executive Committee for
approval. The minutes and monthly reports of the Executive Committee

are circulated to members of the Supervisory Board.

A schedule for Board and Committee meetings is prepared for each
calendar year. Standing items in the agenda are identified to ensure that
matters relating to corporate strategy, corporate performance
management, finance, risk management and internal control, admission
of members and Board and Committee membership composition are
discussed at appropriate intervals throughout the year.
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To help our members keep abreast of current trends and issues facing
the Housing Society, various business activities were arranged during the
year, such as site-visit to accessible and adaptable design mock-up flats,
webinar on the topic of “Rehearse Hong Kong into a New Landscape”
delivered by The Hon Jasper Tsang Yok-sing and the Chairman’s
Luncheon. Members were also invited to attend various corporate events.
In addition to our corporate newsletter “Housing Society Today”, quarterly
“e-Bulletin” is also issued to members to keep them posted on the up-to-
date business development and member activities of the Housing
Society.

Induction for New Board and Committee Members

A tailor-made orientation pack is provided to newly-joined Supervisory
Board members and other Committee members. This pack contains
information on the Housing Society’s governance structure and strategic
business focuses, terms of reference of the Supervisory Board, the
Executive Committee and other Committees, as well as recent discussion
papers on major businesses. Induction meetings are also organised for
new Board and Committee members with the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director and other Directors, so that they can receive
information on the Housing Society’s business operations and the latest
developments.

Management of Conflicts of Interest

A two-tier declaration of interest system is adopted to ensure a
transparent and clean corporate image affixed to the Housing Society.
Board and Committee members are required to declare their interests,
directly or indirectly, in a contract with the Housing Society in each year
after the holding of the annual general meeting; and immediately before
the holding of every meeting held for the purpose of considering that
contract or matters in relation thereto. The concerned Board and
Committee members will not take part in the deliberation of the contract
unless permission is granted by the chairman of the meeting.

Owing to the high public expectation and in order to protect the image of
the Housing Society, the Chairman, any employer of the Chairman, any
firm in which the Chairman is a partner, and any company of which not
less than half of the issued share capital is beneficially owned by the
Chairman shall not, during the term of chairmanship of the Chairman,
enter into or tender for any contract with the Housing Society unless the
Supervisory Board determines that it is beneficial to the Housing Society
to enter into such contract.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director are
held by different persons and their roles are distinct and separate with a
clear and well established division of responsibilities. The Chairman is
elected among members of the Supervisory Board and oversees the
strategic direction of the Housing Society. The Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director is appointed by the Executive Committee and
reports to the Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee. The
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director is responsible for executing
the strategies and policies set by the Executive Committee and
administering the affairs in the Housing Society.

Annual General Meeting

The Housing Society holds an annual general meeting (AGM) in every
calendar year where the Chairman reads a brief synopsis of the preceding
year’s business. The 2021 AGM was held on 2 September 2021 at the
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre and attended by 76
members. At the 2021 AGM, the Chairman reported the Housing
Society’s achievements in 2020/21. Key business considered included
receipt of the audited financial statements and auditor’s report for the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 and the annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2021; the appointment of auditor for the financial
year 2021/22, and the election of Supervisory Board members for the
membership year 2021/22.

Membership of Housing Society

During the year, four new members joined the Housing Society, namely
Dr Johnnie Casire Chan Chi-kau, Mr Jacky Ip Kam-shing, Mr Paul Li
Man-hong and Mr Alex Lo Ching-yuen. Mr Charles Sin Cho-chiu and Mr
John Loo Wun-loong passed away in October 2021 and March 2022,
respectively, and ceased to be a member. Mr Lee Choy-sang and Mr
Michael Lee Tze-hau resigned as a member in September 2021 and
October 2021, respectively.

The Housing Society had 154 members as of 31 March 2022, 61 of
whom served on the Supervisory Board, the Executive Committee and
various Committees. A full list of Housing Society members is shown on
pages 40 to 43. Profiles of our Supervisory Board and Executive
Committee members as well as our Directorate and Senior Management
Team are shown on pages 34 to 39 and pages 44 to 45, respectively.
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The composition of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee
comprises a balanced mix of professionals, business executives, experts
in community services and academia. The diverse background of
members ensures both the breadth and depth of skills and also the
expertise required to steer the development and strategic direction of our
businesses.

Election and Appointment of Board and Committee
Members

The term of office of members of the Supervisory Board, the Executive
Committee and various Committees is normally three years (“year”
meaning the period between two consecutive AGMs for the calculation of
terms of office). At least one-third of the existing members of the
Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee, excluding the ex officio
members and the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, must
retire from office at each AGM. This is to maintain a balance between
continuity and the introduction of new blood while ensuring that the
Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee have the calibre, skills
and experience required. The Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the
Supervisory Board are not required to retire and will not be taken into
account when determining the number of members required to retire
during their three-year terms of office.

Supervisory Board and Executive Committee
Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board establishes the Housing Society’s mission, vision,
core values and guiding principles, and oversees all nomination, election
and audit functions. The Supervisory Board appoints members to the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nominating Committee,
the Human Resources Committee and the Special Committees, and is
responsible for the performance of the Audit Committee and the
Nominating Committee. It also advises and provides guidance to the
Executive Committee on issues of stakeholder interests, public relations
and changes in the external environment.

As of 1 April 2021, the Supervisory Board had 25 members, comprising
20 who were elected, four government officials as ex officio members,
namely, the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
(retitted as Permanent Secretary for Housing as from 1 July 2022),
Director of Lands, Director of Planning and Director of Buildings, and the
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. To the purpose of new
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members’ recruitment and to ensure a smooth succession process, a
“two-year grace period” requirement has been adopted since the 2015
AGM. Accordingly, a member who retires from the Supervisory Board
after six or more consecutive years of service will not be eligible for re-
election for two years until the second AGM following his/her retirement.

At the AGM held on 2 September 2021, eight Supervisory Board
members retired, namely Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok, Prof Ling Kar-kan,
Mr Au Choi-kai, Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man, Dr Lam Ching-choi, Mrs Agnes
Mak Tang Pik-yee, Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum and Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi,
hence, this should fulfil the one-third retirement rule. Mr Au Choi-kai,
Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man and Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi had served on the
Supervisory Board for six or more consecutive years and were not eligible
to stand for re-election. Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok, Prof Ling Kar-kan,
Dr Lam Ching-choi, Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee and Mr Alvin Mak
Wing-sum stood for re-election and were successfully re-elected to the
Supervisory Board. The other three members elected to the Supervisory
Board were Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping, Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted and
Ms Theresa Yeung Wing-shan. Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok and Prof Ling
Kar-kan were re-elected Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, respectively, at the Supervisory Board meeting held immediately
after the 2021 AGM. The Supervisory Board consisted of 25 members as
of 31 March 2022.

During the year, five Supervisory Board meetings were held with an
overall attendance rate of 98 per cent, and one joint meeting with the
Executive Committee was held with an attendance rate of 82 per cent.
The Supervisory Board reviewed the overall corporate strategic plan; the
corporate business focuses for 2021/22; the consolidated views of the
2021 brainstorming session; and the half-year reports submitted by the
Audit Committee. The Supervisory Board also approved the
establishment of the whistleblowing policy for the Housing Society and
the enhancements to the guidelines for admission of new members, and
received from the Management a full year report for 2021/22; quarterly
reports on major events and management decisions; updates on housing
projects and new initiatives. Based on the Nominating Committee’s
recommendations, the Supervisory Board approved the admission of four
new members to the Housing Society; and appointed members to the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nominating Committee, Human
Resources Committee and Special Committees.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is accountable to the Supervisory Board, and
responsible for setting the major policies and strategies. It also approves
strategies proposed by the Management, monitors Management
performance and ensures that the strategies and decisions made are
consistent with the mission and direction laid down by the Supervisory
Board.

There were 12 members on the Executive Committee as of 1 April 2021,
comprising the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
(retitled as Permanent Secretary for Housing as from 1 July 2022) serving
as an ex officio member, the Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director, and eight members appointed by the Supervisory Board. At the
AGM held on 2 September 2021, four members retired from the
Executive Committee, namely Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok, Prof Ling Kar-kan,
Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping and Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan, fulfiling the one-
third retirement rule. Except for Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping who had already
served on the Executive Committee for six consecutive years, the other
three retiring members were eligible for re-appointment. As Mr Walter
Chan Kar-lok and Prof Ling Kar-kan had been successfully re-elected
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board, respectively, at
the Supervisory Board meeting held immediately after the 2021 AGM,
they were the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the Executive
Committee, respectively. At the same Supervisory Board meeting,
Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan was re-appointed and Mr Au Choi-kai was
appointed to the Executive Committee for a three-year term of office. The
Executive Committee comprised 12 members as of 31 March 2022.

During the year, the Executive Committee held ten meetings with an
overall attendance rate of 94 per cent, and two joint meetings with the
Supervisory Board and the Human Resources Committee with an
attendance rate of 82 and 94 per cent respectively. The key areas of
review attempted by the Executive Committee during the year included
the corporate performance review for 2020/21, corporate performance
measures for 2021/22; audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021; the corporate business plan and consolidated budget
for 2022/23; and salary adjustment and remuneration policy review
based on the recommendations of the Human Resources Committee.
The Executive Committee also deliberated a number of housing projects
under planning and development. These included the Dedicated

130 Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22

HITEES

HWITZESHESEERARE YRAAGREE
ABRERE RTZESTEREERE
REMEKR ERETEENRER  THREHR
FHMRBEIMRRTEEZSHENRE
TR °

BE_T-_—FOA-H B1TZE®
HE+-_RZE BREEFEIFELE
TE BHEBAEEREANMER(FEE)
(ZE_—_F+A-—BRUABREEREEW
ERHENEARAZE TTHREHFRATHE
BRERNZHEEFEZAENZE -RZF
“T—FNAAZBETHAFZEARE L
MEZERENTEES BERRLE
EEZRHHR BAEFIRMEINE
Tt HAET=DZ—ZBREMHRE-
GREATFIEMCEENFHENTEZER
SZEMTAERBEZEI BIN=4
REZBERERBRERZE - RREXLR
ERYHBEREER _T_—FEFEEARE
BRRIONEESEI L KA ETESS
TREEBIER BOBNLESBRTERES
TEREEF RA-—EFESRL BAXE
LtBEZEIARNTEZEEZE M

BREEELEZTARNITZEREZE -
FHA=F BE-_E_—_F=A=+—

B-#TZBegE+—_%%8-

FA PTZESHBITTREHE B8
BEAEEDZNLTH UHBHEZEER
ANEBRZEERTMABEZE LE
EDRAEEBSZNT KBS ZNL T M-
HOTLZEERAFTEFTERTHBRIE
ZEZT /- FEMGERR T =/
T oHFECERANTRERN HEZDZ
T FZ A+ BLEFENEEZYB
WK B =FENLEEBTE
RIGETEEUARBBEANERZESHNE
EIRA BN R BB o AN AT R
SelE T ZEREFPRERPHNEER

=2



Environmental, Social and Governance

Rehousing Estate (DRE), Subsidised Sale Flats, Senior Citizen Residences
Scheme and public rental housing (PRH) projects. The Executive
Committee also reviewed the domestic rent review mechanism for rental
estates; the long lease entry contribution and short lease rental of
The Tanner Hill; the corporate performance evaluation mechanism and
the establishment of a whistleblowing policy for the Housing Society.
The Executive Committee also approved the grant of rent concession for
commercial tenants, in line with the Government’s measures to support
enterprises under the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Executive Committee received from the Management an annual risk
assessment report on strategic and operational risks. Based on the
recommendations of the Task Force on Financing, the Executive
Committee reviewed the funding strategy of the Housing Society and the
liquidation arrangements for the medium-term and long-term portfolios.

Emoluments for Executive Committee Members

Non-ex officio members of the Executive Committee receive an
honorarium in recognition of their level of accountability and time
commitment in committee work. These emoluments are set by the
Supervisory Board, with current levels effective since 29 September
2016. The Chairman and the Vice-Chairman are entitled to HK$36,000
and HK$18,000 per month respectively, while HK$9,000 per month is
offered to each of the other non-ex officio members. As of 31 March
2022, one out of ten non-ex officio Executive Committee members had
opted not to receive these emoluments.

Other Committees
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee acts on behalf of the Supervisory Board to oversee
the Housing Society’s internal and external audits and financial reporting.
[t also monitors the internal control systems, risk management system,
overall ethical standards and compliance with applicable laws.

As of 1 April 2021, the Audit Committee had 14 members, all of whom
were non-management members of the Housing Society. The Chairman
and the Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the chairmen of
other Committees were not eligible to be members of the Audit
Committee. At the AGM held on 2 September 2021, Mr Alvin Mak Wing-
sum, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Dr Isaac Ng Ka-chui and
Mr Nicholas Tan Tsung-yuan, having served for six consecutive years,
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retired from the Audit Committee and were not eligible for
re-appointment. Mr Brian Chau and Ms Anita Leung Ping-fun retired from
the Audit Committee after completing their three-year terms of office and
sought for re-appointment. Mr Laurence Ho Hoi-ming opted to retire
from the Audit Committee. At the Supervisory Board meeting held
immediately after the 2021 AGM, Prof Philip Lo Kai-wah was appointed
Chairman of the Audit Committee for a one-year term of office to align
with his term of office in the Supervisory Board up to the 2022 AGM.
Mr Brian Chau and Ms Anita Leung Ping-fun were re-appointed and
other three members, namely Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man, Mr Marco Wu
Moon-hoi and Mr Robert Young Man-kim were appointed to the Audit
Committee for a three-year term of office. The Audit Committee consisted
of 14 members as of 31 March 2022.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings with an overall
attendance rate of 91 per cent. Key works done by the Audit Committee
relating to financial reporting and audit included the review of the nature
and scope of the audit, the results of the audit and the audited annual
financial statements for the approval of the Supervisory Board and the
Executive Committee. A private session with the external auditor was
held without the presence of the Management. The Audit Committee also
made a recommendation to the Supervisory Board regarding the
appointment of an external auditor, for approval by Housing Society
members at the 2021 AGM.

In respect of compliance, internal control and risk management, the Audit
Committee approved the annual internal audit plan and reviewed the
implementation status. It reviewed seven internal audit reports and the
implementation of the agreed management actions. The Audit Committee
also reviewed a number of other reports including the enterprise risk
management and annual risk assessment update report; two technical
audit reports on project design and environmental features utilisation; the
report on complaints referred by the Office of the Ombudsman and the
corruption prevention advisory report from the Corruption Prevention
Department of the Independent Commission Against Corruption. The
Audit Committee submitted reports to the Supervisory Board on a half-
yearly basis on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the compliance,
ethical standards, risk management and internal control systems based
on the work of the internal and external assurance providers. It also made
recommendations on the proposed whistleblowing policy for
consideration by the Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee.
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Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee acts on behalf of the Supervisory Board and
oversees the Housing Society’s membership nomination and election
processes, as well as admission of new members to the Housing Society.
Its main task is to ensure that the Housing Society membership consists
of a balanced mix of skills and professional backgrounds.

There were eight members on the Nominating Committee as of 1 April
2021, comprising the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the
Supervisory Board, the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing
(Housing) (retitled as Permanent Secretary for Housing as from 1 July
2022) serving as an ex officio member, the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, the immediate past Chairman and the immediate past
Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board and two other members of the
Supervisory Board. At the AGM held on 2 September 2021, Mr Walter
Chan Kar-lok, Prof Ling Kar-kan and Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man retired from
the Nominating Committee. As Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man was required to
step down from the Supervisory Board after serving two consecutive
three-year terms, he was not eligible to stand for re-appointment. At the
Supervisory Board meeting held immediately after the 2021 AGM,
Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok and Prof Ling Kar-kan were re-elected Chairman
and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board; and served as Chairman
and a member of the Nominating Committee respectively. Dr Lam Ching-
choi was appointed to the Nominating Committee for a three-year term
of office. The Nominating Committee consisted of eight members as of
31 March 2022.

During the year, the Nominating Committee held one meeting with an
attendance rate of 88 per cent. The Nominating Committee
recommended four candidates for admission as Housing Society
members and all the recommendations were approved by the
Supervisory Board. The Nominating Committee also made
recommendations on the enhancements to the guidelines for admission
of new members, and the membership rotation and retirement of the
Supervisory Board, the Executive Committee, various Committees and
Special Committees.

Corporate Governance T¥&4
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Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources Committee acts on behalf of the Executive
Committee and oversees the Housing Society’s overall compensation
strategy and the performance and remuneration of top management
executives. The Human Resources Committee also oversees succession
planning for the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director and the
top management executives.

There were seven members on the Human Resources Committee as of
1 April 2021. All members of the Human Resources Committee were
non-management members of the Housing Society. At the AGM held on
2 September 2021,
Resources Committee, retired from office after serving for six consecutive

Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping, Chairman of the Human

years and was not eligible for re-appointment. Mr William Chau Chun-
wing and Mr James Siu Kai-lau indicated intention to step down from the
Human Resources Committee. At the Supervisory Board meeting held
immediately after the 2021 AGM, Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui was
appointed as Chairman of the Human Resources Committee for a one-
year term of office to align with his term of office in the Executive
Committee up to the 2022 AGM. Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-kit and
Mr Eddie Ng Hak-kim were appointed to the Human Resources
Committee for a three-year term. The Human Resources Committee
consisted of seven members as of 31 March 2022,

During the year, the Human Resources Committee held four meetings
with an overall attendance rate of 92 per cent, and one joint meeting with
the Executive Committee was held with an attendance rate of 94 per
cent. Key areas under review of the Human Resources Committee
included the remuneration and benefit policies, annual salary review,
performance evaluation for the Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director and top management executives, with recommendations made
for approval by the Executive Committee. The Human Resources
Committee also endorsed the succession planning and contract renewal
for top management executives for approval by the Executive Committee.
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Special Committee on Investment

The role of the Special Committee on Investment is to establish objectives
and strategies for the Housing Society’s investments. It reviews the
performance of professional fund managers and considers the asset
allocations and appointment of professional fund managers and the
custodian bank, for the Executive Committee’s approval.

The Special Committee on Investment had nine members as of 1 April
2021. All members retired at the 2021 AGM held on 2 September 2021
in line with the tenure expiry of the Special Committee. At the Executive
Committee meeting held on 22 July 2021, the tenure of the Special
Committee was renewed for three years until the 2024 AGM.
Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-kit, Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted and Mr Alvin
Mak Wing-sum, having served the Special Committee for six consecutive
years, were not eligible for re-appointment. Mr lan Grant Robinson
indicated intention to step down while all other retiring members
expressed interest in continuing to serve on the Special Committee. At
the Supervisory Board meeting held immediately after the 2021 AGM,
Mr Stanley Wong Yuen-fai was appointed Chairman of the Special
Committee for a two-year term of office to align with his term of office in
the Executive Committee up to the 2023 AGM. Ms Linda Kwo Lai-ming,
Mr Joseph Lee Chin-wai and Mr Neville Shroff were re-appointed for a
three-year term while Mr Martin K Matsui was re-appointed for a one-
year term to be in line with the six consecutive years’ retirement rule.
Mr Ambrose Lam Shiu-kong, Mr Eliott Hancock Suen and Mr Nicholas
Tan Tsung-yuan were appointed as members of the Special Committee
for a three-year term of office. There were eight members on the Special
Committee on Investment as of 31 March 2022.

During the year, the Special Committee on Investment held two meetings
with an overall attendance rate of 94 per cent. In addition to monitoring
the performance of the Housing Society’s fund managers, it also
reviewed the liquidation and rebalancing arrangements for the medium
term and long term portfolios, the investment guidelines of the equity and
fixed income mandates, as well as the contracts of six fund managers.

Corporate Governance T¥&4
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Special Committee on Elderly Housing

The Special Committee on Elderly Housing was set up by the Executive
Committee in 2008 to guide and to review the Management’s proposals
in respect of the Housing Society’s various elderly housing initiatives.
These included planning, schematic design, financial feasibility and
operational models of the proposed elderly housing projects to be
undertaken by the Housing Society.

There were 14 members on the Special Committee on Elderly Housing
as of 1 April 2021. All members retired at the 2021 AGM held on 2
September 2021 in line with the tenure expiry of the Special Committee.
At the Executive Committee meeting held on 22 July 2021, the tenure of
the Special Committee was renewed for three years until the 2024 AGM.
Mr Patrick Lau Lai-chiu and Mrs Miranda Leung Chan Che-ming had
served the Special Committee for six consecutive years and were not
eligible for re-appointment. Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu, Dr Danny Wan Tak-fai
and Mr Henry Yap Fat-suan indicated intention to step down from the
Special Committee. All other retiring members confirmed their intention to
seek for re-appointment. At the Supervisory Board meeting held
immediately after the 2021 AGM, Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan was
re-appointed Chairman of the Special Committee for a two-year term of
office to align with her term of office in the Executive Committee up to the
2023 AGM. Dr Lau Kwok-yu, Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee, Ms Sarah
Mui Sze-wa, Ms Theresa Yeung Wing-shan and Mr Robert Young Man-
kim were re-appointed for a three-year term; while Ms Ophelia Chan
Chiu-ling and Mr Lawrence Lam Yin-ming were re-appointed for a one-
year term and Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah was re-appointed for a two-year
term to be in line with the six consecutive years’ retirement rule.
Prof Kenneth Pang Tsan-wing, Mr Nicholas Tan Tsung-yuan and Dr Isaac
Ng Ka-chui were appointed as members of the Special Committee for a
three-year term of office. The Special Committee consisted of 12
members as of 31 March 2022.
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During the year, the Special Committee on Elderly Housing held three
meetings with an overall attendance rate of 77 per cent. The Special
Committee reviewed the enhanced flat selection arrangement at
The Tanner Hill, the proposed entry contribution, payment terms and flat
choices for Senior Citizen Residences Project at Lee Kung Street, the
long lease entry contribution and short lease rental, and incentive for
selected units of The Tanner Hill, the branding of Senior Citizen
Residences Scheme and marketing promotion of Lee Kung Street

Development.

Special Committee on Planning, Design and Construction

The Special Committee on Planning, Design and Construction was set
up by the Executive Committee to assist in monitoring the various
aspects of major development projects, including time, quality and cost.

The Special Committee on Planning, Design and Construction had 11
members as of 1 April 2021. All members retired at the 2021 AGM held
on 2 September 2021 in line with the tenure expiry of the Special
Committee. At the Executive Committee meeting held on 22 July 2021,
the tenure of the Special Committee was renewed for three years until
the 2024 AGM. All retiring members, except for Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan
and Mr Chan Ka-kui, expressed their interests to continue serving the
Special Committee. At the Supervisory Board meeting held immediately
after the 2021 AGM, Prof Wong Bay was re-appointed Chairman of the
Special Committee for a one-year term of office to align with his term of
office in the Executive Committee up to the 2022 AGM. Mr Au Choi-kai,
Mr Conrad Fung Kwok-keung, Mr Lam Sze-chuen, Prof Phyllis Li Chi-
miu, Prof Philip Lo Kai-wah, Mr Felix Lok Man-fai, Mr Kyran Sze and
Mr Man Wai-ming were re-appointed for a three-year term while
Mr Francis Lam Ka-fai and Ms Theresa Yeung Wing-shan were appointed
as members of the Special Committee for a three-year term of office. The
Special Committee consisted of 11 members as of 31 March 2022.
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During the vyear, the Special Committee on Planning, Design and
Construction held ten meetings with an overall attendance rate of 91 per
cent. The Special Committee reviewed the schematic layout and master
layout plan for planning application for the A Kung Ngam Road project.
Comments were also given to the respective project planning designs of
the Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen New Development Area (NDA) Phase I,
Kwu Tung North and Phase Il Redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha
projects as well as the design and procurement approach for foundation
works of the Kai Tak Area 2B Site 1 project. In addition, the Special
Committee also reviewed the Housing Society’s procurement system for
Major Project Consultants and Contractors including the Performance-
Linked Tender Eligibility System for Major Project Consultants and noted
the update on the application of Building Information Modelling for
housing development projects.

The Special Committee also considered and endorsed the architectural
and quantity surveying consultancy services contracts for the Kwu Tung
North project; ten foundation and superstructure contracts, namely, five
respective foundation works for the Ting On Street, Anderson Road
Quarry Site R2-3, Jockey Club Road, Kai Tak Area 2B Site 1 and Hung
Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen NDA Phase Il projects, five respective superstructure
works for the Shek Pai Wan Road, Hung Shui Kiu/Ha Tsuen NDA Phases
IA and IB, Pak Wo Road and Anderson Road Quarry Site R2-2 projects;
four other direct contracts and nominated sub-contracts (NSC), namely,
respective two Electrical and Extra Low Voltage (ELV) Installation NSC
and Mechanical Ventilation/Air-conditioning (MVAC) Installation NSC for
the Pak Wo Road project, as well as two respective Electrical, ELV and
MVAC Installation NSC and Installation of Gas Supply System & Supply
and Installation of Gas Water Heaters for the Anderson Road Quarry Site
R2-2 project. The Special Committee also provided feedback on the
accessible and adaptable design mock-up flats after the mock-up visit in
Kwun Tong. Furthermore, the Special Committee kept track of the
progress of major development and redevelopment projects, including
regularly reviewing the Management’s progress reports.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

Task Force on Financing

The Task Force on Financing was set up by the Executive Committee in
late 2020 to address the Housing Society’s funding needs in the coming
years, including the formulation of a funding strategy that can satisfy the
funding needs in the short- to medium-term.

The Task Force on Financing had seven members as of 1 April 2021. All
members retired at the 2021 AGM held on 2 September 2021 in line with
the tenure expiry of the Task Force and opted for re-appointment. At the
Executive Committee meeting held on 22 July 2021, the tenure of the
Task Force was renewed for one year until the 2022 AGM. Mr Desmond
Chan Kwok-kit, Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted, Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen,
Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum and Mr Martin K Matsui were re-appointed as
members of the Task Force, and the Director (Corporate Planning and
Finance) continued to serve as an ex officio member. Mr Stanley Wong
Yuen-fai, who was appointed Chairman of the Special Committee on
Investment at the Supervisory Board meeting held immediately after the
2021 AGM, served as Chairman of the Task Force in the capacity of an
ex officio member. The Task Force consisted of seven members as of 31
March 2022.

During the year, the Task Force on Financing held two meetings with an
overall attendance rate of 92 per cent. It reviewed the cash flow forecast
and proposed a funding strategy that would help the funding needs for
the next five to ten years for approval by the Executive Committee.

RE wEgNER

Corporate Governance T¥&4

&

BEENA

WOERER-F-FEERINBS
B UABNERRARBENE S
BN E A S B
5(

‘I]]]D

WW

TR B

HE-_T-—FNWA—HB UHBIEENAE
HRELtRZE-FIBZEAR-_ZT=Z—FAN
H_Eﬁﬂm_v_*iﬂiéﬁkA
B UEAELEENENTHER - Wi
EREZE R_ZE-_—F+tH=-+T=ZH
BITWATZEEER L ABAERLE
ENANER—F EE-T-_FRFF
ZERG /I RBIGE ST A& - MOoKBEE
%ﬁ%ﬁix%*ﬁ%i&m#%%iﬁ
BZEANLERENEZE FEHBE(DE
RERT K BELALEEENEANERZ
B ERBAATCER_ZT_—FRAFZ
BRERBITNESESZ LEZTEAR
ERRHLZECETR UEBERZEFHEE
HEENEFE -HE T -_—_F=ZA=
+—HB hEENEBRERZEHEK

FAN-UBIEENERBITMAGE B
ERESBOZNTZ -HBEHEENA
HTHSRBEHN IREBHRRKA
TEHEESFTENESRR UHATEZE
eEH-

l:::]
E’E
#
ES
=

BEEEHE

2021/22 £ F# 139



2z

Environmental, Social and Governance BiE - + € &34

Members’ Activities Z& & J& B SEP h B

2021

APR @ H

Members visited the accessible and adaptable

design mock-up flat prototypes set up by the

Housing Society to learn about the design

concepts and their applications.

é,\ L2EBREHER RAERRETRY
RETHEBEA - THRRFMSREER -

Members attended the award presentation .
ceremony of the inaugural HKHS Gerontech
Competition and took a closer look at the winning
entries.

ZEHFEEHE —ETAIREIE )T | Eie kR
JETLLER RS - WRBGERER o

SEP f1 A

The former President of Legislative Council Mr
Japser Tsang Yok-sing was invited to speak at a
webinar to share views with Members on Hong
Kong’s political system.

SOEBRMEREEK A E R FE DR
g HBEESHEZTHBEBBURERHNEEL -

Members attended the 69™ Annual General Meeting.

ZEHEERNTNLERFZEXRE -
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An annual brainstorming session was held for
Members to exchange views on the strategic
development of the Housing Society.

ZEHFE —F-ENEBRg THRFEHOHR
BE 2R -

Following the brainstorming session, Chairman
Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok hosted a luncheon to
thank Members for their contributions to the
development of the Housing Society.

Bgk ITRRRLEEREEHEEE
REHERMELNER -

Environmental, Social and Governance BiE - 2 M &8
Members' Activities Z 3% &)

2022

Members attended the 17" Hong Kong Housing
Society Award Presentation Ceremony.
ZELFEETLE (BEFEHERHESE
B || -
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is a fundamental element of corporate governance,
playing an integral part in the Hong Kong Housing Society’s strategic
planning, business development and monitoring processes. The
seamless incorporation of risk management into our business planning
process and daily operations enables the Management to make risk-
informed decisions and provides better assurances to achieve long-term
corporate goals.

The Housing Society has adopted an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework as a tool to proactively identify and manage strategic and
operational risks at an organisation level. Applying this framework, we
have established a risk governance structure and defined the risk
management processes, including risk identification, assessment,
monitoring and reporting.

Risk Management Governance Structure and Processes

The Housing Society has a tiered structure in risk governance, which
allows for certain clearly defined roles and responsibilities for each
respective party under the established governance structure.

Risk management at the Housing Society involves board-level
commitment and oversight. Our Audit Committee reports to the
Supervisory Board and is responsible for monitoring the Society’s internal
control system, including risk management, overall ethical standards and
compliance with applicable regulations. Internal and external auditors will
often refer to this risk management system to determine the required
assessments and reviews, which serve to complement the overall control
environment, eventually.

The Risk Management Committee, which comprises the Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director, Directors, and senior managers, has an
overall accountability for managing the Housing Society’s key risks and
ensuring the effectiveness of risk management processes. At the
operational level, all our employees are responsible for identifying,
managing and reporting operational risks in their own functions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

Risk management is embedded in our business processes to ensure that
our responses to risks remain current and dynamic. During the business
planning cycle, the Management assesses the implied risks in achieving
our strategic objectives, and incorporates relevant mitigating and control
measures for subsequent monitoring. In 2021/22, we had conducted
regular operational reviews for different businesses, and critical issues
with substantial impact on the Housing Society were reported to the
Executive Committee and Audit Committee in a timely manner.

Risk Assessment and Management

Once a year, the Management conducts an organisation-wide
assessment of the Housing Society’s overall risk exposure across various
business processes, which is followed by reviewing strategic and
operational risks and updating respective controls that serve to reflect the
current business environment. The risk assessment results are captured
in a Corporate Risk Register, whereas the findings are to be separately
reported to the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee and the

Supervisory Board.

Strategic Risk Management

The Housing Society is exposed to strategic risks in the course of
meeting its corporate objectives. For a balanced approach, we
categorised the strategic risks into four perspectives: Customers,
Government & Community, Corporate Governance & Process and
Resources.

Customers, Government and Community

The Housing Society is committed to providing quality housing and living
environment for our tenants and homebuyers. We carefully engage with a
concrete strategic planning process to regularly review and develop new
initiatives and schemes that meet the housing needs of our customers.

On project development, we continue to explore opportunities to
enhance the financial viability of our rental estate redevelopment,
subsidised sale flats (SSF) and dedicated rehousing estates (DRE)
projects and are making good progress on the planning and construction
of various developments to support the Government’s medium-term
housing production target and meet the expectations of different
stakeholders.
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Enterprise Risk Management %@ &R

For the property management and elderly care services segments, we
will continue to maintain a safe and healthy environment for our residents
and customers. We will modernise the RCHE facilities and adopt
innovative technology in our new rehabilitation programmes to improve
customer experience.

With the outbreak of the fifth wave of COVID-19, we have introduced
another round of rent concession to the commercial tenants, which,
primarily, is to help them survive the stressful financial impact amid the
pandemic.

The Housing Society has concrete processes to manage corporate
relations with different stakeholders including the Government, media and
the community, through a number of engagement meetings, corporate
activities, publications and communications tools. In the coming year, we
will host various events and activities to celebrate the Housing Society’s
75" Anniversary, and other community events for the occasion of the
25™ Anniversary of HKSAR.

Governance Structure

The Housing Society has a sound and clearly delineated corporate
governance structure and planning process to ensure its mission and
vision are satisfactorily met in the long run.

Considering the volatility in the operating environments, we have engaged
a consultant to review our corporate performance evaluation mechanism,
which is to ensure the alignment of our existing system to our vision,
mission and values and the best practices in the industry.

Product and Service Quality

“Quality” is deemed one of our core values, the Housing Society has
relied on a high standard for our products and services.

On property development, we will adopt latest technology, green and
sustainable design principles to enhance the quality of our housing
solutions. This year, we will formulate various sustainability initiatives with
major focuses on a life cycle assessment for a pilot building, and green
procurement for building materials.
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On property management, we will apply PropTech solutions and other IT
technologies to enhance operation efficiency and customer experience.
In the coming year, we will develop and implement a facilities
management platform; a pilot test will be run, initially, in one of our rental
estates.

On commercial leasing, we will continue to improve the design and
provisions for the commercial premises to accommodate the various
needs of tenants, and to invest time and effort in our asset enhancement
plan on the existing portfolios.

Financial Sustainability

The Housing Society is concerned with prudent financial management.
Processes are in place to ensure a long-term financial sustainability can
be achieved, thus, a solid ground is laid to support our ongoing mission.

We have proactively explored various strategies to mitigate the financial
risks applicable to all our business activities. For our SSF projects, we
have successfully reached an agreement with the Government in January
2019 on a more favourable land premium term. However, as the
economic sentiment is still weak under the influence of the pandemic,
this might have certain impact on the buying potential of our prospective
customers; we will continue to work closely with the Government to
ensure the SSF pricing is financially viable.

For our commercial leasing business, we will enhance planning and
design of the new commercial premises and formulate a commercial
leasing strategy for the new shopping arcades to improve market
competitiveness and sustainability.

For the domestic leasing business, we have prepared a review on the
domestic rent review mechanism. The purpose of the study is to
investigate a breakeven operation in the longer term, while, on the other
hand, a healthy and safe environment for the tenants can be maintained.

To meet our future funding needs, a Task Force on Financing was set up
last year to examine our financial resources accumulated and to put
forward recommendations on the partial liquidation of our investments,
which can give us the necessary funding for capital expenditure. In the
coming year, we intend to draw up financing plan, specifically, to target
funding from the capital market.

Enterprise Risk Management 2@ k12
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Internal Resources

We have developed a five-year manpower plan to support the expanded
operations in project development and property management. In the
coming year, we will develop the HR talent acquisition strategy to meet
the growing business needs, and to strengthen the succession planning,
including the development programmes for potential staff.

On the technology front, we will standardise and adopt the entire Digital
Works Supervision System for new projects to ensure productive, safe
and sustainable construction.

Business Partners

As the performance of vendors/business partners are crucial in the
process to deliver quality products and services, the Housing Society has
concrete procedures to evaluate and engage different vendors/business
partners.

Given the increased number of projects in the coming years, the risk and
potential impact to engage with incompetent business partners for
developments projects has increased. To mitigate the risk, the Projects
Division will continue to implement the “Fee Quality Score” system to
assess the engaging consultants, with the aim to undermine the chance
of any unrealistic low-fee proposals; and adopt a “two-envelope” system
that ensures the quality of the proposal.

This year, we will work with external stakeholders to pilot a new social
support model in our rental estates. We will also partner with the
Government, Universities and other stakeholders to initiate research and
to apply innovative technology that help improve operation efficiency and
customer experience.

Operational Risks Management

Operational risks directly affect the efficiency of our daily operations and
we have classified 11 risks that would substantially affect our corporate
operating performance. Mitigating measures are implemented to ensure
that the residual risks are contained at an acceptable level and they are
monitored on a regularly basis through Key Risk Indicators.
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To address to the outbreak of the fifth wave of COVID-19, Management
activated the corporate business continuity plan in January 2022.
Divisional directors/section heads are entrusted to exercise discretion in
different work arrangements to maintain the essential corporate services
and operations. These include assigning staff to work-from-home, split-
team operation and attending office by flexible hours.

Some operations were impacted especially during the peak of the
outbreak in March 2022, including the temporary suspension of the
services provided by the Day Care Centres and the Rehabilitation
Centres, and reduced opening hours in the estate management offices.
Construction works progress was affected due to disrupted logistics for
some building materials and insufficient manpower as some construction
workers were infected.

To minimise the impacts to our different stakeholders, a number of
enhancements were initiated.

To protect the safety of our staff and our tenants, we invested additional
resources to strengthen cleansing and sanitisation work across office and
residential premises and facilities. In-flat drainage inspection for all rental
units were completed and, in case should minor defects be identified,
they would be rectified by the estate management in a timely manner.

We launched a community care campaign, with over 50,000 anti-
epidemic packs distributed to various stakeholders and the
underprivileged. We also arranged advance payments to the contractors
and consultants to help them cope with financial stress during difficult
period of pandemic.

Management will monitor the outbreak continuously and respond
proactively to safeguard the interests of our staff, clients and business
partners and to ensure that we can operate business as usual.

Risk assessment and monitoring have been embedded in the Housing
Society’s management process. The Management will continue to review
and enhance the ERM framework by adhering to industrial insights and
leading practices, while also taking into account the prevailing operation
environments and the overall risk endurance.

Enterprise Risk Management 2@ k12
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Financial Management
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Income Distribution

LN X
Year HKS$million
F45 BEEET

(725) 3 1,781 5

202122 || 1,064

2020/21

(887)14 1,838 10

2019/20 975

12 1,910 8539
2018/19 2,784

23 1,760 3,588 12
2017/18 5,383

Overall Financial Performance

The Housing Society reported a total income of HK$1,064 million for the
fiscal year ended 31 March 2022,
HK$13,265 million decrease from the previous year. Total expenses
decreased by HK$4,397 million to HK$2,324 million and a net deficit of
HK$1,260 million was recorded for the fiscal year. As at 31 March 2022,
the net asset value reached HK$48.7 billion, representing a three per

representing a 93 per cent or

cent decrease from last year, which comprised of HK$11.2 billion in
investment properties, HK$9.9 billion in properties under development for
sale and HK$27.6 billion in net financial assets and others.

Income Analysis

Total income decreased by HK$13,265 million, year-on-year, to
HK$1,064 million which was largely due to the dearth of property sale
and the lower return of the investment portfolios this year. Investment
returns decreased by HK$7,004 million to a loss of HK$725 million for
the fiscal year.
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Expense Distribution

Financial Management 811§ &2

XD Hm
Year HK$million as at 31 March 2022
F45 BEEET BE-Z--H=ZA=+t—HLt
Property development and
(82) 699 617 817 273 I related costs/(written back)
2021/22 2,324 WERERIERRA (B)
Ll cer 2 enageent penss
2020/21 _ 6,721 PR R
(88) 649 645 223 I Hsatalﬁ &025
zovor0 (M 2,005
Assets depreciation,
(58) 655 525 323 254 g;‘;‘g”{afg ng )
2018/19 1,699 = AERRE
I Other ope(ating costs
(250) 664 492 459 207 HAh & ER AR
2017/18 1 ,572

Income from property leasing and management operations amounted to
HK$1,781 million, representing an eight per cent increase from last year.
The increase was mainly due to lower rent concessions provided for
commercial tenants in 2021.

Expense Analysis

Total expenses decreased by 65 per cent or HK$4,397 million over the
previous year to HK$2,324 million. The decrease was mainly due to no
property development costs related to property sale. Operating expenses
including staff costs and property leasing and management expenses
were maintained at similar level as last year.

Financial Outlook and Management

Property Developments for Sale

The Housing Society is committed to devising various housing schemes
to help people in Hong Kong to become home owners. It is planned, 3,424
units, altogether, will be completed in the next five years from the
Anderson Road Quarry projects and the project at Jockey Club Road.
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Net Assets Distribution

Projects under Planning and Committed Projects

FEEDH REPREZENER
Year HK$billion as at 31 March 2022 HK$billion Total 2 as at 31 March 2022
Fip BRI BE-T-_F=A=t—Hik BRI BE-Z-_F=A=t+—Hik
1.2 9.9 27.6 4 8 6
w2 N 48.7 .
9.6 2.3 38.1
o2t [ 0.0 9.7 (20%)
Amount Contracted but not
9.4 45 28.5 Zg{é?fsnitr;the Financial
20 [N 12 4 B & SRR
BENIReRE
9.5 3.6 30.3
o0 N 3.4 38.9 (80%)
Amount Authorised but not
9.8 2.7 29.8 Contracted

oo I 2 5

Projects EH :

I Rental properties
ekizkzES

Properties under development for sale

BRANHENR

e Two Elderly Housing Projects .
MEREFEEEEB

e Four Rental Estate

B EM A AR TR

-]

Seven Subsidised Sale Flats
Projects
+EEHLEFEEA

Redevelopment Projects e Five Dedicated Rehousing
I Financial assets and others MELHAEREEER Estates Projects
BT R E M A E HAERXBEEWMER

Property Leasing and Management

The Housing Society has over 33,600 rental units in 20 estates, with
around 81,000 tenants taking residence at discounted market rents. It
also provides around 130,000 square metres of rentable commercial
space with 24,677 square metres office and shops at 1063 King's Road,
and 9,600 car parking spaces in our estates and managed properties for
lease to yield long-term investment income. These commercial properties
are operated on prudent commercial principles with rents based on
market value. During the year, the commercial operation generated a
surplus of HK$326 million, which was used to support other operations.

The Hong Kong economy suffered a major setback as dragged by the
COVID-19 pandemic, and local economic prospects have not been
encouraging ever since. In response to the Government’s call to help
people with financial burdens, the Housing Society offered multiple
rounds of rent relief measures in phases helping enterprises and rental
estate tenants to survive the then difficult periods.
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During the year, we launched a package of rent relief measures totalled
to more than HK$200 million to support our commercial tenants. We
initiated 75 per cent rent concessions for eligible commercial tenants,
including those of shop tenants of scheduled premises and kindergartens,
and car park operators, for 12 months, spanning from 1 April 2021 to 31
March 2022.

On the other hand, the Housing Society was supporting the domestic
tenants by granting them rent waivers. In fact, a two-month rent waiver
was provided to all domestic tenants for the months of October 2020
and October 2021, which was also used to offset the additional rental
expenditure as result of the rent adjustments for the years 2020-2022
based on the established rent review mechanism. The rent handed over
in relation to the waivers amounted to more than HK$150 million. Despite
the fact that rental income has shrunk by the co-incidence of rent
concessions and rent waivers, the healthy and stable cash position of the
Housing Society has continued to provide adequate funding to support
the ongoing upgrade and maintenance for the concerned properties.

Redeveloping ageing rental estates is one of our top concerns. As at 31
March 2022, the Housing Society had eleven rental estates over 40 years
old, among which eight are aged over 50. Driven by the necessity to deal
with such financial challenges, the Housing Society sought to maintain an
operational surplus regarding the property leasing and management
operations. However, as the income from our rental estates has proved
insufficient to cover the long-term costs of maintenance and improvement
work at these ageing estates, the domestic operation continued to record
a deficit. During the fiscal year ended 31 March 2022, the cost of
improvement works for rental estates amounted to HK$101.8 million.

The financial commitment to redeveloping ageing rental estates is
overwhelming. Based on the latest forecast, the redevelopment cost of
six of our oldest rental estates will be around HK$67 billion.

As a not-for-profit organisation operating on self-financing principles, the
Housing Society will ensure that all programmes are well-planned, and
resources are adequately allocated, when undertaking new housing
development or estate redevelopment projects.

Financial Management 811§ &2
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Investment Portfolio

REHRE
HKS billion as at 31 March 2022
R mE—g-—F=A=t+-AL

Total &2

29.7

Investment

Global economy remained volatile during the year amid the evolving
pandemic situation and supply chain disruptions. A number of factors,
such as rising vaccination rates in various countries and accommodative
monetary policies had contributed to a notable recovery. In late February,
market sentiment began to be dominated by concerns over increased
inflation expectations, monetary policy tightening, and the Russia-Ukraine
war.

In the US, the economy was on solid footing supported by their strong
labour market and consumer demand. As corporate fundamentals were
generally strong while leverage ratios remained non-excessive, equity
markets recovered most of the losses post-February’s dip. In March
2022, the Federal Reserve raised rates for the first time since 2018 to
tame inflation and had signaled that the interest rate hiking cycle was just
getting started.

In Europe, the economy was underpinned by an improving labour market,
high household savings, and the deployment of European recovery
funds. However, due to the region’s close ties with Ukraine and Russia,
particularly the heavy reliance on Russian oil and gas supply, the markets
were preoccupied by fears that energy prices would rise significantly
following the escalation of the conflict between the two countries, which
in turn would weigh on economic activity.
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In Asia, the recovery had been uneven across countries, and was riddled
with down-side risks due to the pandemic and challenges in the external
policy environment. The selloff across China stocks deepened throughout
the year, due to less-favourable base effects, diminished support from
exports, government’s continued deleveraging efforts, as well as the
strict virus handling policies. Regulatory changes in various segments of
the economy had also prompted volatility. Real estate sector was
negatively affected as the debt repaying capability by some of the largest
property developers came into question.

During the year, the Executive Committee approved the liquidation
arrangements across both the Medium Term and Long Term Portfolios in
view of the expanded construction programmes. In addition, the
management streamlined the structure of the Long Term Portfolio by
merging the Asian equity allocation into HK/China equity. This was
implemented after extensive studies had been undertaken regarding the
associated diversification and risk-return benefits.

Volatility in the global financial markets would increase given the
combination of heightened geopolitical tension and rising interest rate
trends. As a prudent long-term institutional investor focusing on achieving
the investment objectives irrespective of the global environment which
constantly changes over time, instead of narrowly positioning our
strategies to benefit from a limited number of macro scenarios, we would
closely monitor the development and continue investing into
fundamentally sound asset classes in a widely diversified manner.

The returns of our various portfolios are summarised as follows:

The Long Term Portfolio is to fund the redevelopment of our rental
estates. As the objective is to catch up with the construction cost inflation
in Hong Kong, the portfolio is fairly diversified and equity biased. For the
year ended 31 March 2022, it recorded a mild loss of 3.26 per cent,
outperformed the benchmark by 1.26 per cent.

The Medium Term Portfolio is used to fund the development of
subsidised sale flat projects. The portfolio strategy is relatively low risk
and fixed income based. For the year ended 31 March 2022, it recorded
a mild loss of 2.21 per cent, underperformed the benchmark marginally
by 0.26 per cent.
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As the objective of the Short Term Portfolio is to preserve capital and to
ensure liquidity, we continue to manage the portfolio prudently by placing
the surplus cash into fixed deposits with maturity of no more than six
months. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Short Term Portfolio
achieved a positive return of 0.29 per cent, outperformed the benchmark
by 0.06 per cent.

Loan Administration

As at 31 March 2022, the Housing Society was managing 184 loans
granted under various loan schemes. During the year, 288 borrowers had
redeemed or partial repaid their loans. Legal proceedings were instituted
against three borrowers in default.
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Independent Auditor's Report
BIZMEIRES

e
EY:

To the members of Hong Kong Housing Society
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Hong Kong Housing Society
Incorporation Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Housing Society
(the “Housing Society”) set out on pages 162 to 237, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in net assets and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Housing Society as at 31 March 2022, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Housing Society in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Impairment of investment properties

Included in the Housing Society’s investment properties are certain rental
estates and properties built on land granted by the government (the “Rental
Estates and Properties”). The aggregate net carrying value of the Rental
Estates and Properties was HK$6,424.1 million as at 31 March 2022 and
they are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. An impairment loss of HK$441.6 million was
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, management performed an impairment
assessment on the Rental Estates and Properties. Their recoverable
amounts were estimated based on value-in-use calculation. The
impairment assessment of the Rental Estates and Properties is significant
to our audit due to the significant judgements and estimates involved in
the determination of the value-in-use calculation with respect to the cash
flow projection based on the financial budget approved by the Executive
Committee.

Disclosures in relation to the investment properties are included in notes 2.4,
3 and 11 to the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B #Z HEMHEE

Key audit matters (continued)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment, we involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the valuation methodology
and key parameters, including the discount rate, prepared by
management of the Housing Society, on a sample basis. Our procedures
also included assessment of the key assumptions such as the budgeted
rental price, growth rate and estimated construction costs to complete
based on our knowledge of the business and development plan of the
Housing Society.

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in the notes to
the financial statements.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The Supervisory Board and Executive Committee members are
responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Supervisory Board and
Executive Committee members for the financial
statements

The Supervisory Board and Executive Committee members are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for
such internal control as the Supervisory Board and Executive Committee
members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Supervisory Board and
Executive Committee members are responsible for assessing the
Housing Society’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Supervisory Board and Executive
Committee members either intend to liquidate the Housing Society or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Supervisory Board and Executive Committee members are assisted
by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Housing Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 66 of the Constitution of the Hong Kong
Housing Society, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B % & R & E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Housing Society’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Supervisory Board and Executive Committee
members.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Supervisory Board and
Executive Committee members’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Housing Society’s ability to continue
as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Housing Society to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 July 2022
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Audited Financial Statements

EERZMBEERR

Statement of Comprehensive Income & MH W &3k

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 = F = —4# = =+—HI-FF

(in HK$Million) (B BB Notes fff 5F
Income ' ON
Revenue EEIA 6 1,760.4 7,998.3
Other income H A U A 29.1 51.9
1,789.5 8,050.2
Expenditure i
(Write back of)/property development  ([B13) 4 % 3% & & 18 8
and related costs A (82.3) 4,484 1
Staff costs Bt T pk A 617.0 633.2
Property leasing and management EFHERERIH
expenses 699.3 690.2
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 375.7 347.2
Investment properties impairment HEWERE 441.6 319.6
Other expenses H bz i 272.2 245.9
Auditor’s remuneration % AN BN & 0.7 0.7
2,324.2 6,720.9
(Deficit)/surplus before investment & & (&) W A Al HY
(loss)/income (B]) Btk (534.7) 1,329.3
Investment (loss)/income BE(EE) WA 7
Investment related financial assets ERRENMBKEEREE
and liabilities
— Gain on disposal, net — 1B EFE T 2,052.0 1,096.8
— (Decrease)/increase in fair value, —AREEFORD)
net £ (3,443.8) 5,132.0
Other investment income HE R EWRA 666.8 49.7
(725.0) 6,278.5
Net (deficit)/surplus and total AEE (BB BHRFER
comprehensive (loss)/income for 2m(EF8) WE
the year (1,259.7) 7,607.8

The notes on pages 168 to 237 form part of these financial statements.

ZNP RS T
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Audited Financial Statements 2 B 0 %R &

Statement of Financial Position Bf &k w3k

As at 31 March 2022 R —F -~ =F=+—H

(in HK$Million) (BEEET) Notes fff 5%

Non-current assets IERBEE

Investment properties wEYE 11 11,222.8 9,638.3

Property and equipment EYN & 12 796.3 610.2

Loans receivable JE U E R 14 25.5 35.8
12,044.6 10,284.3

Current assets REEE

Properties under development for sale {EHE RS MERE P Y 15 9,924.9 2,326.6

Housing inventories EBFEFE 66.3 67.0

Investment related financial assets EMERENIEEE 16 23,359.5 28,871.0

Loans receivable JiE W B X 14 2.9 5.4

Accounts receivable, prepayments JEUWBRTE - AN EBR R EAM

and other assets BE 17 717.0 308.8

Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHEH 18 6,992.4 11,727.7
41,063.0 43,306.5

Current liabilities REEE

Accounts payable, sundry deposits and JETBEIE - M IBIR S K EE

accruals 18 B 19 (2,386.8) (1,648.2)

Forward sales deposits received BREESEF 2 20 - (0.6)

Investment related financial liabilities BAKENTKAE 16 (162.4) (70.8)

Provisions A 21 (205.0) (218.1)

Loans from government BT E & 22 (3.5) (3.5)
(2,757.7) (1,941.2)

Net current assets REBEEEE 38,305.3 41,365.3
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Audited Financial Statements E 4 B k&

Statement of Financial Position (continued) BT AR SR & (&)

As at 31 March 2022 R —F— —4=F=+—H

(in HK$Million) (B¥B&ET) Notes [t 5%

Net current assets RBEEFE 38,305.3 41,365.3

Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Lease income received in advance TEUW AR £ 19 (1,603.4) (1,639.9)

Loans from government B E & 22 (25.6) (29.1)
(1,629.0) (1,669.0)

Net assets EEFEH 48,720.9 49,980.6

The financial statements on pages 162 to 237 were approved by the #HREFE—B T+ _ZEZE-_B=T++EHH®

Supervisory Board and Executive Committee and authorised forissue on  SEE R —_ZE-_—_F+ A -+ \BHEE

28 July 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: ehFTEEeRERBERN H T
NEEREE:

Chan Kar-lok (Chairman) PRR&% (L /E)
Chan Yum-min, James (Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director) BRERGH (7T A F R I TAE )

The notes on pages 168 to 237 form part of these financial statements. F—BATNEE-_B=TtENKNFEE
REF R —F D o
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Audited Financial Statements 2 &#& 0t 8k &

Statement of Changes in Net Assets B E FEE S 8%k

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 = E = —4# = f=+—HI-FE

(in HK$Million) (B¥EET)
Net assets EEFE
Accumulated surplus ZEEEB
At 1 April WIMA—H 49,980.6 42,372.8
Net (deficit)/surplus and total comprehensive NEE (BB, BHRFEL

(loss)/income for the year 2| (E18) M (1,259.7) 7,607.8
At 31 March W=ZA=+—8 48,720.9 49,980.6

The notes on pages 168 to 237 form part of these financial statements. E—EAANATNA\EZEEF_B=+T+tENKNFE

AP BBERE—#BD
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Audited Financial Statements 2 BB &

Statement of Cash Flows & RER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 = F = —4# = =+—HI-FF

(in HK$Million) (BEBEBBT Notes fff 5F
Cash flows from operating activites & EEFHHEERE
Net (deficit)/surplus (B5R),/ B&#FHE (1,259.7) 7,607.8
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Depreciation of investment properties IR &M E T E 11 333.2 316.9
Depreciation of property and MERZHBITE
equipment 12 42.5 30.3
Impairment of investment properties "EMERE 11 441.6 319.6
Gain on disposal of investment HEEBERENTKEE
related financial assets and LBaEeFaf
liabilities, net 7 (2,052.0) (1,096.8)
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of BEEENTHBEER
investment related financial assets BEAABEFERL
and liabilities, net () 7 3,443.8 (5,132.0)
Interest income FE WA 7 (165.7) (259.3)
Dividend income BB A 7 (219.2) (194.8)
Exchange differences E X =58 7 (281.9) 404.4
Gain on disposal of property and BEWENMZERF
equipment (0.6) -
Project cost written back and TH B R AN B 58 & 5 B
adjustment (71.8) (45.0)
(Reversal)/impairment of loans EWREFR(E#), #E
receivable 14 (1.0) 0.2
Interest expenses B FRX 0.1 0.3
Investment management fees KHEERETH
expense 114.6 116.0
323.9 2,067.6
(Increase)/decrease in properties EHERBNEBERFP Y
under development for sale (¥ hn), B (7,598.3) 1,927.8
Decrease/(increase) in housing BFEEERLOGEM)
inventories 0.7 (67.0)
Decrease in loans receivable FEUN E TR b 13.8 22.7
(Increase)/decrease in accounts FEUERIE - RN B Kk H A
receivable, prepayments and other BE g, RmL
assets (425.5) 676.3
Increase in accounts payable, sundry  FETBRIE - FIBIZ & N EET
deposits and accruals TE B 1% 40 1,053.2 247.8
Decrease in forward sales deposits BEWRBEEFIT 2R
received (0.6) (648.3)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions 8 OR D), /18 (13.1) 138.0
(Decrease)/increase in lease income B S O 4,15 N
received in advance (42.9) 108.2
Cash (used in)/generated from EERS(RH), RARHE
operation (6,688.8) 4,468.1
Interest portion of lease liabilities HEAGB BB (0.2) 0.9
Net cash (used in)/generated from & EZFEHRECRHE) FHA
operating activities HE (6,689.0) 4,467.8
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Audited Financial Statements E B & B H &
Statement of Cash Flows H&H2%

(in HK$Million)

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating &EEFBBE & (k) HA
activities FHE (6,689.0) 4,467.8
Cash flow from investing activities RETHEERE
Interest received SR PSN 169.5 280.4
Dividends received 2R S 232.7 191.8
Maturity/(placement) of time deposits EHEREE(EAN) 7,639.0 (1,978.4)
Payment for development of investment KEMEHREH
properties (2,478.2) (732.6)
Payment for property and equipment EYSE LB g (333.0) (81.4)
Receipt/(payment) for investments, net FREWA () 4,493.2 (578.6)
Payment for investment management fees KWEEBEESL N (122.4) (114.4)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REZBHHEERA (RH)
activities et 9,600.8 (3,013.2)
Cash flow from financing activities METHEESRE
Repayment of loans from the government BEEBNTER (3-5) (3.5)
Principal portion of lease liabilities HEaBEZzASHD (4.6) (5.0)
Net cash used in financing activities BEETHRER L FE (8.1) (8.9)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BRE&RRESSEEE EM
HH 2,903.7 1,446.1
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April ROUA—BRERESEE
HE&ERF 4,088.7 2,642.6
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March R=ZEA=+—-BHE2EERS
ZEEBEER 6,992.4 4,088.7
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReRkBREcEEBEBLH
equivalent paliiy
Cash at banks as stated in the statement of WA BE T AROR 3R 2 R1T I 3K
financial position 6,992.4 11,727.7
Less: time deposits with maturity over A HBiR =18 A BB A E &
three months e = (7,639.0)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the MBeRERMT 2R R
statement of cash flows ReEZEEEE 6,992.4 4,088.7

The notes on pages 168 to 237 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3 3% iz

31 March 2022 —E— —4F=H=+—H

2.1

General information

Hong Kong Housing Society (the “Housing Society”) was
incorporated on 18 May 1951 under the Hong Kong Housing
Society Incorporation Ordinance. The address of its registered
office and principal place of business is 8/F, 1063 King’s Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Housing Society are property sales,
leasing, management and financing, which are all conducted in
Hong Kong.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Housing Society, and all values are rounded to the
nearest million except when otherwise indicated.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Housing Society has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements, which is
applicable to the Housing Society.

Amendments to — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, — Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant effect on the Housing Society’s financial statements.

Audited Financial Statements B &#& i8R &
Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& i &R izt
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Audited Financial Statements 2 &#& Bt 5 HR &
Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& k& Kizt

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Housing Society has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective in these
financial statements, which are expected to be relevant to the

Housing Society upon becoming effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current??

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

8 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

The new and revised HKFRSs are expected to have no significant

effect on the Housing Society’s financial statements.
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Audited Financial Statements 2 BB k=
Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& i &R izt

24 FESTTHEHUE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Housing Society measures its investment related financial
assets and investment related financial liabilities at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Housing Society. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Housing Society uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHEBE(»)

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Housing Society determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Housing Society if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Housing Society;
(i) has significant influence over the Housing Society; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Housing Society;

or

(b) An entity is related to the Housing Society if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Housing Society or
an entity related to the Housing Society.

(i) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a) above.

@iy A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEEHBEBREw)

(continued)
Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property
and equipment over the estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method at the following rates per annum:

LLeasehold land Over the unexpired period of the land lease

Buildings Over the estimated economic useful lives of 40
years or the unexpired period of the land lease,
whichever is shorter

Equipment 20 per cent — 25 per cent

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits is expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in comprehensive income in the year in which the asset is
derecognised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases

The Housing Society assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Housing Society as a lessee

The Housing Society applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Housing Society recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
reinstatement costs expected to incur and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired period of the land
lease

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Housing
Society by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Housing Society as a lessee (continued)

@

(®)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at
the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with
the Housing Society’s policy for “inventories”. When a right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment property, it is
included in investment properties. The corresponding right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, in
accordance with the Housing Society’s policy for “investment
properties”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Housing Society
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Housing Society exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEEHBEBREw)

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Housing Society as a lessee (continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Housing Society uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a lease modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g. a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Housing Society as a lessor

When the Housing Society acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases
as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Housing Society does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Housing Society allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of comprehensive income due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHEBE(»)

(continued)
Leases (continued)
The Housing Society as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted
for as finance leases.

Investment properties

Investment properties are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

No depreciation is provided for investment properties under
development until such asset is ready for its intended use.
Depreciation on completed properties is provided to write off the
cost of the properties over the estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired period of the land lease

Buildings Over the estimated economic useful lives of 40
to 60 years or the unexpired period of the land
lease, whichever is the shorter

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits is expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the comprehensive income in
the year in which the asset is derecognised.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Housing Society as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Housing Society
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property and equipment and depreciation” for owned
property up to the date of change in use.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Housing Society’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of account receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Housing Society has applied
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Housing Society initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Account
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Housing Society has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHEBE(»)

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Housing Society’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Housing
Society commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(@ Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

(b)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the comprehensive
income.

Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
investment income in the comprehensive income when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Housing Society and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Housing Society recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Housing Society expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEEHBEBREw)

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Housing Society assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Housing
Society compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Housing Society considers a financial asset (excluding loans
receivable) in default when contractual payments are 90 days past
due; and a loans receivable in default when any borrowers are
unable to settle overdue instalments for more than six months.
However, in certain cases, the Housing Society may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Housing Society is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Housing Society. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for account receivables
and contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 Financial instruments for which credit risk has not

increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs

Simplified approach

For account receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Housing Society
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Housing Society applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Housing Society does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Housing Society has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEEHBEBREw)

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach (continued)

For account receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the Housing
Society chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Housing Society’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
sundry deposits and accruals, investment related financial liabilities,
provision for financial guarantee and loans from government.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

(@)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Housing Society that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the comprehensive income. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the comprehensive
income does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the comprehensive income,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Housing
Society’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to
the statement of comprehensive income. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the comprehensive income does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(b)

()

Financial liabilities other than loans from government

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable and accruals)
other than loans from government are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Housing Society
are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Housing Society measures the financial guarantee contracts
at the higher of: () the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of
financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are removed from the Housing Society’s

statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the

relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference

between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets

transferred or liabilities assumed,

is recognised in the

comprehensive income.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHEBE(»)

(continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale in the ordinary course of
business are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of properties under development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses capitalised, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price, based on prevailing market
conditions, less estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in selling the property.
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Housing inventories BFEE
Housing inventories represent completed properties held for sale BFEFEEIEBELEENDE  LAKAK
and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. ENMAERFENSEE AR-

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Housing Society’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

BeRBTEEY
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHEBE(»)

(continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Housing Society has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period,
and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Government grants and assistance

Government grants received or receivable are recognised as
income over the period necessary to match them with the related
costs. Grants related to depreciable assets received or receivable
are presented as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and are recognised as income over the useful lives of
the assets by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Government assistance relating to land obtained from the
government without a premium being charged are recorded by the
Housing Society at a nominal amount.

Loans from government granted before 1 April 2009 at nil or low
interest rate are initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the contractual rate.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEEHBEBREw)

(continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Housing Society
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Housing
Society will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Housing Society and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Housing Society with a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(@)  Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the buyers obtain the legal title of the
completed property. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the statement of financial position under forward
sales deposits received.

(b)  Render of service

Revenue from provision of property management service is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Housing Society.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income and facilities rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Housing Society and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEEHBEBREw)

(continued)
Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Defined Contribution Retirement Benefit Scheme and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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24 TESETHERE »)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Housing Society (foreign currencies) are initially recorded at the
rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was measured. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Housing Society’s senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Housing Society’s various
lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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3. TEERTA=

Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Housing Society’s financial statements
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Housing Society assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period and they are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and take into account of certain
key assumptions including the budgeted rental price, growth rate,
estimated construction costs to complete and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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Capital risk management

The Housing Society’s capital comprises primarily the surplus
accumulated since its establishment and its objective when
managing capital is to ensure that the Housing Society will be able
to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
quality housing and services for the Hong Kong community.

Given that the Housing Society’s funding is mainly raised internally,
the policies on capital risk management are therefore focused on
how to preserve the surplus funds in order to achieve the above
capital management objective. Related policies on preserving the
surplus funds are set out in note 5.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Housing Society’s major financial instruments comprise the
followings:

EXERER

FEWENERATEREBKILIANR
PrRENREGK REXAEENBENE
HeRMtEEFE MRS -

ERNEEHENESCTERARNSE
S AEARBREERRNERZ
WMARBRBRES  AERH LRER
EERAR - AHERERBGETHNAH
BRENM TR

BHERABEEEFERBE

FEWEZEEMHTARE:

(in HK$Million) (B¥BET)
Investment related financial assets BRKRENMEEE 23,359.5 28,871.0
Investment related financial liabilities FRRENTBAR (162.4) (70.8)
Financial assets at amortised cost 1R 15 3 85 AR AN SR A BR B9 B 7S
(including cash and bank balances) BE(BER:RBITEHS) 7,725.2 12,0671

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1R 15 3 85 B AN SR A BR B9 B 7S

=85 (2,243.9) (1,498.9)
Loans from government BT E K (29.1) (32.6)

Details of the above financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies applied by the Housing Society to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Housing Society is exposed to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty may default on its bank deposits and
accounts receivable or the Housing Society may be required
to pay if the financial guarantee is called on. The Housing
Society’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Housing Society in the event of the
counterparty’s failure to perform their obligations at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets and the financial guarantees provided are the
carrying amounts of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position and the provision for financial guarantee
disclosed in note 21(a).

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Housing Society’s credit
policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and
the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee
contracts.
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5. BERBEEEEREEK®
policies (continued)
(@ Credit risk (continued) @ FERRE@
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) EAEZNERSE B MERER
(&)
As at 31 March 2022 N-ZEBE-__—_F=A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=EAEH
FEER 2HEHCEEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach
(in HK$Million) (GBEEEIT) E-RER E-RR E=RER f{hE
Rent receivables ERHEE - = = 16.1 16.1
Loans receivable ERE R
— Normal* — EHE* 26.9 - - - 26.9
— Doubtful* — Al & - 1.5 - - 1.5
— Loss* — Rk - - 0.5 - 0.5
Financial assets included in BEEBENBRAEM
prepayments and other assets BETANMEEE
— Normal* — E®* 688.3 - - - 688.3
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHES
— Not yet past due — K@ 6,992.4 - - = 6,992.4
Guarantees given to banks in HIRTIRFEERAREN

connection with mortgage loans™ (R & **

— Not yet past due — K@ H 2,270.0 - - - 2,270.0

9,977.6 1.5 0.5 16.1 9,995.7
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5. BERBEEEEREEK®
policies (continued)
(@ Credit risk (continued) (@) SERk®)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) EAEZNERSE B MERER
(&)
As at 31 March 2021 R-_ZE-_—F=A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=@EAFEH
EEEE 2HEMREERR
Simplified
Stage 2 approach
(in HK$Million) (B EBEIT) FoRRER IGK (=97
Rent receivables WS - - - 12.4 12.4
Loans receivable R ER
— Normal* — E®* 39.2 - - - 39.2
— Doubtful* — Al &E* - 2.0 - - 2.0
— Loss* — REE* - - 1.5 - 1.5
Financial assets included in BEENBRMEM
prepayments and other assets EEAANNTKEE
— Normal* —E®* 285.8 - - - 285.8
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITHE
— Not yet past due — KRB H 11,727.7 - - - 11,727.7
Guarantees given to banks in HIRITIHRIFE RGN

connection with mortgage loans™ IR

— Not yet past due — KRB H 2,347.4 - - - 2,347.4

14,400.1 2.0 1.5 124 14,416.0
* The credit quality of the loans receivable and financial assets is @ EWNERELVEEAENZREEW
considered to be () “normal” when they are not past due and there is BAENVERIPHEITAELEEER
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant BEVIRERARMEEENER
increase in credit risk since initial recognition; (i) “doubtful” when there RBEZEEMAIES]: ()8 98
have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition e AR - E A EB A2 E TR A
based on information from internal or external resources; and (jii) “loss” EE EHEBEZEL IS AlA
when there is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired. gl RiEBBRBREERLERE

ARERAIRE] -
* The guarantees given to banks in connection with mortgage loans 0 HRTEBERAENRERERE
represents the maximum amount the Housing Society has guaranteed NeNEREARFARENTES
under the respective financial guarantee contracts. SEE o
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

The Housing Society has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Housing Society is not able to
meet its obligations and commitments as they fall due. All the
Housing Society’s investments are kept sufficiently liquid and
readily realisable to meet operation needs and any
unexpected cash demands. In addition, the Housing Society
also monitors the liquidity risk by performing cash flow
analysis on a regular basis.

Apart from certain accounts payable and loans from
government which are not expected to be settled within one
year after the end of the reporting period as disclosed in
notes 19 and 22 to the financial statements, all other financial
liabilities, which are non-interest bearing, are expected to be
settled within one year.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from the movement of
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and market price of
securities. The Housing Society is exposed to market risk
through its equities and fixed income investments.

()  Foreign exchange risk

The Housing Society’s foreign currency positions arise
mainly from its financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong (“HK”)
dollar and United States (“US”) dollar. The exchange
risk between HK dollar and US dollar is considered
insignificant since HK dollar is pegged to US dollar.

198 Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22

BRREEBEERBE®

(a)

FERk#)

B B R 1 & 15 B B 5 B
REXHUES  FUBBLT
£ -

B R B

mBER R TR E e REEN
FHBHNEERAENRR
MEFEBRENRERGRITR
E B R pE AR B IR Y - A
EE2EFTEREBMNIERAYNE
EHRK I BFEBE TEH
BRERTRENMAREZTER
R e

BEBHmEAMETARAE -+
BRERXBONENERAIBRTE
KR —FIARBIHN - HhE
MERBHN -—FABHEE -

™ 35 & B

5 R R 2 E SN R (E - F X
MREFATENZESMELENE
R EEHEREBREREE
WHMEREMARE LEMS
2 B

() SNEHRBER

FEHBEMNIEREER
’EHEIFEETKETHSI
KU BEERABE MH
ALTRETHNABERH
8 FrIABE R K



5. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(©)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Housing Society is exposed to foreign currency risk
through its fixed deposits, equity investments and fixed
income investments. The foreign exchange risk on fixed
deposits is controlled and monitored by allocation limits.
The equity and fixed income investments, which are
managed by fund managers, are denominated in a
basket of currencies. The fund managers are
encouraged to hedge their foreign currency exposures
to HK dollar or US dollar in accordance with the
investment guidelines.

Audited Financial Statements E &8 &
Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& i &R izt

5. BIREMREEEERERE #

) ™mZEkE )
() HMEHEBREREE)

P = & m &5 3 ],
RETEERAERFR K
ELREEREESKRE 5
BKEHEROERZ XD
PR BRI MBS - DA —
ETERIRNBRERE
EUmEHERENRAES
REEE  WRERESTA
7% 51 BE SR BB TTER R TT
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5, BEEREEEEREEw
policies (continued)
(¢) Market risk (continued) () mERE @
()  Foreign exchange risk (continued) () HIEHBRREE)

Sensitivity analysis R Z T
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRBERPRFEHARER
in the Housing Society’s surplus or loss if foreign B R EA ZINEE K EE)
exchange rates to which the Housing Society has HEEWE 2 BHBEER
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period ZAEAESEH (RBREM
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk R EZEETE) -

variables remained constant.

Increase/ Increase/
Currency (decrease) Currency (decrease)
strengthened/ in surplus  strengthened/ in surplus
(\WEELG e ) Ne)Y for the year (weakened) by for the year
REEER NEEER
FE(BRE) #®BMmCHL) HE(RE) BN/ L)
(in HK$Million) (in HK$Million)
61 2=R- ) (CBE¥RAET)
Euro B 2 1% 31.4 1% 13.6
Pound Sterling RS 1% 12.0 1% 41
Japanese Yen H 1% 7.5 1% 3.9
Renminbi AR 1% 9.0 1% 6.4
Other currencies  H fih & #& 1% 13.3 1% 16.4
Euro E¥3 (1%) (31.4) (1%) (13.6)
Pound Sterling TR (1%) (12.0) (1%) 4.1)
Japanese Yen H (1%) (7.5) (1%) 3.9
Renminbi AR (1%) (9.0) (1%) 6.4)
Other currencies = i &5 # (1%) (13.3) (1%) (16.4)
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(c)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Housing Society is exposed to price risk arising
from investment related financial assets and liabilities.
This risk is controlled and monitored by asset allocation
limit.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Housing Society’s surplus or loss if market prices
of the investment related financial assets and liabilities
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

Increase/

Market price (decrease)

increased/ in surplus

(decreased) by for the year

™5 E % RERER
EAH (T K) 120, Om 2)

(in HK$Million)

(B EET)

1% 232.0

(1%) (232.0)

Audited Financial Statements E B & B H &
Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R izt

5. BXEREEEEREE @

() mEREME )
@iy ERER

FEHEeEHEERRE
HEBRENTBEER
BEEL HRREHREE
DR RET TR ©

BB HF

TERBETIRBERARER
ERARAZAEHEEKEN
MBEERBEMERZ
mMEEREPHEEHS
MBHRIBERZAERE
2H(REEMRABRZ®
j;i ZZ)

Increase/

Market price (decrease)
increased/ in surplus
(decreased) by for the year
IS ER NEFBER

AT &) 1210, GR 2)

(in HK$Million)

(B EEX)

1% 288.0
(1%) (288.0)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
changes in the market prices of the investment related
financial assets and liabilities or other relevant risk
variables had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
investment related financial assets and liabilities held by
the Housing Society which expose the Housing Society
to price risk at the end of the reporting period.

ERAFRESNIIER
MRENBBEERAE
ZEREMGERIEME
AEREFNRSHRD
HERES YO RARERH
AEREHENEEHMR
BB YXERERSHEY
ERERERZIBBAKRE
MU HEERAE-
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Housing Society’s exposure on cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk mainly arises
from its loans receivable and time deposits.

As the time deposits usually mature within one year, the
exposure is considered not material. Management of
the Housing Society monitors the interest rate profile of
loans receivable regularly.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Housing Society’s surplus or loss if interest rates
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

2022

Interest rate Increase/
increased/ (decrease)
(decreased) in in surplus
basis points for the year
=12, NEF B

CRi &) & 2 120, Crl 2)
(in HK$Million)

(B¥EBT
50 34.9
(50) (34.9)

5. BXEREEEEREE @

) miEERE@E

(il

Interest rate
increased/
(decreased) in
basis points

A =B
(D) BF

A = & B2

FEHENRSRENX
B rERNRERE
2 i B W E AN E B TF AR

EHERBEFE-—FAI
H-AAERRTS - BE
HheRKERZMEE R
HEEEERESR-

TRETRBSEHRRR
ERBEZCNXEFHHE
EHgzRHBIBEEZA
RRaBEZFH(RREMER
EEREFRFTE) -
2021
Increase/
(decrease)
in surplus
for the year
NEBER
# a0, G 4)
(in HK$Million)
(B¥AEBEIT)
50 58.5
(50) (58.5)
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5. BIRAKREEEEREEK®)
policies (continued)
(d) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair d BBKEEREBRAAE
value Bit £
Fair value hierarchy DNABEZER
The following table presents the fair value of the Housing TEREMNEEEHEEENEER
Society’s financial assets and liabilities measured at the end EEAEMBREENE =9 —
of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into ARBHEFEFMRAE T Z2=ER
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 NEBEEZERF  LARXEBET=
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value EEWwWE 2 HBGEENAGE - A
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the REBEFAEEFESRIEE
observability and significance of the inputs used in the B2RBRTINEGEREPFERE
valuation technique as follows: ABBZABRMEREEZMN
—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level - E—HHEE RERFE—
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets B ABBHEEARE
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement B BRET2BAEREE
date. FEBEEERBRMEB AL

FERE -

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 - FBERHE:FRE_LH
inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, ABEBHEEQAEE A
and not using significant unobservable inputs. REFTEE —R2ITBEE
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data WMAEBETNTEREKRT
are not available. AR ABUE - TR

WA B T) T 5 U R 82
A7 A B -

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - FE=ZHHE: LNBAEKX

unobservable inputs. TR BRHBUTFELR
BE -
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(d) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Recurring fair value

measurement BEMDNARBETE

(in HK$Million) (BEEET)

5, BXBRMEEBEEREE 2

d BHEEREBRAAE
Bit= @)

AREBEEER#E)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

F—& FoR F—&

Investment related financial & 1% &8 B & E
assets (note 16) (B 524750

10,146.5 11,072.5 2,140.5 23,359.5

Investment related financial B EIXENB K8 &
liabilities (note 16) (M aE+75)

- (162.4) - (162.4)

10,146.5 10,910.1 2,140.5 23,1971

Recurring fair value
measurement

(in HK$Million)

Investment related financial & 1% &8 BB &E &
assets (note 16) (B 3E+7%)

Level 2

B

15,427.7 11,414.6 2,028.7 28,871.0

Investment related financial & 1% A8 BB &
liabilities (note 16) (M EE+75)

(16.1) (54.7) — (70.8)

15,411.6 11,359.9 2,028.7 28,800.2

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 or no transfers into
or out of Level 3. The Housing Society’s policy is to recognise
transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of
reporting period in which they occur.
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(d)

Audited Financial Statements E &8 &
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5. BIRAKREEEEREEK®)
policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair d BBKEEREBRAAE
value (continued) EE=-A¢ )
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 1 and E—BRE_FLPABETE
Level 2 fair value measurements Rz ELEREE
Investments whose values are based on quoted market EERmBEREHEmMaASE A
prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1, FE-—RANKRE BEEE WK
include active listed equities, exchange traded derivatives, E-XS5MEENMATERE BT
government treasury bills and certain sovereign obligations. BEFEAETEEERS-
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not RETNRABERMIEANE BERIZ
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted MERE X HERENHMNAA
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources BRGENEMTEER RN
supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. TE#MEFZAE _R-%ZFETH
These include investment-grade corporate bonds, sovereign BREEERINTCERS £
obligations and certain unit trusts. As Level 2 investments BEERELESBNETES AR
include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or FRFE BB IERNERT IS
are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted BEEN /HNETEZRENAE
to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are B mEAETUAABRNRMEIE
generally based on available market information. REER AT AT EEN - H—

RRIZARI ST 5 E B B IKIE ©

The Level 3 includes financial instruments which values are FoRBPREZETERESEME
based on unobservable inputs. These are mostly unit trusts. ZHBEIERE FEAEMNEF-
Their net asset values are provided by respective ZEEEFEAKSEBZEE AR
administrators of the unit trust. Rt

Movement of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial F_RUBEEAREBEITEN
assets is as follows: FEIMT

(in HK$Million)

At 1 April REA—AH 2,028.7 1,729.3

Gain recognised in the comprehensive 7 2 [ U 25 A B 32 19 3% A

income 111.8 299.4

At 31 March W=A=+—H 2,140.5 2,028.7
The fair value of the above investments is positively correlated NEREN AL BEEBEBRIKEE
to the net asset value of the underlying investment funds. Due HEWMEBEEFEFECEFEBEZ-
to the inherent uncertainty of the estimates, the fair value of HRGAEZETBERE  £=
Level 3 financial assets may differ from the values that would LM EEN R miE FHEE
have been used had a ready market for these investments WEEEARE -

existed and the difference could be material.

EHREERE 2021/22 EEF R
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6. Revenue

6. EXWA

(in HK$Million) (BBEExT)
Revenue from contract with customers XEHEFERAZWA
Revenue from property management YIEEEWA 19.0 19.3
Revenue from property sales WEREKA - 6,390.3
19.0 6,409.6
Revenue from other sources Ha kR A
Revenue from property leasing PIERE WA
Variable lease payments that do not TEUR I8 Eok
depend on an index or a rate tb ey A] & & K18 121.9 188.7
Other lease payments, including fixed BIE R IE
payments HiBEZHE 1,617.8 1,397.8
Interest income from loans receivable JIE U B ZUR B A 1.7 2.2
1,741.4 1,688.7
Total revenue BMEFEWA 1,760.4 7,998.3
() Disaggregated revenue information () HOWAEER

For the year ended 31 March 2022

BE-—ZE-—F=A=+—H1L

FE
Property Other

(in HK$Million) y: sales operations
Segments MEHE HhEE
Type of goods or services 5 n 2 AR 75 25 7Y
Property management services Y %% 12 RS - 19.0 19.0
Total revenue from contracts with KEEFPAERZ

customers WA 4Bz - 19.0 19.0
Timing of revenue recognition W A 1 3R 15 BT
Services transferred over time BERS B 2 RIS - 19.0 19.0

- 19.0 19.0
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6. Revenue (continued) 6. BEW A
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () FOWABE @
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE—_E-_—®=H=+—H1It
FE
Property Other
(in HK$Million) (B¥BET) sales  operations
Segments 2R MELHE HftzE
Type of goods or services 1 am 24 iR 75 X8 7Y
Property sales v E 6,390.3 - 6,390.3
Property management services MEEERY - 19.3 19.3
Total revenue from contracts with KEEFPAERZ
customers WA % 6,390.3 19.3 6,409.6
Timing of revenue recognition W A 7 3R 15 [T
Property transferred at a point in time EREARMEERE 2
ES 6,390.3 - 6,390.3
Services transferred over time BE R R 2 RS - 19.3 10.3
6,390.3 19.3 6,409.6
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TEREFYFAREHYE WFBE
in the current reporting period that were included in the BFIT2(WERAEE) MRAHR
forward sales deposits received (i.e. contract liabilities) at the S HIR R A SR8

beginning of the reporting period:

(in HK$Million)

Property sales Y RE - 648.3
No revenue recognised in the reporting period ended 31 RZEBE_—_FR_FE-_—F=A
March 2022 and 2021 that were related to performance =+ —HWREEAAN - W EILATH
obligations satisfied in previous periods. BITHRARFHEROUA o
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6. Revenue (continued) 6. BEW A
(i) Performance obligations (i) EBAEMRE
Information about the Housing Society’s performance ENEERERAE T 2 ER
obligations is summarised below: AR
Revenue from property sales MELENKA
The performance obligation is satisfied when the legal title of BHEETREFREE EKY
the completed property is obtained by the buyer. MR EFT A RERFER o
Revenue from property management MESERA
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services BHETESREREREMSEE
are rendered and short-term advances are normally required TRERERESZIBEEES
before rendering the services. Management service contracts BB - BRI A R A EIR
are for periods of one year or less, and are billed based on R—FHER  MRBEEENR
the time incurred. &t & o
7. Investment (loss)/income 7. BE(BE) WA
(in HK$Million) (B®EBT)
Investment related financial assets ERRENEBEERERE
and liabilities
Gain on disposal, net o s A 2,052.0 1,096.8
(Decrease)/increase in fair value, net AR EEFORD), LN (3,443.8) 5,132.0
(1,391.8) 6,228.8
Other investment income HittREWA
Interest income B U A 165.7 259.3
Dividend income g B A 219.2 194.8
Exchange differences & H Z % 281.9 (404.4)
666.8 49.7
(725.0) 6,278.5
Movements in fair value on investments are unrealised and may KRENANABENEHE RERA -
fluctuate subsequent to the end of the reporting period subject to IASRBERARENTIZERERE
subsequent market movements in investment prices and foreign & K HNEE 3 A SR Sk B i & R

exchange rates.
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Executive Committee members’ emoluments 8. HITZESZEZMS

The aggregate emoluments of the members of the Executive HITEECLE ((THEAFFTHRITAR
Committee (excluding the Chief Executive Officer and Executive BRENEBREERTAEMER(E
Director; and the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing BB AEEAHTZEESNER
(Housing) being ex officio members of the Executive Committee ZE TESTHMS) 2L E &
who are not entitled to receive any emolument) are as follows: M

(in HK$Million)

Honorarium [ 1.4 1.4

Their emoluments fall within the following bands:

Number of members

Emoluments band B € 55 4% ZEAE

(in HK$Million) (B¥BEET) 2022

Nil (waived) = (%e) 1 1
Below 0.1 L0 1 2
0.1t00.5 0.1-0.5 8 7
Total B 10 10
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10.

Emoluments of the five highest paid
management staff

The five highest paid management staff (including the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director) are the directorate
executives of the Housing Society. Their aggregate emoluments are

as follows:

(in HK$Million) (B¥BHET)

Basic salary, allowances, variable pay and

AVBEEMENEEASR

IfuREMEMNERBAB(BRETR
BRERNTRBE)EFEEHBENE
EnE HMeg®muT:

EXRHE 2 FHME R

benefits in kind =870 & 18.0 17.3
Provident fund contribution NESHK 0.7 0.7
Total B 18.7 18.0

Their emoluments fall within the following bands:

Number of employees

Emoluments band M & & 4% BETAH

(in HK$Million) (B¥BET) 2022

25-3.0 25-3.0 - 1
3.0-35 3.0-3.5 3 2
3.5-4.0 3.5-4.0 1 1
45-50 45-5.0 = 1
5.0-55 5.0-5.5 1 -
Total =) 5 5

For the year ended 31 March 2022, no compensation in lieu of
leave was excluded from the aggregate sum (2021: HK$0.3 million).

Taxation

The Housing Society is a charitable institution and is exempted
from Hong Kong taxation under Section 88 of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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11. Investment properties 1. BEWE
Completed/ Properties
purchased under
properties development
BT/
(in HK$Million) (B¥BEET) BEYXE BRERDYFE
Cost R AR
1 April 2020 —E-_FTFPA—H 14,833.9 1,106.5 15,940.4
Additions NE - 924.2 924.2
Adjustment = 2.7 - 2.7
Transfer iR 1,350.0 (1,449.5) (99.5)
31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 —E-_—F=ZRA=+—H8BRK
T —-FMA—H 16,186.6 581.2  16,767.8
Additions NE - 2,340.7 2,340.7
Adjustment Bk (88.5) - (88.5)
Transfer B AR 166.6 - 166.6
31 March 2022 —E-__F#=ZA=+—H 16,264.7 2,921.9 19,186.6
Depreciation and impairment ERRE
1 April 2020 —E-_FTFPA—H 6,164.8 358.5 6,523.3
Charge for the year REEFE 316.9 - 316.9
Transfer AR 320.0 (850.3) (30.3)
Impairment loss R E - 319.6 319.6
31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 —E-—F=ZRA=+—H8BRK
—E-_—-FMHA—H 6,801.7 327.8 7,129.5
Charge for the year KEEFIFE 333.2 - 333.2
Transfer AR 59.5 - 59.5
Impairment loss R E - 441.6 441.6
31 March 2022 —E-__H#=ZA=+—H 7,194.4 769.4 7,963.8
Carrying values BRE &
31 March 2022 —E-_H#=ZA=+—H 9,070.3 2,152.5 11,222.8
31 March 2021 —_E-_—F=A=+—H 9,384.9 253.4 9,638.3
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11. Investment properties (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Housing Society’s
investment properties comprise:

(in HK$Million) (B¥EHET)

1. REWHE »)
RBEWR FEERENREYE

B

Completed/

purchased
properties

®T,/
EEmE

2022

Properties
under
development

BRPYE

Rental estates and properties HIEET R 5,353.7 1,070.4 6,424.1
Commercial and residential premises % N FEETF 3,716.6 1,082.1 4,798.7
9,070.3 2,152.5 11,222.8

(in HK$Million) (B¥BEETT

Completed/
purchased
properties

wI,/
BEY

2021

Properties
under
development

EELIEYE S

Rental estates and properties HAE R E 5,675.5 253.4 5,928.9
Commercial and residential premises 7% R =& F 3,709.4 - 3,709.4
9,384.9 253.4 9,638.3
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11. Investment properties (continued)

Rental estates and properties

For rental estates and properties with carrying value and fair value
of HK$6,424.1 million (2021: HK$5,928.9 million), the government
has included in the land grant terms and conditions governing the
sale and rental of the properties. At the end of the reporting period,
the Housing Society assessed the recoverable amounts of rental
estates and properties based on the value-in-use approach using
the discounted cash flow method along the land lease term,
because () the government may or may not consider giving
approval for the Housing Society to sell any or all of its rental
properties; (i) there are no comparable market transactions to
provide references; and (i) concessionary rents are charged to
tenants of the public rental estates or tenants are age-restricted.
The discount rate used in the calculation was 4 per cent (2021: 4
per cent).

In addition, as at 31 March 2022, development costs of certain
rental estates and properties under development are not expected
to be fully recovered by the projected cash inflow (i.e. rental
income). In view of this, impairment assessment of the relevant
investment properties was performed by the Housing Society
based on a value in use calculation using the discounted cash flow
method.

Based on the impairment assessment, the impairment loss of
HK$441.6 million (2021: HK$319.6 million) was recognised under
“Investment properties impairment” in the comprehensive income
during the year, which was arose from properties under
development.

Audited Financial Statements 2 BB k=
Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& i &R izt

11.

BEWMHE )
HEE MR Y E

REEERAABEABE S+ IE
—FHB—TBR(ZE—F B
EF+ABE=ZFABATE L) MEA
EHERMEmNS  BRAEHA LIS
ERMERERRRESE - N EH
N FEBENGTEEER Y E
A e BT REL T HMESHR
FRRERENREFTENERER
AR R ARG AT AT AL @ sk Al B
TeZEMEEEHReLEAME
HEeEHEDE: ()NREF RN TS
REREZE: RMHBELERP K
MEXFREHMBEBRESRES - %
HEFRAOTREAAE S Z2E(ZE
Z—F BAHzZM)-

{s]

- RZFEZ—_F=A=+—H "
BHRESRA (RS BA) T RIAE
HEEETREPLHEBVRYED
BEKA-ERL FEHSLYIEH
MIEEYEFERReREN B ENHE
REEEETRERTME -

AEE RE2AREXRIEEDER
BIJETREREIFIHERRELSS
BUENTF—a~t8n(ZE=—
F:BBE=R-—ThE~T+ET)  #
BEFUWEESE -
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11.

Investment properties (continuea)
Commercial and residential premises

The carrying value and fair value of completed commercial and
residential premises at 31 March 2022 were HK$4,798.7 million (2021:
HK$3,709.4 million) and HK$11,719.5 million (2021: HK$11,149.2
million), respectively.

The fair value of completed commercial and residential premises at
31 March 2022 and 2021 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by an in-house professional
surveyor. The investment properties have been valued individually,
on a market value basis, which conforms to Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties. The valuation
involves the use of certain significant inputs for which the market
data are not available. The fair value measurement of the
investment properties falls into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13. The valuation was mainly arrived at by
reference to comparable market transactions for similar properties
and on the basis of capitalisation of net income with due allowance
for the reversionary income and redevelopment potential.
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12. Property and equipment 12. ERRE

Leasehold
land and Equipment
buildings and others

HEFH £ ity

(in HK$Million) 3 B kEF RERHEM
Cost Jo N
1 April 2020 —E-FFWPWA—H 368.3 289.3 657.6
Additions NE 41.7 50.5 92.2
Adjustment Bk - (13.9) (13.3)
Transfer IR 300.6 - 300.6
Disposals & (0.5) (16.1) (16.6)
31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 —_E-_—F=A=+—HK

—E2-—F1AF—H 7101 310.4 1,020.5
Additions NE 251.3 82.2 333.5
Adjustment Bk ©.1) 1.7 1.6
Transfer R (166.6) - (166.6)
Disposals k= 8.4) @47.7) (56.1)
31 March 2022 —E-__—_F=HA=+—H 786.3 346.6 1,132.9
Depreciation wE
1 April 2020 —E-FTFWNYA—H 133.9 232.4 366.3
Charge for the year KEZHE 11.2 19.1 30.3
Transfer R 30.3 - 30.3
Disposals & (0.5) (16.1) (16.6)
31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 T F=A=t+—"H8RK

—E-_—-FMHA—H 174.9 235.4 410.3
Charge for the year KEEIFE 15.5 27.0 42.5
Adjustment Bk (0.6) - (0.6)
Transfer LR (59.5) - (59.5)
Disposals H&E (8.4) 47.7) (56.1)
31 March 2022 —E-_—_HF#=HA=+—H 121.9 214.7 336.6
Carrying values BREE
31 March 2022 —E-__—_F=HA=+—H 664.4 131.9 796.3
31 March 2021 - —F=ZA=+—H 535.2 75.0 610.2

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the carrying value of right-of-use R-EZ—_FR-_TBE-_—F=H=+
assets included in property and equipment is insignificant. —H VELZENEREAERS/NE
FAEEELTERX -
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13. Leases

(@)

The Housing Society as a lessee

The Housing Society has lease arrangements of land used in
its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods of
70 to 999 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. These land leases are
accounted for as “Property and equipment” and disclosed in
note 12 to the financial statements.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 26(b) to
the financial statements.

The Housing Society as a lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Housing Society in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as

follows:

13. 4
@ EEWHSEREAEA
EEHEERANLEN T EE

/—\Iaf’%J:'Tz?%@Eﬁ%ﬁEﬁ}\?ﬁiﬁ

RIEEE URGHEHRL
—i—ijlﬁjl-i—jliﬂ’ﬁﬂiaiﬂﬂf’
BEREBEZFT LHEDBERR
A& E R R R o E L
THHHESRAREIE MK
BIPYRAMBEREME =+
BEE -

HEMRSRHARETHHRE
MIEE = +7N(0) P K8 -

FEHEFERHEA

RBEHR BFEHERARKH
RRE T A & 2 HOR R
Bz BREBEENRIRAOT

(in HK$Million) (B¥BHET)

Within 1 year —F R 604.7 630.7

21to 5 years MEERAFR 470.5 419.5

Over 5 years HFEE 29.9 29.5

1,105.1 1,079.7

Majority of the leases are negotiated for terms ranging from KESPDHBLOER B - =F o
two to three years. Rentals are generally fixed over the lease MESEEEEHESIE%ZER
terms except that rental of certain car parks is calculated on BEEBEEBEETENA D
a percentage of their respective car parks operator’s gross g EmBEeaEROERN—
revenue. JEHY ©
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14. Loans receivable 14. EIWE R
Loans receivable represents mainly the second mortgage loans FEREZRTERIEABRFERTIZMH
granted to the flat buyers and unsecured loans granted to home ME_RIBER AEEBFEEHE
owners under the Building Management and Maintenance Scheme. REFEF AREETRHONZEER
All the secured loans are secured by residential properties. WHER FIEEEIFNERRUESE
I E R
(in HK$Million) (B¥BHET)
Secured mortgage loans EERREBER 26.7 36.6
Unsecured loans EEALER 2.2 6.1
28.9 42.7
Less: impairment loss B ORE (0.5) (1.9)
28.4 41.2
Representing: EAEE R
Due within 1 year —F R F|H 2.9 5.4
Due after 1 year, but within 2 years —FEF _FRNEIH 1.6 3.3
Due after 2 years, but within 5 years —FEERFAREH 4.3 5.5
Due after 5 years FF LA I HR 19.6 27.0
Total due after 1 year —F LR EE 25.5 35.8
28.4 41.2
Interest rates applicable to the above loans receivable are set out EMREWKEZHMNERIFY MO :
below:

Secured mortgage loans Unsecured loans
EEFRMBREER FEEFMmER
2022 2021 2022
Contractual interest rate & £ F| & Prime rate Primerate 0% to Prime rate 0% to Prime rate
BORZEZE BoLEE
BEEF =R =BEAE BREEF =R =EEFE

i}
i
2
4

Prime rate Prime rate 9.3% 9.3%

REERER HEBME

Effective interest rate

\
l
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14. EWE R ()

14. Loans receivable (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of loans

receivable are as follows:

EWERREERNREBES T

(in HK$Million)

At 1 April KU A—H 1.5 1.3

(Reversal)/provision of impairment, net TR E (B, & (1.0) 0.2

At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 0.5 1.5
Impairment DRI

The loans receivable have been reviewed by the management to
assess impairment allowances which are based on an evaluation of
collectability, ageing analysis of accounts, fair value of collateral and
on management’s judgment, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection statistics of individual accounts and are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available.

As at 31 March 2022, loans receivable with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$26.7 million (2021: HK$36.6 million) were secured
by charges over residential properties as collateral, in which the
Housing Society is entitled to recover the outstanding loans
receivable from the collateral when there is default by the borrower.
There has not been any significant changes in the quality of the
collateral held for loans receivables.

As at 31 March 2022, loans receivable with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$2.0 million (2021: HK$3.5 million) are past due. Out
of the past due balances, HK$0.5 million (2021: HK$1.5 million) has
been past due six months or more and is considered to be credit-
impaired. The impairment provision has taken into account the
credit quality of the underlying assets and the financial strength of
the borrowers.
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14.

15.

Audited Financial Statements 2 BB B3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& i &R izt

Loans receivable (continued)
Impairment (continued)

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the carrying values of loans that are
past due but not impaired are insignificant. For loans that are
neither past due nor impaired, their credit quality is considered
good since majority of the loans are secured by residential
properties and have good settlement history. During the year, there
has been no significant change in the credit quality.

Properties under development for sale

14. EWE R ()

AR ()

NZE-——&ER=-_TE-_—&F=F=+
—B EEWEULSEERNBHER
mARBERNER )2 H 8 B8 KSR
BEEANEFRTRRARIFEE  F
KBS B E R DA T B 1 2 13 1 0
ERIFERLHE -EAFE ZEEH
FOEEERRLEEANEE -

CAFHERZENBREDYE

(in HK$Million) (B¥BET)

At 1 April WM A—H 2,326.6 4,455.5
Additions during the year N EE 7,598.3 2,497.2
Transfer to housing inventories BEEFHFE = (4,425.0)
Transfer to investment properties BEEREYE - (201.1)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 9,924.9 2,326.6

As at 31 March 2022, the amount of HK$9,924.9 million (2021:
HK$2,326.6 million) is expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense after more than 12 months from the end of the reporting
period.

R-_E-_—_F=ZA=+—H ' B¥Ah
THhAEZFEHBREATET(ZE = —
FoBE -+ =T NAE~ATET)
BHEEREHAREN T ZEANUE
WESERAES S -
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16. Investment related financial assets/liabilities 16. EBRENBBEE &

(in HK$Million) (B®EBT)
() Investment related financial assets ) BEKENMEKEE
Equity securities: RAFE %
Hong Kong BB 786.4 5,150.1
Overseas EEA 9,306.4 10,101.3
10,092.8 15,251.4
Debt securities: B E 7
Hong Kong B 0.9 203.9
Overseas BTN 7,938.1 7,611.4
7,939.0 7,815.3
Unit trusts: BT
Hong Kong B 16.4 57.2
Overseas RSEN 5,088.4 5,530.7
5,104.8 5,587.9
Other security investments HiFEHIEE 222.9 216.4
23,359.5 28,871.0
(i) Investment related financial iy BEAKENTBERGE
liabilities (162.4) (70.8)
Investment, net BB ERE 23,197.1 28,800.2
The increase or decrease in fair values at the end of the reporting RMEMRH AR BEE MR D =
period are unrealised and may fluctuate subsequent to the end of AERAN FTASREFEHREHT
the reporting period subject to subsequent market movements in 5 IE1R A B E R NS 53 3 0 % B
investment prices and foreign exchange rates. BE o
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16. Investment related financial assets/liabilities 16. ERRENUKEE &6

(continued) (%)
At the end of the reporting period, the net investment is RIFEER BRAKREZHELIUTS
denominated in the following currencies: Bt

(in HK$Million)
HK dollars i 3,037.1 4,441.4
US dollars ET 12,907.1 19,970.9
Euro (s 3,112.8 1,381.0
Pound Sterling HER 1,176.1 399.2
Japanese Yen H 748.3 331.5
Other currencies EfEH 2,215.7 2,276.2
23,197.1 28,800.2
The following table provides an analysis of the investments by TEREHfBRMMETSEE S Z2EHE
geographical market: DT

2022 2021

Equity securities iR A 3% 25
Hong Kong 55 8% 34%
United States = 35% 41%
Europe BN 24% 17%
Japan SN 1% 3%
Others Hib 32% 5%

Debt securities BEXES
United States = 38% 33%
Europe BOM 38% 47%
Japan SN 8% 10%
Others Hiib 16% 10%

Unit trusts BuER
United States x 89% 47%
Europe B 11% 16%
Others HAh - 37%
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16. Investment related financial assets/liabilities 16.

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the weighted average vyield to
maturity rate of global fixed income is 2.65 per cent (2021: 1.63 per
cent) and weighted average duration is 7.26 years (2021: 7.73
years).

On investment related financial liabilities, 13 per cent (2021: 20 per
cent) is due for settlement within 30 days after the end of the
reporting period.

17. Accounts receivable, prepayments and other 17.

ERRENMBEE BFE

(%)

RERERR REEEKREEHEGES
MEFHHHAREERBED 2 8~
A(ZEZ—F - Boz—H~=2)K
HmMEFHHERALH (=22
——F L BE=F)

BERREMBAGB AoZT=(=F
TF AN Z-TIRBERRE=
TRAZHRY

FRWRE ANEARAEM

assets EE

(in HK$Million) (B®EET)

Accounts receivable: JE Y AR A

Rent receivables W 2 16.1 12.4

Prepayments and other assets: EHEAREAEMEE :

Interest receivables & I F B 1.7 4.7

Investment receivables 1 B UK 668.5 2411

Deposits "e 9.9 11.3

Forward sales deposits held by BEEFI2RER

stakeholders - 23.0

Sundry debtors 2 TR JE UL BR 3R 8.2 5.7

Prepayments ENER 12.6 10.6
700.9 296.4
717.0 308.8
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18.

Accounts receivable, prepayments and other
assets (continued)

Included in the above are financial assets of HK$704.4 million (2021:
HK$298.2 million) which are denominated in the following
currencies:

17.

Audited Financial Statements E &8 &
Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& i &R izt

EWRERE BENEAREAM
BE W)

EIBFREMBEEREEELE
THEN+EL(ZE=—F: %=
BATNEBE=TET) HBHEE~LN
TIEBESE

(in HK$Million)

HK dollars T 38.6 63.7

US dollars ETT 539.1 127.7

Euro 17 85.6 68.3

Pound Sterling gz 21.5 9.3

Other currencies EfE 19.6 29.2
704.4 298.2

Accounts receivable and the financial assets included in the
prepayments and other assets for which there was no recent
history of default. As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of above financial
assets approximate to their corresponding carrying values.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances comprise mainly bank deposits with
maturity of six months or less. At the end of the reporting period,
the balances are denominated in the following currencies:

18.

EREEMBANERAREMEEFRR
EHUMBEELDRLSBENLE -
NRZE——&ER-—E-_—®F=F=+
—B ZEERBETERAMD -

NENMBEENAAEBEEELRR
SHRWEREEMRLD

BERBITHEER
HeRBTHEBEBBEAEARMN
ME B RTER  RREBK - B
S RIRTTREB U THIEBEH -

(in HK$Million)

HK dollars B 6,813.3 11,293.4

US dollars = 149.7 340.8

Other currencies EmE 29.4 93.5
6,992.4 11,727.7

The bank deposits at the end of the reporting period carry an
average fixed interest rate of 0.47 per cent (2021: 0.31 per cent)
per annum. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances
approximate to their fair values.

HARRTERZFHFENXLEED Z
ZHOL (T -_—F BOLEH=
=) BRERBTEBRIAEBERRE
B4 -

EHREERE 2021/22 EEF R
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19. Accounts payable, sundry deposits and

CENRE MERESRES

accruals 18 H

(in HK$Million) (BBBEET)

Payables on purchase of investments JEREAKRE 1,198.3 229.9

Tenants and sundry deposits MPEMEZS 193.5 206.4

Accounts payable &1 BR1E 573.1 775.0

Accruals FEZTIE H 279.0 287.6

Lease income received in advance JBWHEE 1,746.3 1,789.2
3,990.2 3,288.1

Less: non-current portion B IETRENEE (1,603.4) (1,639.9)
2,386.8 1,648.2

Included in the above are financial liabilities of HK$2,243.9 million
(2021: HK$1,498.9 million), of which 93 per cent (2021: 94 per
cent) is due for settlement within 60 days and 7 per cent (2021: 6
per cent) is after 60 days.

The financial liabilities are denominated in the following currencies:

NS FREMBaEBAERE =T
—ENF=EATET(ZE—%F:
BE+OEATABATET) HA
BOZNT=(ZE=Z—F :8H2N
T RBERARE ST RAE BB
B oEBRBEOIZE(ZEZ—F:BH
LN T REEET -

MBRABRATIEREE

(in HK$Million)

HK dollars g 1,071.9 1,295.7

US dollars E7T 1,081.5 60.6

Euro B 78 70.1 100.4

Pound Sterling HER 0.1 4.8

Other currencies EfEK 20.3 37.4
2,243.9 1,498.9

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of above financial
liabilities approximate to their corresponding carrying values.
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20. Forward sales deposits received

20. W RERFI &

(in HK$Million)
Forward sales deposits received: EWEAEEFI L -
Contract liabilities AREE - 0.6

Contract liabilities include advances received from buyers in
connection with the Housing Society’s forward sales of properties.
Contract liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 will be recognised
to revenue upon the buyers obtain the legal title of the completed
property.

At the end of the reporting period, the expected timing to recognise
forward sales deposits received as revenue is as follows:

ERAEERRETUEEHERED
ERBWBANR - BE_FT__FK
T F=ZA=+t—HHERARE
HREDIRGHBYENATERE#
RRERRIA -

RBERR BHEICDREEDE
FlE R WAREREDT

(in HK$Million)

Within 1 year

—F R

0.6

21. Provisions

(in HK$Million)

21.

Revitalisation
work

(B BEET) EEIR

EE

Building

management

Provision and
for financial maintenance

guarantee incentives

% RBRFEER
R HEIEEBY

(@) (b)

At 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZFMA—H 1.0 71.6 7.5 80.1
Amount provided IR EE - 153.4 0.1 153.5
Amount reversed Ao 0.5) (12.7) 0.9 (14.1)
Amount utilised DEREH (0.3) - (1.1) (1.4)
At 31 March 2021 and RZEZ—F
1 April 2021 =A=+—H8EFK

—T-—FMA—H 0.2 212.3 5.6 218.1
Amount reversed A fE Bl (0.2) (11.3) (0.8) (12.3)
Amount utilised BERTE - = (0.8) (0.8)
At 31 March 2022 WZT— =

—A=+—8H - 201.0 4.0 205.0
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21. Provisions (continued)

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period.

(a)

Provision for financial guarantee

In relation to the sales of properties, the Housing Society has
requested a number of mortgage banks to grant the
purchasers mortgage loans up to above 70 per cent of the
price of the properties. Provision for claims in the event of
default was therefore made to indemnify the banks for losses
arising from the request. The guarantee period is 20 to 25
years.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher
of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised
less the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls,
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holders (i.e. the banks) for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Housing Society expects to receive from
the debtor. The amount initially recognised represented the
fair value at initial recognition of the financial guarantees.

Building management and maintenance
incentives

Under the Building Management and Maintenance Scheme,
eligible applicants will be granted financial assistance when
they satisfy certain criteria. Management estimates and
provides for the amount of incentives when the applications
are approved. Should the actual maintenance expenses be
different from the expected, adjustment to the carrying
amount of the provision may arise.
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22. Loans from government
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22. BT ER

23.

(in HK$Million) (B®EBT)
Loans from government repayable BFEFIZ AT HRES
Within 1 year —FR 3.5 3.5
After 1 year, but within 2 years —FEWMFEAN 3.5 3.5
After 2 years, but within 5 years MEERFNA 10.3 10.6
After 5 years AFMNUE 11.8 15.0
29.1 32.6
Less: Amount due within one year B BRREREAEIER
included in current liabilities e —FRBEE (3-5) (3.9)
Amount due after 1 year — R B H e FOR 25.6 29.1
All the loans from government were obtained prior to 1 April 2009. NEFBREZRER -_ZEZNEMNMA—
The loans are interest free and repayable in 480 equal monthly HAEE BEXE20E HEZXHA

instalments from the draw down date. The fair value of the loans at
31 March 2022, which is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash flows at the prevailing market rate at the end of the
reporting period, is HK$26.5 million (2021: HK$29.9 million).

Commitments for property development and
improvements

At the end of the reporting period, the commitments in respect of
property developments, estate redevelopment and property
improvement works, which have not been provided for in the

financial statements are as follows:

23.

SHBNTHEREGAERR - BRER
EHRO TS ERIERIA EEREOR
KEeRE ERZTZ=_F=H=
T-HZAABERBE _TXAL
TEX(CE_—F: B8 _Thah

‘e —

&)

MEBZBRRRZ

RBEEHMR ERAVNERR ERE
BREBFHREIRRABRNALRSHE
BWEWT

(in HK$Million) (BBBEET)

Contracted but not provided for EENERIELEBENTIE 9,718.7 3,304.6

Authorised but not contracted for EEZEMRELHNTE 38,891.4 49,377.4
48,610.1 52,682.0
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24. Retirement benefits schemes 24. RIREERETE

The Housing Society operates two defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes, namely, Defined Contribution Retirement Benefit
Scheme and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Housing Society in the funds under the control of
trustees.

The retirement benefits cost charged to the comprehensive income
represents contribution payable to the funds by the Housing
Society at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Regarding
the Defined Contribution Retirement Benefit Scheme, where there
are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contribution, the forfeited employer’s contributions are used either

to reduce future contribution or to pay the trustee’s administration

FEHhEesHEAEREERHEMER
ERAEKREETE > 25 RIERMH

BRRRE B RIRGIERESF
gl ZEFAINEELEFEHENE
ENORTBAE AFERABIETEA
EBNEEA -

B & R 4E Mt Bl PrfE E MY EE
RHERNERARENR X2HINAR
A EA- B EREREARRES
g WEEREZBEDZERERKEF
ﬁﬁi&'ﬂj%%?riﬂ'%EZ&H&UE?EMTJKTFH

KRB E 178 B B R X
XNERATRER KR E U S

RO EHA 2 BUFENES -

charges or to distribute to members who are entitled to such
distributions under the rules of the scheme.

(in HK$Million) (BEBEET)
Contribution to the schemes RN

(net of forfeiture) (B 30508 4 £ 50) 37.5 38.2
Utilisation of forfeited employer’s contribution  #%58 Y BY & = 3%

for payment of trustee’s administration AREZAETEATHRER

charges 0.3 0.3

R=ZA=Z+T—AKREADN
#O8 Us 1 = A B = -

Balance of forfeited employer’s
contribution not utilised at 31 March
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25. Government contribution and assistance

(@

Concessionary land premiums

Since the incorporation of the Housing Society, a number of
sites have been granted by the government under lease
terms to facilitate the provision of housing to eligible families
and elderly. Depending on the nature of the land grant,
special terms and conditions are incorporated in the
Condition of Grant to restrict the user of the land and
alienation of the property.

Subject to these special terms and conditions, sites
developed for public rental housing purposes are granted at
nominal premium; sites for building flats for sales to eligible
families at concessionary prices are granted at one-third of
full market value; sites for building flats for sales to eligible
families at concessionary prices are granted at nominal value
for developing dedicated rehousing estate; sites for
developing rural public housing and senior citizen residence
are granted at nominal premium.

During the year, concessionary land premium was paid to the
government amounted to HK$8,190.7 million (2021:
HK$1,996.4 million). At the end of the reporting period, the
carrying value of the lands acquired through the above
arrangement amounted to HK$10,516.5 milion (2021:
HK$2,399.7 million), which has been recognised as
investment properties or properties under development for
sale in the statement of financial position.

Audited Financial Statements 2 BB k=
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25. T2 R ER

(@)

Bt B

BEEEHEXRINKR BERE
HHREFETAERKEM
FRE REEHESHE —#E
Moo RFH MM S - R
HE 3 RSP DOAT 5 Bl B HR R A
fi5 5K PR DA BR ] 7% L #E 3t 1) 2 A &
KEE -

XELHRMEKORS - A
HEAXEEEENHBRIAR
BUEwELL BARZEEY
NEEEBRLEXSFEETRE
REENIHRIAZ T IHEER
=z #i: BAARZERY
EER L EESIUESERLEE
ZEFETAEBRRENIIEZ
U BEER L mA N EZ
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25. Government contribution and assistance (continued)

(b)

Loans from government

The government has provided interest free loans to the
Housing Society for the development of two rural public
housing estates. Details of the loans from the government are
set out in note 22.

At the end of the reporting period, cumulative notional interest
for the loans from the government is estimated at HK$152.7
million (2021: HK$151.1 million). Full market premium of the
lands where the two rural public housing estates were
erected is estimated at HK$608.2 million (2021: HK$620.9
million).

The full market premium is estimated based on the
assumption that restrictions imposed in the land grant under
the special terms and conditions described in note 25(a)
above are not applicable.

Subsidy from government

During the year, the Housing Society received HK$1.6 million
and HK$0.6 million (2021: HK$9.0 million and HK$0.6 million)
from the Community Care Fund and the Anti-epidemic Fund
launched by the government, respectively.

26. Notes to statement of cash flows

(a)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities — Loans from government

25. 2B R EBY ()

(b)

BT &K

BREEAMESEALXLBEE
ZRBEEARFEHBERHAESD
B BFERFEATRME=
=

RBEHR BREFERN R4
ENEMEAR —EBRETZH
+t+ER(ZT=—F: BB —
EBEFT-—B-+E8T) MEL
BEAXKMLHEFEERREARMEM
TR HEGFEBESETN
BE-TERT(ZFE=—F: 8%
ANEZFTEATER) -

mEMN[ARRE LM E =+
T (a) P 51) 5 7l B PR A {6k 5% 4 4t
T RO RR B @A e

HFE

EAFE  BEHBE KR BBA
HHWAERES M HRAR
E2InBREE—BATET
EEBRTET(ZT-—4%:
BENABETRAEBETET -

26. RERMBRHEE

(@

METHELENEER
—BREM

(in HK$Million) (B BEET)

At 1 April KRIMA—H 32.6 36.1
Changes from financing cash flows BRERESREL (3.5) (3.5)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 29.1 32.6

Cash outflow for leases

The Housing Society had total cash outflows for leases
included in the statement of cash flows of HK$4.8 million (2021:
HK$5.3 million) during the reporting period.
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27. Related party transactions 27. EREALTZR S

Amounts due from/(to)
related parties
at the end of the
reporting period

Transactions incurred

Nature of transactions during the year

RELNER(BH)
B RE

REFEEENRS

(in HK$Million) 2022 2021 2022

BT Ko E Al BAF
W

() Government and other (i)
government
organisations

MR B E R

Urban Renewal Scheme

and property EFEE

management

Income e A 4.0 18.1

Expenditure X = 0.1)

4.0 18.0 - -

Premium for Flat-For- FEREHEETF

Sale Scheme e

Receipt on behalf R A 58.9 34.3

Repayment Big (62.0) (28.7)

(3.1) 5.6 (2.5) (5.6)

Loan repayment EBEEX 355 3.5 (29.1) (32.6)
Land premium/fees/ HE BB/

public works NP 8,199.2 1,989.8 - -
Subsidy =93] 2.2 9.6 - -

(i) Others (i) EAth

Lease income and MERARZS

deposits 3.0 0.3 (1.6) 0.3
Others H 4.2 1.0 - -

(i) Emoluments of key iy TEEEAESHHN
management
personnel 28.0 28.0 - -
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28. Segment information

The Housing Society’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services, and managed
separately based on required professional knowledge and

strategies. All assets and customers are located in Hong Kong.

Types of products and services are set out below:

Property sales

Rental estates domestic
leasing

Commercial leasing

Elderly housing leasing

Investments

Social projects

Other operations

Develop properties for sales

Lease and manage own rental estates
properties including residential flats

Lease and manage own properties
including office, shops and carparks

Lease and manage own elderly
housing properties

Invest in security markets and time
deposits to preserve the value of
capital

Provide property management and
repair incentives, promote proper
building management and
maintenance concept

Provide building management service
to private and public housing estates
and grant top up loans to buyers of
own-developed domestic flats

232 Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2021/22

28.

7 & & #

DHENTERUEEHENSER
dn K AR 75 B BRMS 3 75 E 88 0 B T R
e REEBANE R ME &R
TE-FUARBILEE -MTEEER

BEHEEH -

BEELR

MELE

EREEHEE

BEMEE

REFEME

o5
\r
L

HEIEAB

&
2
i

M REEEmER

BRMEFELHERE

HERERBE R
MEBREEE

HENEBBEMHE
BREFE BHR
FE5

HEREEBEBERE
FEEY%

BEERHSREFRE
B KA R TF B AR
BE

RHEBFEERGEE
B HEXEET
EENEENTEH

RAALARRKEILLR
HEFTERRBRE
REBREEEER



Audited Financial Statements 2 BB k=
Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& i &R izt

28. Segment information (continued) 28. P EEF #)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

—  Segment surplus/deficit is determined by aggregating income
earned and expenditure incurred by each segment without
allocation of corporate administrative expenses. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker (i.e.
Executive Committee) for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

— All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
office buildings and related leasehold land and buildings for
corporate administrative purposes.

— Al liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
accrual expenses for central administrative costs.

The Housing Society’s revenue from external customers from each
service is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

The Housing Society’s revenue from external customers is derived
solely from its operations in Hong Kong, and the non-current assets
of the Housing Society are located in Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10 per
cent or more of the Housing Society’s total revenue.

DHREEENEBERSBEWT

— DHHERFEBEEINED I
WX Rt oXERERRED
RERN -WTREIELERKE
(BT ZES)RUNEER R
ES E I

- BRFERABHSLELHRET
ERECEERIN HMWMEE
EFRANBRD AR

- KRECXEEBBOETER
Sh - HtbPrE A EEHIZ AR D
BB BC

FEHE KA S AERSEOINEEF K
ABR B HRRM LN

FEHBENIBERPRATEREE
EEENEY FEEBENERBE
ERREE -

HE_ZT-_—_FR_ZFT-_—F=ZR=
+—HALEEFEE BE—IAIBEFHRS
WATBRAEEHSHBKRANED Z
+ 3 A E o
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28. Segment information (continued) 28. P EEF #)
Segment information about these businesses, which is prepared in T BB EEKSTER EAR
accordance with the accounting policies adopted in the financial SN = R R A

statements, is presented below:

Rental

estates

Property domestic

sales leasing

BB EE

(in HK$Million) (B¥BEET) MEHE HE
Revenue from external parties MR 4B U A - 740.8
Other income =N 2.8 10.7
Net investment loss FREEE - -
Net (deficit)/surplus for the year RKEEE(BB), B (42.2) (186.8)
Interest income FE WA = =
Depreciation on property and equipment MEREZETE 6.3 0.8
Depreciation on investment properties KEYENE - 141.7
Investment properties impairment WEYERIE - 102.9
Expenditures for non-current assets EREBEESH 254.7 2,096.4
Total assets BEE 10,305.7 4,536.9
Total liabilities HAE 607.8 332.0
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Reportable Segments
R R

Commercial

leasing

[E 0

733.3
2.3

200.1

0.4
118.8
126.1

8.3
3,844.0
33.1

Elderly
housing
leasing

REREE
HE
265.6

6.2

(244.8)

2.9
72.7
212.6

2441
2,833.7
1,832.7

Investments

RE

(725.0)
(845.2)

165.7

31,013.1
1,389.7

Social
projects

#tE®A

(55.3)

0.3
1.7
6.2

Audited Financial Statements E B & B H &
Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R R izt

Reconciliation

Adjustments
Reportable for
Other segment corporate
operations total functions
Z-RIE: T o )]
HittgE 2 AR A

20.7 1,760.4 - 1,760.4

3.7 27.3 1.8 29.1

- (725.0) - (725.0)

15.9 (1,158.3) (101.4) (1,259.7)

1.7 167.4 - 167.4

- 10.4 32.1 42.5

- 333.2 - 333.2

- 441.6 - 441.6

- 2,603.8 70.0 2,673.8

28.3 52,563.4 544.2 53,107.6

0.1 4,201.6 185.1 4,386.7
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28. Segment information (continued) 28. P EEF #)
Segment information about these businesses, which is prepared in T BB EEKSTER EAR
accordance with the accounting policies adopted in the financial M E R (88)

statements, is presented below: (continued)

Rental

estates

Property domestic

sales leasing

B iR {EE

(in HK$Million) (B¥EET) MEHE HE
Revenue from external parties AN PR AR A 6,390.3 684.2
Other income =N 8.7 17.8
Net investment income FRE WA - -

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year RKEEFERE(FEiE) 1,813.0 (258.1)
Interest income FE WA - -
Depreciation on property and equipment MERZEITE 2.7 0.8
Depreciation on investment properties KEYENE - 123.6
Investment properties impairment "EYERE - 162.9
Expenditures for non-current assets IEMBEELI WL 34.6 814.2
Total assets BEE 2,480.2 2,761.1
Total liabilities HAE 733.8 494.9
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Reportable Segments Reconciliation

HYRAR

Adjustments

Elderly Reportable for
Commercial housing Social Other segment corporate
leasing leasing Investments projects operations total functions
RERERE 1 3R A9 EIEE
BXAE HE R&E HeEEE Bh 48 2R AR
645.7 256.7 - - 21.4 7,998.3 - 7,998.3
1.9 4.9 - 9.0 9.2 51.5 0.4 51.9
- - 6,278.5 - - 6,278.5 - 6,278.5
240.1 (210.8) 6,156.9 (76.1) 19.0 7,684.0 (76.2)  7,607.8
- - 259.3 - 2.2 261.5 - 261.5
2.3 5.1 - - - 10.9 19.4 30.3
120.6 72.7 - - - 316.9 - 316.9
- 156.7 - - - 319.6 - 319.6
3.8 113.7 - - - 966.3 39.3 1,005.6
3,972.6 2,895.9 40,836.3 4.7 37.5 52,988.3 602.5 53,590.8
29.3 1,880.0 333.4 8.4 0.1 3,479.9 130.3 3,610.2
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Five-year Financial Summary
hAFEMBGHE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Housing Society HEEEHEBERAFTBEED 2 MK
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited B BREANES BENLBEHMESH
financial statements, is set out below: R

(in HK$Million) 3 2021
Results E4

Income N 1,789.5 8,050.2 1,861.6 1,931.0 1,795.4
Expenditure % 2,324.2 6,720.9 2,004.8 1,698.4 1,571.8
Investment (loss)/income & (BE),/ WA (725.0)  6,278.5 (886.8) 852.7 3,587.6
Net (deficit)/surplus (F#]), BB FE (1,259.7) 7,607.8 (1,030.0) 1,085.3 3,811.2
Assets and liabilities EEREE

Total assets BERLT 53,107.6  53,590.8 46,1154  47,143.8  45,810.7
Total liabilities BE@E 4,386.7 3,610.2 3,742.6 3,741.0 3,493.2
Net assets EEEE 48,720.9  49,980.6  42,372.8  43,402.8 42,317.5
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